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VINODCHANDRA R. SHAH & CO. PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants UDAY V. SHAH rca.

NAYANTIKA D. SHAH Fca.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Campbell Properties & Hospitality Services Limited

Report on the audit of Financia] Statemenis
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Campbell Properties &
Hespitality Services Limited (‘the Company*), which comprise the Balance Sheet ag at 315
March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive [ncome)
and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information. (herein after referred to as “Ind AS
Financial Statemenis™)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to
us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by
the Comparies Act, 2013 in the manner 50 required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally aceepted in India, of the state of affairs

of the Company as af March 31%, 2024 and its profit, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended as on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Aet, 2013, Qur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements scetion of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India together with the ethical requirerents that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS
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financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient anc appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Information other than the financial statemenis and auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s report, but does not include

the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our andit of the
financial statemnents, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
rmsstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 2 material

misstatemnent of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

10 report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, (changes in equity)[v] and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with[vi] the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and cther
irregularities, selection and application of appropriate imuplementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
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operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statermnent that give a true and

fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or €ITor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, marters related
10 going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless manapement either

intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do s0.

That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

The Board is 2lso responsible for oversesing any amendments in Company™s Act has been
incorporated or not.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free frorn material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s repert that includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to

influence the econemic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financiaj statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professianal Judgment and maintain

professional skepticism during the audit, We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstarement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from eror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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s  Obtain an undetrstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circurnstances. Under section 143(3)(0) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are alsg responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal controls systems in place and the

operative effectiveness of such controls

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablensss of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

¢ Conclude on the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s treport to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify cur opinicn.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or couditions may cause the Company to

Ccease to continue as a going cencern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ‘matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and sigrificant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in mternal conirol that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with & statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with then
all relationships and other matters tha may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the andit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
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exiremely rare circumstances, we determine that a inatter should not be communicated in

our Teport because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Cormpanies (Auditor’s Report} Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of section 143 (1 1) of the Act, we give in the

Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(e

(d)

(e)

()

{g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books:

the Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash flow
statement deali with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account,

in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as oa
3lst March,2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors are disqualified as on 31st March,2024 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”, and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in

accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as

N e
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(h)

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, there is no remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the vear
under the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

in our opinicn and to the best of our infermation and according to the
explanations givento us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Anditors) Rules, 2014: -

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as
such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not
arise ' | A

There has not been an oéeasion in case of the Company durirg the year under report to
transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The question of delay
in transferring such sums does not arise.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and helief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed finds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall. whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (“Uitimaie Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, ne funds have been received by the company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
direcily or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) ot provide any

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimare Beneficiaries; and
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{vi). Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come w our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

(vii) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of the
provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For Vinodchandra R Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 115394W

b

Uday V. Shah.
Partner

M No: 035626
Pate: 23-04-2024
Place: Mumbai
UDIN:- 24035626 BKCBGPR325
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“ANNEXURE A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF CAMPBELL

PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED FOR THE, YEAR
ENDED 315" MARCH 2024

L. Inrespect of Property. plant and equipment,

@). (A). The Company has maintained proper tecords showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment

(B). The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangibles assets.

(b). Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by Management in
accordance with a planned program of verifying them once in three years which, in our
opinion, is reascnable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of

assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢). The Compacy does not own any Immovabie property (other than properties where
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the

lessee) hence reporting under clause 1(c) of the order is not applicable.

(d). The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment ar intangible
assets during the year ended 31 March, 2024. Accerdingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e). Based on the information and explanations given to us, there are no
proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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I

IIL.

iv.

VI,

VII.

In respect of Inventory,

{8). As the company is engaged in the business of letting of property on lease and rendering

bospitality services, there is no inventory in hand at any point of time, hence reporting

under clause (ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(b). According to information and explanation given to us, at any point of time of the year,

Company has not availed any working capital facility from any banks or financial

institutions in excess of Rs. 5 crores and hence reporting under clause (i1)(b) of the
order is not applicable.

The Company has not made any investment or provided any guarantee or security, and
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or uhsecured, to

comparies, firms, Iimited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the vear.

In our obi.nion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided puarantess or
securities to the parties covered under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,

2013. Theréfore, reporting under clause iii of the order i3 not applicable.

The Company has net accepted any deposit or ameounts which are deemed to be

deposits, Henee, reporting under clause 3(v} of the Order is not applicable.

The muaintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the

Company by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013.

In respect of Statutory Dues,

8) Undisputed statutory dues, mncluding Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,

Employees® State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax. Serviee Tax, duty of Custom,
duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statiiory dues applicable to
the Company have been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate autherities in all

cases during the year,
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b)

VIIL

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,

Provident Fund, Employees® State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for & period of mere than six months from the

date they became payable.

There are no disputed tax liabilities between the company and any of the forums,

hence reporting vnder clause vii(b) of the erder is not applicable.

There were ne transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

[X. Inrespect of Borrowings,

a)

In our opinion, the Companry has not taken any type loans or other borrowings hence

reporting under clause ix (a). (b}, {c) and (d) of the order is net applicable,

X. Inrespect of securities,

a)

b)

The Company has not jssued any of {ts securities (including debt instruments) during
the vear and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reperting under clause (x)(b) of the QOrder is not applicable to the Company

Xl In respect of Fraud,

a)

&)

To the best of cur knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledgg, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Compenies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Comparies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the
year and upto the date of tiis report

As presented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints

received by the company during the year.
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- XII. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

XIII. In our apinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

XIV. In respect of Internal Auditor,
a) In our opinien the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business
b) Internal Audit is not applicable to company as per Compeanies, 2013, hence
reporting  under clause xiv(b) is not applicable,

XV. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected with its divectors and hence provisions of section 162

of the Companies Act, 2013 are rot applicabie to the Company.

XVI Inrespect of Section 43-1A,
a) In respect of Section 45-IA a) The Company is not required to be registered under
section 43-IA of the Reserve Bauk of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting vnder clause
(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

b) The Group does not have any Core Investment Cormpany (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) as part of the group and
accordingly reporting under clause (xvi){d) of the Order is not applicable

XVIL The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

XVIIL There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
vear.
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XIX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans
and based on our examiration of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come tc our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We. however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viahility of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all labilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

KX. The Company is not required to comply with provision of Sec 13§ of Companies Act,
2013, henee reporting under clause xx is not applicable.
xxi) The reporting ymder Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of andit of
standatone financial statemenis. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause

has been included in this report.

For Vinodchandra R Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 115394W

NN

Uday V. Shah
Partner

M No: 035626
Date: 23-04-2024
Place: Mumbai
UDIN:- 24035626 BKCREGP8325

Page 13 of 244



“ANNEXURE B” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-seetion 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Campbell
Properties & [lospitality Services Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the Ind-AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control aver financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential compouents of internal control stated in “the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Tndia”. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequare intemal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the Company’s pelicies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the aceuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act,
Auditor’s Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit conducted in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™ and
the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both issusd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial contrals over
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financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to abtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internzl financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Ouwr audit of internal financial controls over financial repotting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the

auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
: pany

financial reporting.

Meaning of Internat Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial conirol over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonzble assurance regarding the reiiability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, A company's intemal finencial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedurss that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the tansactions and
dispositions of thelassets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded az necessary [o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and thar receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

malterial effect on the financial statements.
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i

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Conirols over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
inchuding the pessibility of coilusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatemnents due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detscted. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the intemmai financial controls over financial reporting {o firture periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become

madequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
comtrols system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control
over [inancial reperting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Contrels Over Financial Reparting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Vinodchandra R Shah & Co.
Chartered Accouniants
Firm Registration No.: 115394W

TR,
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Uday V. Shah Oy
% 0
Pariner ~‘§x__;:_«,-:f/-f’j}

Membership Number: 035626
Place: Mumbai,

Date: 23-04-2024

UDIN: 24035626 BKCBGPS325
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

Aszal As ot
Note 31st Mar., 2024 3isrMor, 2023
Farticutars Ne. ¥ in Thousand ¥ i Theusand
ASSFTS
1 Non-current assets

a Property, Plant snd Eguipment ] 5.56 7.78

b Intangible ssets:

) R-T-lU-Assets 13 52.39 104.78
52,39 104.738
c Financial Assets:

iy Otherfinancal assets 54 17,520.00 17.520.00
17.520.00 17.320.00

d T assets
i} Deferred tax assets fnet) 10 10.18 5.91
i} Tax assats [nat) 13 25.99 3367
36.17 0548
‘Total Nan-current assets 1761422 A2,622.14

2 Curvent assets

a Finarcial Assets:

B Trade receivables 4a. 456 86 12766
i) Cash and tash equivalents GA 454,41 716,58
iii) Bank balances ] 1,000.00 1,000.60
1,811.77 1,844,249
b Cther current assets TA. 12.57 4,81
Teta! Current asseds 1,973.84 1.843.05
Totl Asgets 19,533.06 18,521.12
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a  Equity share capieal ] 4,875.00 4,875.40
b {ther 2quiey 9 14,458.4¢ 14,425.54
Equity atsributakle to owners of the Campany 19,333.42 14,301 54
Total Equity 19,333.42 18,30i.52
hinllities
1 Hon-<urvent fabilites
a Financhal llabilibies:
i|  Lease ishility 23 395 5746
Total Nen-current liabilitas 3.56 5746
2 Cuwrrent lianilides
a8 FlmareR| linhilyjes:
i|  Lease |iakility 23 53,50 52.23
it Trade and other payables 12
a] total outstanding dues of micre
enverprises and small enterprises; and - -
b total sutstanding dues of creditors
other than micre enterprises and
small errterprises 145.02 108.97
18352 161.21

b Current tax ligbilities inet) 13 E _

c Other current liabilities 115 116 0.98
Total Current Liakilites 200LER 162.19
Total Liahilities 204.64 219.64

Total Equity and Liabilities 19,538.06 19,521.19
e akcompanying notes farming part of the financial statements .
In tarms of our report attached o
For Winodchamndra R, Shah & Cl:;’f— NRMAL JAGAWA nairperson
Chertered Accountants
FREN- 115354W \
RANINDGER PREM Lam
Directors
Uday V. Shah l =%
Partnar RUPA EHANNA

L
Membership No : 035626 % ] ';‘““;*
UDIN; 23035626BGWN V6702 &

Murnbid, 23 Aprll, 2024

Mmibai, 23 April, 2023
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024

Year Ended Yeor Ended
Note 21st Mar,, 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Particulars Ma. 2 |InThousand ¥ in Thousand
1 Revenuefrom gperations 4 1,305.50 1,636.80
Il Other Income 15 68 46 1774
Iil Tetal Income (i = I} 1,377.96 1,654.64
V¥ ExRenses;
Flnance cost 16 177 2434
Depreciation and amortisgtion expense 17 54,51 6375
Other expenses 12 1,248.66 1,003.03
Total axpenses 1,310.94. 1.091.12
V¥ Profit / {Loss} before exce ptional items and tax [Iil - 1V) &7.02 563.53
V1 Exceptlonal items -
Vil Profit f {Loss)k befare tax (V+V1) 57.02 563.53
VIH Taxexpense [ {creditk
Current tax 1% 2.0 148917
Incoma Tax Expensas for garlier yasrs 19 242 -
Deferred tax 19 (4.23) {045}
33.14 148,46
X Profit/{Loss) for the period (V11 - VIII} 31.88 415.07
X Qther Comperehensive Income
Tatal Other Comprehensive Income -
Ul Totzl Comprehensive Income for the period (DX + X} 31.88 415.07
Xl Eaming per equity share @
Besic and diluted eamings per eguity share T 007 r 085
See accompanying nates lorming part of the financial setements
In terms of our report, attachad s
For Vinedchandra R. Shah & Co. NIRMAL JAGAWAT Chalrperson
Chertered Accountents
FRN- 115324W
‘)\-’U—M RAVINDER FREM | 14
Olrectors

Uday V. Shah

Fartner

fambarshis No.: 035626
URIN: 23035626BEWNKVETD2

Mumbal, 2D Apr, 2024

RUFA KHANNA

Mumbal, 22 Al 2024
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continuad

Cash flows from aperating activitles
Profit / |Loss) before tax

Adjustmeants for -
Finance costs recagnised in profit or loss
Depraciation and amortisztion of non-current assets
Interest Income

Dperating profit / [loss] before working capital changes

Movements in warking cepital:
Decrease / {increase) Intrade receivabies and other receivables
{Increase)/decraase in other assats
Increase / {decrease) In trade payzkiles and ather payables
Incraase /{decrease) In othar liabilities

Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Income taxes paid {net of refunds)
[a} Netcash generated Fram / [used in) operating activities

Cash flaws fram Investing activities:
Interast received
{b} Net cash generated from / fusad in} investing activities

Cash flows frem financlng activities:
Paymant of Lease Liabilitias
Interest paid
{g) Net cash generated frem § (used in] financing acthdties
{dl Net increase f {decrease) incash and cash equivalents (2 + b+ c}

{=} Cashand cash equivalents as &t the commencement of the year
{fy fashand cash equivalents as at the end of the year

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

Year Ended
31st Mar., 2024
¥ In Thousand

Year Ended
31st Mar., 2023
¥ in Thoussnd

67.02 563.53
7.37 24,34
54,51 £3.75
(67.40) {17.74)
{5.12) 70349
€190 633.87
{329.20) i83.06
(7.76} {4.32}
37.05 f101.35)
0.18 {10.74)
[229.73) 56,61
[237.83) 700.40
{31.74) (188.94)
[263.57) 51156
57.40 i17.74
6740 1274
1£0.00] f60.00)
- {11.83)
[60.00C) {71.82}
{262.17) 457.47
1,716.58 1,256,11
1,454.91 1,716.58

Intarms of our report attached
For Vinodchandra R. Shah & Ca.
Chartered Accountants
FRN- 115354

Uday V. Shah

Partner

Wembarship No.: 035626
UDIM: 23035626BGWNEVRTOZ

Mumbal 23 Apeit 3024

MIRMAL JAGAVVAT & Chairperson

RAVENDER PRERA M 1} m.

L

RUPA KHANMA W

Directors

Mumbel, 23 April, 2024
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Continued

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 315t March, 2024

a. Equity share capital

Balance as at March 31, 2022

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2023

€ [ Thousand

Chznges in equity share cepital during the year 5

Balance as at March 31, 2024

B. Other Equity

Balance as at March 31, 2022
Prafit for the yaar

income tax
Baience as at March 31, 2023
Frofit for the year

income tax
Balance as at March 31, 2024

No.af Sharas Amount
4,87,500.08 4,875.00
4,3‘1.500,06 4,875.0(;
4,87,500.00 4 *315..00

Reserves and surplus

T in Thousano

Securities premium

In tarms of our report attached

For Vinodchandra R. Shah & Co.
Charfered Accouniants
FRN- 115324'\W

reserye Retuined earnings Total
13,125.00 826.47 14,011.47
- 415.07 415.07
Gther comprehensive income for the year, net of B
13,125.00 1,301.54 14,426.54
- 31.8% 3l.88
Othar comprahensive Incame for tha year, nat of
1%,125.00 1,3331.4z2 14,458.42
See accompanying notes fonming part of the financial statements
ra
MIRMAL JAGAWAT Chairpersan
RAVINDER FREM s L
Directars

Uday V. Shah

Partner

Membership Mo.: 035626
LIDIN: 23035626BGWNKVET702

Mumbal, =3 aprii, 2024

Mumbei, 2.3 Aprif, 2024
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CANMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATERIENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Continued

1

GENERAL INFORMATION
The company was [ncorporsted on December 13, 2014 having registered office at Forbes' Bullding, Charamjit Ral Marg, Fort, Mumbad, [ndia, Company is 100% subsidiary of Forbes &
Company Umited, Mumbal, (ndb. Company in the business of letting of orogerty on lease and rendering hospitality sarvicas,

SIGNIFICANT ACDOUNTING POLICIES

ih Stotement of Compliance

i)

vl

V)

vil}

The separzte financial statements have bean prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind A3| natified under Section 133 of Companies adt, 3013 [Companies (Indian
Arcountng Standards) Rules, 2015),

Ugto the year ended Mareh 31, 2016, The Company prepared its finanelal statemenms i actordance with the requitements of previous GAAP, which Includes Standads fatifed undier
the Cempenies [Accounting Standards) Ruea, 2005, The date of transition te Ind A5 is Aprt 1, 2015,

Tha saparate financlal siatements are presented (n addition tothe consotidated financial statemems presented by the Campany.

Basls of Preparation amd Prexentation

The caparate finanelal stataments have bean prapared on the historical vost basis axcapt for cartain financls| Instrurnents that are measured at falr values at the end of =ach reporting
period

For firancial repardng purpasss, 1alr value mea suramerts are catepor|sed 1nwo Lavel 1, 2, ar 3 basad on the cszres 1o which the [Aputs 1o the falr value messucements are ohservahls
2nd thve dgnificancs of the Inputs 1o the faic UaIUe measlrermant iy s ertiraty, whith ae deds fbed o folleas:

v Level 1 Inputs 2re quoted pelces (Lnad|usted) in aotive markets far | dentical sssets or Mabilites that the entity can stoess at the messurement date;
- Leveel 2 inplts Bre inpuld, other then queted prices included within Leve| 1, that are observable for the asset or linbility, wither directly or Ind | rectly; and
. Level 3 inputs sre upobservable (nputs for the assat ar lablliy

Al mesets and izhl|itfes have beety dassified 22 cirant aF han=Urient as per the Compamy's normal cperating cvcla and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il tathe Cammganios Act,
2913, Basad on tha ratura of products/act vities ef the Company and tha normal tme temwaen acquisitien of assers for proceseing and their realisation in cash and cash aquivalents,
e Carmpary had ascertabived its aperating cyels as 12 manths far the aurpose of cassificatian of 15 assets 2nd liekilities 25 current and nan currert ,

The preparation of the finaneial statements in conformity with Ind A8 requires the Management to make astimates and assumptions consfderad In the repored amaurts of assets
and Habllities {includ inz contingem fabllities) 2nd the reported Insttne £nd expenses during the yesr, The Manageant balleves that the estimates Used in prepuration of the financlal
staternents are prudent and reasomable. Future resulls could diffar dus to these gstimates and the diferences betwaen tha actual resulis and the estimatzs 2re recognlsed in the
peerlods in which the resuls are known / materlslsa.

Froperty, Plant and EGuipmant

Property, Plant and Equipment are to be stated at cest of acquishtion, less accumulatad depraciation and acsumu ared Impa|irment losses, i amy. The cost will comprises purchase price
{excluding refundabla mxes), berrewing costs [f eapltalization criteria are met and directiy attributable costof bringing the asset te its working condition for the inmtznded use. Amy
irade discounts and rebates are 10 be deducted in arrving 2t the purehiase price. Freehold land not ta be deprecistad,

Subsequent expend ituras valated 1o §n it of progdrty, plant and equipment ars to be added to jts carrying value anly when it s probable that the future economie benefice from the
asset will flow to the Cempany & cost can be rellably meadured,

Lossas arising from the ratiremant of, and gzing er logses srising fram disposal of aropery, plant and equlpment 2re 1o he recagnised in the stezaitant of prafit and kass,

Drerst ation an property, plant and =quiprment to be srovided s soaight ine et bsd 48 per e usefil |fe preserloed in Schadule 1 1o the Compankes et 2013,

Tha estimated usaful lives, residual values and e praciation method are to be reviewsd at the and of 2ach reparting perisd, with the affact of any changas in estimate accounted for
on 1 prospective basls,

Capital vweri-iteprpgress
Prajects unde r which tanglbhe Yned 2aszes 2me not vt vaady for thelr uin are to be camried at cost, comerising diredt eost, related Inddertal expenses and strmtable inb=res,

Imuastment property

Inie stmant prepe ties are props ties to be hakd to aarn rentals and,/or for capital appreciation (including g roperty under eamstruction far such purpasss). Investment proparties 2re to
be measured |nsccordance with Ind A% 18's mauirements far eoat medal,

Bun vt ik projpetly is 1o be deecognised upen ¢isposal o whan the investment proparty is permanently withdrawn from usa snd 1o fsture economic banerits 3re expected fram

the dispoaal. Any gain or less arlsing on derscogritien of the property (valculatad s the difference between the ret dispesal proceeds and the carrying amsunt of the asset) is to be
included in prafit or logs In tha period in which the property is dereeognised.

Intanglb /e Assels

intangible assats, baing computar software, are to be ctated at acquis’don cost, net of accomulated orme istien and aceu v Tmpalrment lossas, iFary. The cost will corm prise
augulsitinn amd impl=menta fon cose el sedowa e fo - e mal ues iocuding zoftwes e coding, installation, Lesting and certain data convemion).

Amortization s te be recegnised an a stralght-line basls aver their estimated waful lvez. The estimated watul lifs and amortization methed are to be reviewed at the and of each
reporting period, with the afect of any changes in estimate being acoeynted for o0 2 prospective bisis

Gains or losaes arising frem the retiremant or disposal of an intanglble asset are to be determined Ba the difference between the dispessl procesds and the earrving amourt of tha
aczatand areto be recognised as indome ar expense in the Statement of Prafit and Lass,

Intangikle assets wnder development

Expenditure on development eligible for capitatization is 1o be carried a1 intarsgibsla fssets Under develen ment whera sych assets are nat yet ready for their intended use.
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CAMPSBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES T FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED $15T MARCH, 2074 - Cantinuad

wili) Impalrment of Assels

Tha Company has ta assess at and of 2ach reporting pericd whether thers is any indication that an asset may be impalred. If ary such indication exists, the Compeny hes to estimate
tha recoverable amount of tha assat. The racevarablo amaunt Is the higher of an 2 5set’s fair value less costs of dispasal and Us|ug In use. IF sush recaverable amount of ta asset of The
raccwerable amount of the eaxh gaverating Unlt @ which the assel belores is lese than [t carmying armount, the camying amount s @ be reducsd to fts racaverable ameant, Trhe
raduglion fs to be traated a5 an mpalrment loss and |s recognised [n the statement of profit snd less If 2t the balance sheet cate there is an Indicaticn that 1 a previously assessed
impairment oz ne lohger exisis, the recouerable amount is t2 be rearsessed and the asset (s reflected attha {owar of regauzrable amount and the earrying araUnt thet would have
baen datarmined had ne Impalement koss be2n recopnisad.

Fhina nclal 1ngtru e nts

Finanelal assets and financlal Bakllicies are'recognised when a Company entity betomes a party to the contract Us| prewisions of the instruments,

Finansizl assets and financial liakllities sre initdally measurad at fair value. Transaction costs that ars directly anrfbutable 1o the actuisition or [s2us of fipanchsl 1sets and financial
l2bilitles (ethar than finanelal assets and financiz| lisbilitlz= at fair value threugh preflt of 0gsh are aeded ta or deductad fram the fair value of the finandal assets or Anandal Iz bilitias,
as approprate, @n Inftial recagn iton, Transaction costs diractly attrimntabla so the arquisiton of financlal assets or finsne el llsbilities at falr valde throush profit or [oss ars recommisad
Irimed | ateby in profit er (oas.

Finandial assets
All reccpnized financial assts are subsequently intasured In their entinety at sither smartiad cost or falr velue, dapending on the shssdication of the Bnancial assets.

COlagsificeghon:

Dabtinstrumams that meas the follewing condidens are subsequently measured 3t amortised eost

= the nssetia hald within a business model whase oljective is 1o hald 2sets in order to collact centractus| sash flows; and

- the cortraciual terms af the Instrument Zive rise on specilied 4ates to cash Nows that are solaly paymatsta of grinclpst and irterest on the principsl amount sulstanding.

all cthar finanzla) assets ave subde queint|y ie2 s red gt fa|r valee,

EMa chive Intd rest methed

The effactve imterest method ks 2 method of caiculating the amartised cost oF a debt instrument and of 2llocating Inte fes? income oyer the relevant pariod. The effectiva imtarass rame
e thi rate that axactty discounts estimated futire ceeh recelpts [including #if fees and points pald ar recaived that ferm an integral pant of the sMective (ntaract rda, transaction costs
and Gther premiums or discounts) through the axpacrad e of the da bt Instrumen, or, where appropriate, s sharter peried, be the net camying amounk on il racogn fion,

Incoma is recogrisad on an effective frterest basis for debt Insiruments other than those Arandial assets classificd &< at FYTPL. Interest incomm is recagnised in profit or loss and is
indudesd In the *Cther income® [ine itam.

Finarn tial asceas at fair walus through profis ae oss (FYTPL]

Financial assets at FVTPL are maasurad at falr value at the end of each raperting period, with any gains or lasses arising on remeasuremant recognissd in profit or less. The net gain or
lass reenpnised I prefit or las incorporates any 4vidend er alerast eamed on the finarcial assst. Dividend on Hnancial assets at FYTPL [2 recagnisad wihen the Company's rlght to
receive the dividends Is established, It is prababla that the econamic benefits associznad with the & vident will Aowr to the entity, tha dividend doas 7ot represent » recovery of part of
cost of the Investnent and tha amaurn of dividend can be maasured refiably.

bmpalyment of financiz| assets

The Company applies the expected oredit loss made| for racognising irpsirmer |oss on financial assets measured at amartfsed cost, Toan commitmems, Tade rackivables, finsncial
BURTE bt 5t dasighatad as at FYTPL and cther contractual rights to recedve gash or other finanaial asser.

For trade racelvablos or any contractval ¥ight to recelve cash or anather financial nsset that rasult from transactions that are within the seope of nd AS 18, the Company alwayy
measures the loss allowanee at an 1mount adual to fetime sxpscted cradlt logses,

Furthar, far the puirpose of maasuring lifwtime expecied eredit kess i "ECL"} allowance far trade rece vabias, the Covnpany has used @ practical expadienrt as pammitted under [nd A4S 109,
This expected cradit loss allowance |s computed basad on 2 provisiar matrix which takes nte 2ccaunt histarical ered it lass axperiznce and sdjusted for forvard-lecking informatian,

Fer racognition of imoairment loss on other financlal s2sets and risk avpasure, tha Company determ|nes that wheiher thers has been a significant inerease in the credit sk sines initiz|
recognition. if credit risk has nee incraased significanthy, 12-montn ECQL I used & provide for Impairment loss. Hewaves, 1# credit rlzk has incraased signficantly, ifetime ECL is used. I,
in a subsequent pariod, credit quality of the instrument improves such that thers i mR longer 2 BN fcant Increase in oredi risk snee [bal recagnitian, than the sntity reverts g
recognising im paivmant koes allewance based on 12-menth ECL.

Litetim BCL are the svpactad cradit (osses resulting from all possible defaukt zuznts vt tha expected |ifa of & fAnancil Mstrement, The 12 month ECL (s & aartisn ot the ifatime ECL
whith results frem default events thet are sassible within 12 months after the raporting date,

Daerwcignitian of finanlg| aesets
The Campany derecognises » financial saeet when the contractual righs tthe cash flaws fram the asset expire, ar whan [t 4ransfers the financial asset and subgiantially all the risks
and rawards of pwnership of the asset to ancther garty.

relpn exchongs xaine and losses
The fait value of financlal zssels denominated In s torefgn curreney is detarmined Tt that foreign curency and tranzlated at the spot rate at the =nd oF sazh reporting period. Far
forelgn cutrercy denominated financin| nssats messured 2t amertisad cost 3nd FYTPL, the exchanze differanees are racegn zad In prafit or kass,

Finoncial llabiktiss 313 gguity insbnaments
Clacelication as deb+ or equity

Debt and wquity instcuments issued by a Company 2 e classified as sither financial liakiliti 25 or ar eqUity in accordanca with the subslance of the contrastual ervangarents and e
defnitions of & finaneial |12kt and an equity instrument,

Equity instrumgnis
An equity Instrument is amy cantact that evidunces 3 rasidus| e est in the assets of an endlty sfter deducting sl oF it liabilities. Equity Instruments lssued by a group entity are
recognised ik the proceeds received, net of direct lssus masts,

Finanegigl
&l Arancial lizhilities 2re subsequently measured at 2martised cast using the sHact e iirterest method or af FYTRL,

Forfinanrial liab lit'=s that are dwrerringted in 8 foreign o rensy and are messured at 2mortdsed rost at the wrd of mach reporting pariod, the forelen exchangs gains and lasses ars
detarmined based on the amortlsed cost of the Instruments.,

Page 22 of 244



CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
MOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Continued

X

xi

=

il

i)

uiv]

Paeeuarition of financis| |laoditias

The Conpany derecognises financiz| |labildes whay, and anly when, the Compeny's okiigations 4ra disshanged, cancelled o~ have axpired, An exchange batween with a landar of debt
Instrumertts with substantilly differsnt tarms s aceounted for as an cxiinguishmant of the orlzinz| firanckal liability and the recagnition of & new financial liablity. A subetantinl
modification of tha terms of an existing financial |ability {whether or not atttbutable to the financial difficulty of the debtar) is accounted for as an axtinguishmant af the seiginal

financial liabitity and tha racognition of a new fipangial llability, The difference betwean the carving s mount of tha firancial |labllity darecognizad and the cansideration paid and
payable is racegnisad fn pratit or kass.

Impai g aF i . "
The Compreny hes applied the Impaimrent requirements of Ind AS 108 rewcspecthahy; however, as permitted by Ind A% 101, it has used reasonakle and supportznle fomatian thatis
avallable witheut urdue eost or effort 1o determine the credit risk o the date that financlal instruments wers R ally recogalsed In eresr to compera 1owith the cradit risk at the
transition date. Further, the Company has nat underiaken an exbaustive search for information when determining, ac the date of ansition 1o Ind 438, whether thame have haan
signdtleant incresses bncrecit risk sinee inftiai reogniton, as permitted by Ind AS 101,

Tanings per share
Basle Earnings per share 2re ealzulzted by dividing the net profit £ (lossh etter tx for the year attributabls to 2 quity shaveholdars of the Compary by the weightod avarage number of
wguiby shares outstand|ng during the year.

Prowidlons ard Contin pent Liabilrties
Prawfsions Bre recognised when the Coimpeny has a pres=at ob|igation (el or constructive) a5 3 tedlt of 3 past svent, it s probable that the Company will be required te settia ths
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the chgatian.

Fhe armetnt recognlved as 4 provision is the hest estimate of tha cansideration required ko settle the present chligation at tha and of tha raporting peried, taking fnt sccaunt the rsks
and unesreainties surraunding the oblization. When a provizion |s measured using tha cash flows astimeted to satths the srasent abligstion, its carying ameunt is the present valva of
thess cash flows {whan the effect of the time value of meney is matarial),

When some of 2| of the gcenomic banefits required to sattle 3 provision are exgectead e be recevered from a third party, @ receivabla is recopnised as an assetif It (s virually certzln
that ralmbursa ment wiil ke resaived and the smoum of the racelvable ean be measures reliabhy.

Camtingant lakility [ diselosed for ()] Possikle olligetions which will ba confirmed only by future events not whe by within the conirel of the Company ar {1} Prasent obligations arising
from past evamts whars It is not probabla that an sutflow of raspuress wiill be required to semle the obligation or 3 reliable sdmate of the smount of the abllgatlon cannat be made.

Ravenue racognition
Ravanue is meamared ot the fair value of tha considaration recelved ar recelvable.

Sada of Servicas!
2} Income from seryices is racegnized 3s and when the services ara parformed and accruad on time bass.
Bl Interestincome from 2 financial 2sset is recognised when it is peobable that the eccna mic senefits will flow to the Compary and the amount of incoma can be measured rsllably,
Interest income is acsrued Bn a time kasis, by rafarancs to tha smertsed cost and ot the 2ffective Inerest rate 8 pplicable.

Fereign Currenoy Transaclions
In preparing the Rnanefal statements of the Company #ntity, transactiens Ih curencies othar than the company's functional currency viz, Indian Rupes are recognised at the rates of

exchange prevalling 3t the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting peried, menetary itama Semominrzed in foraign cwmencies are retransiated at the rates prevailing at
thet date.

Exchangs differences on ran ety e e meeopnsed in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Laasa accounting

Lease accounting (applicable far the paricd snded 30 th June 2023)%
AS & lessee.

From 1 April 2019, l2ases are recognized sx s right-of-use asset and a eorresponding liakility % the date a1 which the leased assat i available for use by the Campany. Cortracts may
eontain beth luszs and hon lease momponents. Tha Company allocates the consideration in the cenbrests to the lease and non-lease componerts bused sn thalt relative standalone
prices, However, tha Campany has elected not 1o separate lease and non-leass companants 1nd jnetesd account for thase asasingle loace omponents.

Aseata and labilities ariing from a lease are nitially measured an prasant valus besis, Lease ligbilities include the net present valug of the Following lease gavments:

- fled peyments fincluding in substances fived paymmants}, (#2s any laass incsntive receivable
- theexercisa prive of the purchase aption f the Company is reasshably certaln te =k reize that aptian, and
- paymentsof penaltes for termineting the |eass, i the lease tarm reflacts the Company evercising that eption

Lease payrnents ta ba mads under masonsbly cartaln wxtensgion omtion are afso Included in the measuremant of the fiabllity. The lease paymznts sra dissounted uslg the |essea’s

neramertal borrowing rivte, befng the mate that lessee would have b pay ts eirow the fund recemary b cbimin an asset of smilar value to the Pght-of-use asset 11 3 simar econarm e
aniteninent with similar tarm, sscurity and conditions.

Te determing the incremental botrowing rete, the Company:
- whare pessible, Ues v cent third party financing received by tha (essae as 3 starting point, adjusted o refisems changas in finsrzing condition sies third paity firancing receivad

- uséabuild-up approach that starts with tha risk-frae interest rate adjustad for credh risk for Imazes, which does not hava razent third party Aasting, and
- muks pdjustrnan s specific io the leases, .. tanm, sucurfty, curieney ete.

Tha Campainy 13 exposed o potential Tuture fcreases i varizble leasa payments bosed on Index or rats, which are not includsd in the |sasa liability untll they ke sfect. When
adjustrent to lease payments based on [ndex or rate take affect, the |2 se lability 34 reassessed and adjusted against the rght-of-use asset,

Leasa paymants ava 8/locatad betweon principal and finance cost. Finance cost is chargad 1o Statement of Profit and Lass ever the lenss perisd 5o 82 b producs a menstant perodical
rate of Inferest an the remaining balance of the |labl ity far each periad.
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Right=cf=use nssets are measured at cost comprising the fallowing:
- the amount ol intfal measuremant of leass Habily

- any lease pavenents made 3t or bafore tha commansament date less 20y lease Incentves receivad
- anyiniial direct eases, apd
- restoration costs

Right-afuse assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of 1he asser's usetul lite and the lease term an 2 stralght fine besia. if the Company is reasonably certain ko exeraise
purchase option, the riaht-ofise 15set | depweciated over the underying asset's ussful life.

Frymants agacatad with sHort4em leires of sauipment and 5| leases of lowrvalue assats arm recognfzed on a straigheline basis in the Statepment of Profil and Lees, Shert term
lenzas ore laases with 2 fease 1arm oF 12 montha or less. Low value 3sat camprize eguipmens.

As a fessor:

Lente Incame from operating leazes whera the Campany [s a lessor is recognizac Inincome on g swaight line basis over the laass tam. [nitial o rest costs incurred in ubtaining 2n
oparating l=ases are added ta the carrying amount of tha undarlying assst and rscognized as 4xpensa over the lease tarm on the same basls a5 (2ase ineome. The respactiva lsasad
assets ore included 0 the talance sheat based on thelr nature, The Company did net naed 10 make any adjustments ta tha sseeynting for mseets hald a5 a bessor as a result of adegring
the new l=asing standard,

Lease accouniing lapplicabie for the perded ended 20th June 2023}

Qparming Leases

Leaszs, whare the lesser retaing, substantally afl the risks end rewards incidantal to awnership of the leased assets, are classifled a5 operating lease, Opersting (2as2 sxpense f Income
are recopn zed in the staterment of profit and bass an 3 strafght-|ine bas’s over the (eass term,

Tanes on |ncome

Tax expenge for the pariod, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are includad in the demrminathon of the net prafit or laas tor the peiiod, Currant tax s measured at the a mout
exnpected te be pald to the tax authoritle s in accordanca with the Ineome Tar Act, 1861,

Dafarmed tax is recognised on temporary diferancas betwean the earrying amounts of assets snd labilities in the 3sparate finencial statemeants and the careaspoending sax boses used
In the computetion of tmable praft. Deferred ta3 [|zhilities are generally recognised for all taxabla temporary o Ferences. Daferred tax acats are generslly recegnised for all
deduciible temparary differences to the sxtant that it 15 probatle that taxsdle profits will be avallable 333ihst which thase deductible temporary diffsrences can be utilised. Such
deferrad tax assets ond lisbilidas ara nat recagnised i the tamperary difference arises from the initlal racognition (ether than n & businass eembination] of azsats and %abfies in a
‘transaction that affects naither the toxasle profit nar the accounting arofl.

The earrying emout of defarred tax ascets is reviewad 1t the end of each reporting period ang reduced 1o the xtem that 7t is no ionger probabls that sufficiont tasable profits will ba
Fvailatle t allow all ar part of the asset te be recovered.

Geferrad tax lisbilities and astets sre messured al the tax rates that are expected to apply In the period in which tha liab ity (3 sattiad or the asset realised, based an tax rates (and mx
izws) that have been enacted or substantvely snacted by the end of tha reparing pericd,

Cuermnt and deferred tax ar# recognised In profit or 105, exce pe when they rzate 1o Ttems ther av recognised in other comarehensive INcomea or diretly in squity, In which c2sk, the
currant and deferred tax are 215 recogniseel |1 St 20 rpKs Hens e incomae or G rectly In equlty respactively,

tash and Cash Eguivalents

In the cash Mow slatement, cash and cash equivalents ineludes cash om hand, ehaquas, deafts on hand, balances in current accounts with banks, other bank daposits with criginai
mmiuritios of thres months or | ess.

Bormowing Dosts
Borrewing costs that ase attribitable to the acquisition or const ruation of qualifylng as=ets are easitalisnd. 4 qoslifying asswil 1= ong that necessarily 1okes a sLhstntial period of tirne T

€8t ready for fis intended Lse or sale, sre added to tha cost of thse assets; until such time as the assets are substantalty rendy for thale inmnded use or sale, Other borowing codts
ard FZOENiSed 53 an expense in tha peried In which they are incurred

Interest incame earned an the tsmporaty investment of spacific bomowings pending their expanditure on qualiying assets is deducted fram the borrowing costs elighle for
espitalisation.

All ethar borrowing costs are recognised In profic or loss in the perad In which they B incurred,

Segrent Regorting
An operating segmant is 3 component of the Company that engages n business actiyiies fram which it mey eam revenue and Incer axpenses, whese aperating razults are yegulary
revlewed by the Company’s chief sperating decision maker In ordar to effactively sllocate the Company's ressurces and szsast parfarmance,
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Continued

3. Property, plant and equipment

¥ in Thousand
As at As ot
31st Mar., 2024 | 31st Mar,, 2023

Cost or Deemed cost

Balance at 1st April, 2023 / 1st Awril, 2022 66.36 66.36
Additions o =
Risposa - -
Balance at 31st Mar., 2024 / 31st Mar., 2023 66.36 66.36

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance at 1st April, 2023 / 1st April, 2022 58.58 51.47
Depreciation expense 212 7.11
Balance at 31st Mar., 2024 / 31st Mar., 2023 60.70 58.58
Carrying Amount

Balance at 1st April, 2023 / 1st April, 2022 71.78 14.89
Addition - -
Disposal - -
Depreciation expense 2,12 7.11
Balance at 31st Mar., 2024 f 215t Mar., 2023 5.66 7.78
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES 8 HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Continued
4, Trade recelvablas

44, Trade recalvables- Currant

Z I Thousany

Page 26 of 244

As at As ot
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 3ist Mor, 2023
Trade receivablas
a}  Unsecured, considered good 456.86 127.66
b} Doubtful 18.41 -
Allowance for doubtful debts 18.41 -
Total 456.86 127 66
Trade receivables- Ageing schedule As at Asat
Range of Ofs period 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Undisputad Trada recefvables:
Unbilled - -
Mot Due - -
Less than € months 456.26 10925
& menths- 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years B -
> 3 years 18.41 18.41
Tatal A75.26 127.60
Leas: Provision made 12.41 -
456.86 12766
. Dther financlal assets
SA.  Otherfinanclal assets - Non currant
g jn Thousand
Asat As ot
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31sr Mer, 2023
a) Security depasits
- Unsecured, consldared sood 17,520.00 17.5260.00
Tolal 17,520.00 1752000




CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIM

ITED

NCTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Continued

6, 6A.  Cash and cash equivalents

Far the purgoses of the staterment of cash flgws, cash and cash equivalents Include cash on hand and in banks, net of
outstanding bank gverdratts, Cash and cash aquivalents at the end of the reporting period 25 shown in the statement of

cash flows can be reconciled to the related items in the kalance shest as lollows:

Particulars

Asat
315t Mar,, 2024

& in Thousend
As ot
SIstMor, 2023

Balances with Banks
a)  InCurrent accounts
h] Deposits accounts {with original maturity ugto 3 months)

6B, Bank balances

ay Indeposit accounts with original maturity of mora than 3 menthsbut less
than 12 months

7. Other assets

7A.  Other assets - Current

Particulars

454,41 716.58
453.41 716,58
1,000.00 1.000.00
1,000.00 1,000.00
? i Thousand

As at Asat

#1¢t Mar,, 2024

31st Mor., 2023

8) Advanges for supply of goods and services
- Unsecured, consicered good
- Doubtful
Less t Allowance far dotbtful advances

048
048

.40

o) Baknces with stetutory / governmens authorities

12.57

.42
4,32

Telal

12.57

4.81
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Cantinued

Expected credit loss for trade receivabies for the year ended 31st March, 2024

T in Thousand

Particulars Party Name Lessthan & | 6 Menths- | 2-2 Yezr | 2-3 Year Were than | Total
Months 1 Year % Vear
Undisputed Trade Recenables (Considerad Good)]
Afcans Infrastructure Ltd - - - 18.41 - 18.41
Forbes & Co, Ltd, 58.74 - J - E4.74
Shapowrji Pallon]! & Company Put. Lid. 327.45 - . - 327.45
Shapoorji Patlon]! Engrgy Private Limitad 30,39 - e - 30.3%
Shapoarji Fallonji Infrastructure Capital Co. Lid.
419 - - - - 24.19
Forbes Precision Tools 2nd Machine Parts Ltd. [Fn.] - - s - 5.00
Total d56.56 - - 1341 - 475.25
Less: allowancas for losses 1841
Total 456.86
Expected credit foss for trade recelvabies for the year ended 315t March, 2623
) * In Thausend
Particulars Party Name less Than 6 | GMonths | 1-2 Yeor | 2-3Yeor | More than | Tom!
Months 1 ¥eor 3 Year
1 Undisprtzd Trode Recefvnites {Consioered Gooa)
Afcons Infrastructure g - - 18.41 - 1841
Fortes & Co. Led. 95,86 - - . ¥5.56
ShapaorT Pallanji Energy Private Limited 12 349 - - - - 1235
Toit 16928 - - 18.41 127,66
Less: Aflownances for lnsses
Tote! 127.56

Page 28 of 244




CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
HOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDIED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Lontinued

. Equity Share Capital
¥ in Thousand

As at As at
Particulars 31t Mar, 2024 31st Mor, 2023
Authorised Share capital :
R00,000 fully paid cquity shares of T 10 each 5,000, 00 5,000.00
Issued and subseribed capital comprises:
4,87 500 fully paio enuity shares of T 10 eadch
4,875, 00 LE75.00
4,875 00 4£875.00
B. 1 Fully paid equity shares
Share; Share capital
Particulars {In Numbers} t_In Thousand
Balance 2s at Aprll 1, 2022 4,87,500 4,875.00
Mevements - -
Balance 83 at March 31, 20123 4,837,500 4,875.00
havements - -
Balance as at Marchdl, 2025 4.8?!500 4,875.00

Fully paid equity shares, which have a par value of ¥ 10, tarry one vote per shara and carry 3 right ta dividends,

€. 2 Details of shares hald by the holdiag company, the ultimate controlling party, their subsidiaries and associates

Fully paid ardinary shares

Az at Az ot
Particulars 315t Mar., 2024 315t Mar., 2023
Forbes & Company Limited, the holging company 4,87,500 4,872,500
Tatal 487,500 4,372,500

8. 3 Detalls of shares held by 2ach shareholder ho!ding more than 5% shares

Asat Asat
3lst Mar., 2024 315t Mar., 2023
Humber of shares % holding In the | Number of shares %% halding in the
Parteu lars held class of shares held class of sharas
Eully gaid eguity shares
Forbes & Company Limited 4,87,500 100 487500 1o
Total 4,87,500 100 4,87 500 10
8. Other equity excluding non-cantrolling intarests
¥ in Thousand
Asat As at
Farticulars dist Wear, 2024 318t Mor, 033
a) Securities premiue reserva
Balance &t beginning of the year 13,125.00 1313500
Movements E 3
Balance at end of the y=ar 13,125.00 33,125,000
b} Retained earnings
Balance ot beginming of year 1301.54 886 47
Frofit attributable to owners of the Company 34.88 41507
Balance at end of the year 1,333.42 1,301.54
Total 14,458.42 14426.54

Mete 1: The general reserve is used from time to time to trensfer profits from retained esrnings for appropriation purposes.
As the general ressrve 15 creeted by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of ather
comgrehensive income, items indudad in the general resarve will nat be redassified subsequently to profit or loss. | I
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Continued

10. buferred tax balances

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/{liabilities] presented inthe balance sheet:

£ /n Thousand

As at Az at
Particuiars 31st Mar,, 2074 31st Mor., 2023
Deferred tax assets 10.18 591
Ceferred tex liabilit/es - -
Net 10.18 591
Curvent Year [ 2023-24) ¥ in Thousand
Recognisedin Closing
Particulars Opening balance profit or lass Balance
Deferred tax {lablites) assets i relation to:
a) Property, plant and equipment 59 {0.64) 5.27
b] Expenses allowed on payment basis = 4,91 4.81
o Deduction u/s 350 L " d
Total {A) ... 5.91 4,27 10.18
a) Tex losses = - -
b} Others (MAT Crecy) - s .
Tatal (B} ... B - B
Total (448} ... 591 4.27 10.18
Previows Year { 2022-23) T ip Thousand
Fecognised in Closing
PoirLicuions Cpenmipg baignce grafit or hoss balonce
DPeferred tax fliohiities] asets in relmion to:
ol Proparty, plomt ond equipment 547 4% 5.31
b/ Deductionufs 350 . . B
Tadal {A) ... 547 0.45 3.91
a) Toxilosses R
b)  Others {MAT Creait] - - -
Tl (5) .. - - r
Tetal (A+3) ... S47 .45 591
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CAMPEBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH, 2024 - Continied

11. Other nan-current liabilities

L1A, Qther current Tiabilitie

Z fn Thousand

As at Asat
Particulars 31st Mar,, 2024 315t Miar., 2023
a) Advances from customers - -
a) Statuiory remittances 1.16 058
Total 116 253
12. Tradle payables
Trede payables - Current
Asat Asar
Particulars Alst Mar, 2028 31st Mar, 2023
Miera gnd small ertarprises - -
Qthers 146.02 108.87
Tatal 195,02 108.87

The avarage credit period on purchases of certain goods is generzally in range of 0 ta 30 days. Mo interast is charzed on the trade

payabies for tha first 3 to 30 days from the date of the invoice.

13, Tax assets and liabiliies

T i Thousand

As &t As ot
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 st Mar, 2023

Tax assels
Tax receivable 25.89 3367

25.9% 33.67
Tax lishilities
Ineeme tax payalle - -
Current Tax Assets {current portion) 0 =
Current Tax Assets (non-current portion) 25,59 3357
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED

MOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Continued

Ageling of Trade Payables for the year ended 3ist March, 2024

% in Thousand
Mardculars Party Hame Legs Than 6 & Months- | 1-2 ¥ear | 2-3 Year | More than | Total
Months 1Year 3 Yrar
1) Undisputed Trade Fayables (Considered Soog)
BEST Consumer Ne.853-210-027%6 2,51 - - - - 251
Supser Chiller 3617 - - 26.17
Forbes Facility Service Private L1, 88.05 - - - = B8.05
Rajan Amle [Tatw: Recharge) 329 - - - - 3.23
Vinodchandrz R, Shah & Co.- Prov. 16.00 - - - 16,00
Total 146.02 - - - - 146.02
i) Undisputed Trade Payables {Considered Doubtul) NA
il Disputed Trade Payak/es (Considered goad) hlA
iv) Disputed Trada Payahles (Cansidered Doubtful) MA
Agefng of Trade Payables for the year ended 31st March, 2023
% in Thousand
Farticulars Party Narme Less Than 6 Mol 6 Months-2 1-2 vagr | 2-3 Yeor | More thon 4 Tais!
i} Undisputed Trode Pavolbles (Constaered Sood)
BEST Consumer N 858-210-027%6 207 - - - - 207
Super Chiffer 1487 - - - - 14,87
Fortes Facility Service Private Ltd, 7403 - - - i 74.03
Vinodchandra R. Sheh & Co. 1600 = = = - 16.00
BEST Lonsumer Mo 85921002746 - Prav. 2.00 - - - - 200
Tctaf 108.87 - - - - 108.97
i} Undisputed Trade Poyables fCoasiderad Deubt ) NA
E) Disputed Trade Payables (Considered goad) Na
v} Dispuited Trade Payables [Conslderad Doubtiul) A
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Continued

14. Revenue from operations
I jn Thousand

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 1st Mar,, 2024 3ist Mar., 2023
a) Operating revenues
1] Rent and amenities 1,219.50 1,546.90
1i} Others 80.00 90.00
Total 1,300,50 1,636.90

15. Other Income

a}  InterestIncome
§ in Thausand

Year Ended Yeor Ended
Partigulars 31st War., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
i} Income Tax rafund 106 =
ii} Bank deposits 67 40 17.74
Tatal 68.46 17.74

16. Finance costs
T /o Thousand

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 3ist Mar, 20232
Intarest casts -
i} Intarest on loans from related parties (KCD) - -
iiy Intarast Others o 11.82
iil} Interestexpenses on gase liabilities {Refer Note 23) 777 12,52
Total .27 24,24
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Continued
17. Depreciation and amortisation expense

¥ in Thousand

Yaar Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2623
i} Dapraciation of property, plant and equigment pertaining to
cantinuing operations 2.12 7,11
i} Depreciation Right-of-use assets (Rafer Maote 23) 52.39 55.64
Total depredation and amortisation pertaining to continuing
uperaiims 54,51 61.75
18. A. Other expenses
T /n Thousand
Year Ended Yeor Ended
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
aj Pawer and fuel 124.45 £a.44
b} Repairs to :
i} Buildings 1.30 2.58
i} Others 432,10 25.20
44.40 28.08
) Rates and taxes {excluding taxes on incoma) 13401 27.10
d) Housekeaning, Laundary and Supplies 1,000.18 828.50
&) Communication 3.29 4.84
f} Legzl and professional charges 19.00 29.20
£ Provision for doubtfui trade raceivablas 1841 -
h} Provision far doubtful Igans and advances .49 -
i) Miscellaneous expenses 3.93 3.97
Sub Total 1,227.16 931.53
B) To Statutory auditors
1}  For audit y 16.00 156.00
1)  For other sarvices 180 1.50
i) For reimbursement of expanses 4.00 4.00
Sub Total Z1.50 21,50
Tatal 1,.243.66 1,005.03
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

19. Income taxes ralating 1o continuing operations
19.1 Income tax recognised in profit or loss

& in Thousand

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 3lst Mar., 2024 st Mor, 2023
Currant tax
In respect of the currant year 37.00 I50.00
Excess Income Tax Prowvision Written Back - (LG9}
in respect of prior years = -
Incorme Tax Expensas for earlier years .42 -
30.42 14891
Defarred tax
In respect of the currant year (4.28) {0.45)
In respect of the previows year = _
(.28} {0.45)
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year relating to
continuing Operations 35.15 148.26

The income tax experise for the year can be recondiled to the accounting prafit as Tollows;

% in Thousand
Year Ended Yeor fnded
Particulars 3dst Mar., 2024 31st Mar, 2023

Profit befare tax from continuing oparations 67.02 563.53
Income tax expense caleulated at 263 (Pravicus Year 26%) 17.23 146.52
Effect of Expenses not deductible 17.72 1.94
Effact of Expenses not deductiblz(d=p on lease accounting} =
Effact of cancession , deductions, othars =
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss jrelating to continuing
operatians] 35.15 14845

The tax rate used for the 2023-24 and 2022-23 reconclllatlans zbave is the corporate tax rate of 26% payable by
corporate entlties in India on taxable profits under the Indign tax law.

i
1G] unaBAl Jp
s ]
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

20. Earnings per share

g In Thousend

Year Ended Year Crnded
Particukars 31st Mar., 2024 3ist Mar, 2023
From Cantinuing operations T per share & per shore
Basic aarnings per shara .07 0.85
Biluted earnings per share 0.07 .85

20.1 Basic Earnings per share

The garnings and weighted average number of 2quity shares used in the calculation of basic eamings per share are as

Follerws.

Year Ended Yeor ended
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Frofit for the year attributable to owners of the Company (% in
thousand ) (A) 31.88 A415.07
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposas of basic
earnings per share {B} 4,87,500.00 4,87,500.00
Basic Earnings par share (A/B) 4.07 0.85

20.2 Diluted 2arnings per share

The sarnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share are as follows,

The weighted averege number of equity shares far the purpose of diluted earnings par share recanciles to the weighted
average number of equity shares used in the calculztion of hasic earnings per share as fallows:

Year Ended Yeor Ended

Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 Zist Mar, 20023
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 31.88 £415.07
Adjustments (descrina) -
Earnings usad in the calculation of diluted earnings per share [} 31,88 415.07
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of

Basic earnings per share 4,87,500.00 4,87,500.00
Adjustments [describe]

Weizghted average number of equity shares used inthe calculation of

diluted earnings per shara (B} 4,87 500.00 4,87,500.00
Diluied earnings per share [8/B) 0.07 0.85
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Cantinued

21,
211

21.2

1.3

Financial instruments

Cagpital management

The company manages its capital o ansure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return o
stakehalders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the compary consists of equity of the Company (comprising issued capital, security cremium reserve and
retained earnings.

Categorles of financlal Instruments”
€ in Thousand

Particulars 3dst Mar., 2024 | 31st Mor., 2023

Financial assets
Measured at Amaortised Cost

a) Cash and bank balances 1,454.41 1,716.58
h) Trade receivables A56.86 127.86
¢} Other financial assets 17,520.00 1752000

Financial liebilities
Measured st Amortised Cost
a} Trade payables 146.02 108.97

Financial risk management ohJectives

The campany monitors ang manages the financial risks to the operations of the company . These risks include credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Credit risk management

Based an the Company's monitoring of custamer cradit risk, the company believes that no Impairment allowance Is necessary in
respect of tradz receivables that are not past due or past due but not more than cne year.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity Risk Management implies maintenance of sufficient cash and marketable securitiss and the availatllity of funding threugh
an adaguate amaunt of committed credit lines to meet obligaticns when due. The company manzges liquidity risk by meintaining

adecuate funds, by continuously monitaring foracast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financizl 2ssets
@nd liahilities.

Liguidity risk tables

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractuzl maturity far its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed
regayment perlods. The tzhles have been drawn up baszd on the undiscounted cash flows cf financial lizb/lities based on the
earliest date an which the Company can be required to pay. The tatles include both Intersst and principal cash flows. To ths extent
that interest flows are floating rate, the rate applicable zs ef March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectivaly has been
considered. The centractual maturlty is based on the earliest date an which the Company may be reguired to pay.

T in Thousond

Maturities of Financial Liabilities 31t faar, 2024
Upta 1 yaar 1ta 3 years 3toSyears S years & above
Trade Payables - - - -
T in Thausand
Meotuelties of Fingncial Liabilizies ity a2 i
Upta i year 1to 3yeors 3tcSyears 5 pears 8 above
Trade Pavebles - - - =
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NITES T FINANCLAL STATEMENTS FAR THE YEAR: ENDZE 315T MARCH, 2024 - Contlnued

21,4 Financial Aisk management objectives

vddifignal gisclasure o Financial Statements bor the year ended 315t March, 2024

from Invested funds

Tre B 3ury Imvestment

Ratigs Aumszrator Deneminator 31st Mar,, | 31stMor, | Varaban Reasom for variangs
2024 20z3 (o)
Current Ratio {times) Current assets Current liabilides .38 1140 | -181.36% Decreased in Bank balance &0 in Liab.
Dbt g uity ratie [times Tenal debt Tootal equly 0 a 0.0
Dabt service coverage ratio (times) Earning for debt Debr servee v g 0.08
Rarturn on equity (%) et profit after tax fverage sharehaolders 0,04%. 8.5¢% -0.50% | Guast Housa incomae |s dacraasad in Current year
ag ey
|venbory tumavar ratlo {times) COGS AVErags |nventony i] o 0,074
Trade recelvables turnower Tatle {Hmes) Credit salgs Averags tride recslvable 0 o] 0n00%
Trade payable urnever ratie [timas) Het Tredit Purchases  [Average trade payables [+ a 0.00%
Het capital turnaver ratlo (Timeas} Credi sal=x working capital o.7E Fal- v d =27.04% | Guest Hoise insome 13 decrensed in Qurrent vear
Het prefit ratie (%) Met profit after tux Revanue from aperations 2.43% 25.36% «22.92% | Guest House Income |s d4craasad in Current yaar
Fetwrn on capital employed (%) Earnings before Caplts| employad 0.28%% 3.05% -LEER [Guest House (neomne |s dacreased in Currest year
intetest and @t
Retum en [nvestment {%) Ineome gemerated Loversge Imvested funds in 0.65% A51% -7.86% [Gurest House incoms s decreased in Current year

Gensral guidance pn camputation of ratios:
LEL]
Current ratio {times)

Formula

Current assets divided by current liabllithes. Both numerator and denominater cen be idardfisd from ths balance shaet

Debt-equiny ratko {thmas)

Total debt divided by equity. Both numerator and denominator can be ldentiflzd from the Salancs sheet

Dabt service coverage ratio {Umes}

Earnings avallaola for debt sarvice divided by debt zervice. Eaming for debt servies = et prefit after fmxes + Nan-cash aparazing LI )

depreciation and ether amortisatians + Intarast + other adjustments like loss on sale of PFRE ate. Debt service = Interest and principal nepayments
imcluding leese payrments

Returh o eqdity [56]

|nventary turnaver ratio ftimes)

Net profit after tax raduced by preference dividend (if any) divided by avarage shareholders equity.

COGS divided by svaraps invantsry, Altarhative computetion, if infermaticn not aveilable = sales divicsd by clasing Inventory.

[Trade reqelvables turnover ratie (times)

feceivablz,

Credit salay divided by average trade recelvable. Alte matve eamputation, [f information net availabbe = wots) gales divided by closing rede

Trade payakle turnover ratio (times)

payabie.

Credlt purchases divided by average trade payable. Alternatyve computation, [f information not svailabhe = tota| purzhaxns divided by ¢|os(ng trade

Nt capite| wmever ratio (tmes)

Nat profit ratio (%)

Sales divided by working capital working capltal =current assets minus current labilitles.

Net profit aftar tax divided by sales.

Aeturn an capital emnpioyed (%)

Earnings before Inverest and tex dividec by capita| amploysd. tap tal ern ployed —tangible net worth + total debt + deferred tax Hability,

Return on Investment (%)

Eculd be based on time we ghted rate of return (TWAR) method
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

22, (a) Related party disclosures
(A} Holding Company f Ultimate Holding Company

1
2

Shapoorii Pallon]i & Campany Private Limited (Wtimate Holding Compamy }
Forbes & Company Limited (Intermediary Holding Compary

(B) Eellow Subsidiaries (where there are transactions)

1

[T Wy RS S S T ¥ |

Fortes Camphell Sarvices Limited

Velkart Fleming Shipping & Services Limited

Afcons Infrastructurs Limited

Shapoor]i Pallonji Energy Private Limited {w.e.f, 5th Jan, 2023)
Shapoor|i Pallonji Infrastructure Capital Co. Limitad

Forbes Precision Tools gnd Machine Parts Limited

{C) Joint Ventures (where there are transactions)

1

Forizes Bumi Armada Lirmitad

Page 39 of 244



CAMPEELL FROFERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
HOTES TO FINAN CLAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 15T AR H, 2924 - Cominte: o

i1 Ralsted party diaclnzuresicod.|
[bjeransaet/ons fba amees with abo ia mantione d yelited pe e

Tt Miousand

Ukim e Hold/ng Felto s Siibs dburins
Cempany
) ] B E B ] a8
Shaprar| Fallonj| & {arbes & [9hng-20rp Valliaet Hamg  |Ehapoor) Pallend | Forbm Praciilan [Faale b oy
SompEny fre i, |[Sompany Limiced Inhastrmcii {Pelcninmgy | Shippingd Antrd: sl ol b Yool and Maghboa |5 ervices Put,
Frishtd Lnllod | Garekows Uid. [Caplie| £o. Lid. Farls Limlind Ll
Hagura 61 TRIREIEUE
Ctrinndin g
1 Trade Poyablcs . - - o .
z Tra84 R CEk AR 2 3ZAS 1841 3.1 - E ST o a
G da4p 1234 - - -
e it
3 RATE & O SArA2E CRErEes £13.50 - FL.E *0pg wx 52% 4
o0 - 20550 20,90 - -
D
) el s o g Chergs - - - o d
- - - - 9854
5 Inte e mn il Carpems De pasiE - . 5 -
F | Ovhar Bairmbon: s awne: - - - . o
- - [ar] o 3 L
Financa
a Dapcain Yahan - - = N
q Razamant of Oapill TaRat 3 - .

FIBU223 £ 28 tar imvewper bof Har prowlons pear,
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITAUTY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES T0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 15T MARCH, 2024 - Condnued

23,

Lasses aezounting

The Comany has sdosoed IND AS 116 " Lease " effective April,1 2013 zing the madified retrospective ansition 2nnrasch, kwsed on assessmant done by the managemant,
thare fe na matzdal Impact on the revenus recognition during the pestod. On adoptien of Ind AS 114, the Company recognized leass liab|fities In relation to leases which had
previausly teen classified as ‘operating leacas' undér tha principles of Ind A§ 17 Leases. These liab|[thes weara measured at tha present value of the rarriaining laase payments,
diseslinted using the lessee’s incremental borrewing mte ac of 1t April, 2015 was 10%.

The Company has slscted to messure the right-of-use assets at an amount equal to the leass Eabillty adjusted for any prepald or accrusd lesse payments that axisted at the
date of transtian,

{) Practical Expedierts = pplied on initial application dae

In applying ind AS 116 for the first time, the Company hes tee the fol owing practical axpedisnis permitted by the stapdard:

the Company has utilized the sxempiions provided for shar-tarm lesses {less than & year] and bedwes for |ow value assats.
Inital dirsct ecuks are ¢sclod ad from thie measure ment of fighe-of Use Sesets at the date of inktial applicatlan,

-

the Company has used & single discount rate to a portfalio of |as4s with reasonably similar charagterlstics.

the Company ha: apalied practical exped 25 on not to separate non-lease campane nt from (23328 an (nitfal mpRlicstion and instead accourts for thesa ad a
single lease componant,

the Company has relied on its previous assess ment on whether [2ases r= oreroys a5 a0 & ternative 1o performing an impalrmens revisw.

The Cornpany has elecred not to reasseds whether a contract 's, or contalng 2 lease e the dats of Inftal apglication, Instead, Tor coniract entered fnto before the transition date
the Compary ralisd eon it assessmert made applying Ing A5 17 and Appendix C toInd AS 17, Determinlrg whether ap arrangernent contains 3 lgase.

() Recondliation of lease commit mant b lease lability

The cifference betwaen the future minimum l=ass rental ¢om mitments towards non-cancellable operating leases and financa Jsases reported 33 at 31t March, 2024 eemparad
to the ese Nability &s aceounted a5 at st Aprll, 2019 s prifredly due ta inclusion of presant value of tha laase payrments for the cancallable term of the leases, reduction due ta
diszounting of the lease liabilitizs as par the recuiremant of Ind AS 116 snd exclusion of the camrritments for the ieases to which the Company fas chosen 10 cpply the practical
expadient as per the standard,

i} Amounts recognized in Balarce Sheat

£ fn Thousaad
Thee balance shaet shows the following amounts relating o l=ases:

Particulers 91k Mar,, 2122 2istMor, 2023

Right-of-use asseis

Building glze 104,78

Tatal 5238 104,78
T in Thousend

Partlculars 315t Mar, 2029 315t Mor, 2023

Loase kmhilities

Non-current 3.96 574G

Current 53.50 52,33

Total 57.47 109.65

Aditons 1o right-of-use asset during the curert Kinancial yasr were £ NIL
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES B HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Continued
b} Amwurta recegniaed In Statam ont of Profit 2nd Loss,

T In Thousone
The Statement of Profitand Loss shaws the Fallewing srmounts relating to [2asas:
Particulars Alst Mar., 1024 3ist Mor, 2023
Dag reclation charpe of right-of-Use adsaks )
Bullding ’ 52.39 5664
Total 52.39 SE.64
Intarast expense on lzase liabilley {included in financs cost) 797 1252
Expanss relating to short tarm leasas [Includzd in Gther Expensas) - .
Expanse relating te low value assets that are nat shown abeve a3 short term |eases | Included |n Other Extpepzasy - -
Total 8016 €2.16

The tta| cash cutflow for leases in the year andad 31at March, 2024 was ¥ 60,00 thousand

¥} Critical judgements In datermining tha lease term

In determining the laase term, maragement considers all facts ané cireumstances facts and circuMstancas That crestas an seone mic incentiva k0 exerclse an extenslen option,

ar net to axarcise a terminaton option. Extension cptlen [or period after terminstian sption} are only includad in the leass term iF the lewsa is reasonably certaln o be
=xtandact [or not terminated).

For the leases of oflicas premises, the following fa2tars are normally the most relevant:

1. IFthere is significant penalties to tarminate [or nat sxtend), the Company Is typleally e asohakly certsin to axtend [or not terminata)

L fany lezsehold imprevements wre expactad to hava a significant remaining valus, the Company is typically reasonahly certaln b axtend [or not terminatg)

3. Otharwise, the Company considers the othe  factors Including historical fease duration and the 2ests and busineas dherupdion reguimed to ropface the 2ased mat,

The leaze term is reassessad 1f an aption is actuslly sxsrcised (or nat exercisad) er the Compamy beearnas shfiged to exorcize) (L Tha assessment of reasanably certainty is only
revised if o significant event or 2 signlficant ghange In olreuMmstancas peturs, which affacts this assessment, #nd that (3 within contral of lasses.

The leasa tarm is raassessed if an eption iz actually exercisad {or not exereised) or the Cumpany becomes abliged to exercise] [ Tha azsezsmant of reasonably certainty is anly
revized if a significant avent or 2 significant change n circumstznces oecurs, which affacts this assssgment, and Hhatis within control af lessse.
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

L)

25

No amount is dug to Small Scale industries (S5} as at 31st March, 2024, as defined under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
Davealopment Act, 2006.

Figures for the previous year have been regrouped wheraver necessary.

In terms of our repart attached

For Vinadchandra R. Shah & Co. MNIRMAL JAGAWAT &3 1 3 t AAN ,P' Choirperson

Chartered Accoiintants

FRN- 115394W ; = i
RAVINDER PREM :

RUPA KHANNA @)%

- Directors
Uday V. Shah

Partnar

Membership No.; 035626
LIDIN: 23035626BGWNKVE702

Mumbai, 22 April, 2024 Mumbgi, 23 April, 2024
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EFL MAURITIUS LIMITED
(a wholly owned Subsidiary Company)

Financial Statements
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EFL Mauritius Limited 2
CORPORATE DATA
Date of
appointment
DIRECTORS Navun Dussoruth 02 December 2010
Subiraj Gujadhur 08 November 2012
Sunil Dhondiram Uphale 26 August 2016
Urs Meier 07 October 2019
ADMINISTRATOR Apex Fund Services (Mauritius) Ltd
& CORPORATE 4" Floor, 19 Bank Street
SECRETARY Cybercity, Ebene 72201
Republic of Mauritius
REGISTERED 4" Floor, 19 Bank Street
OFFICE Cybercity, Ebéne 72201
Republic of Mauritius
AUDITOR Nexia Baker & Arenson
Chartered Accountants
5% Floor, C&R Court
49, Labourdonnais Street
Port Louis
Republic of Mauritius
BANKER HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited

IconEbene, Level 5

Office 1 (West Wing) , Lot B441
Rue de L’Institut

Ebéne

Republic of Mauritius
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EFL Mauritius Limited 3

COMMENTARY OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The directors are pleased to present their commentary together with the audited financial statements of EFL Mauritius
Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended 31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is to act as an investment holding company.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results for the year are shown in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and related notes.
The directors did not recommend any declaration of dividend during the year under review (2023: EUR Nil).
DIRECTORS

The present membership of the Board is set out on page 2. All directors served office throughout the year.
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which present fairly the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company. In preparing those financial statements, the
directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

Company will continue in business.
The directors have confirmed that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Mauritius Companies Act 2001 and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The directors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern as explained in note 11.

AUDITOR

The auditor, Nexia Baker & Arenson, has indicated their willingness to continue in office until the next Annual Meeting.
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EFL Mauritius Limited 4

CERTIFICATE FROM THE SECRETARY
UNDER SECTION 166(d) OF THE MAURITIUS COMPANIES ACT 2001

We certify to the best of our knowledge and belief that we have filed with the Registrar of Companies all such
returns as are required of EFL Mauritius Limited under Section 166(d) of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001,
during the financial year ended 31 March 2024.

For Apex Fund Services (Mauritius) Ltd
Corporate Secretary

Registered Office:
4" Floor, 19 Bank Street

Cybercity, Ebéne 72201
Republic of Mauritius
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF EFL Mauritius Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

TO THE MEMBERS OF EFL Mauritius Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

TO THE MEMBERS OF EFL Mauritius Limited
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EFL Mauritius Limited 8
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024
Notes 2024 2023
EUR EUR
ASSETS
Non-current asset
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) 4 2 2
Current assets
Prepayments 5 7,631 479
Cash and cash equivalents 100,701 125,987
108,332 126,466
Total assets 108,334 126,468
EQUITY AND LIABILITY
Capital and reserves
Stated capital 6 28,720,231 28,720,231
Fair value reserve (31,171,954) (31,171,954)
Retained earnings 2,117,984 2,135,891
(333,739) (315,832)
Current liability
Other payable and accruals 7 442,073 442,300
Total equity and liability 108,334 126,468
These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on..........ccceeveeeveeeceeennneenne. and signed

on its behalf by:

Director

Director

The notes on pages 12 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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EFL Mauritius Limited 9
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
Note 2024 2023
EUR EUR
Expenses
Audit fees 1,287 5,341
Accounting fees 3,392 2,506
Bank charges 1,298 1,345
Directors' fees 2,773 2,245
FSC fees 1,401 1,713
Disbursement 116 303
Winding up fees 3,500 -
TRC fees 1,404 1,242
Registered office and secretarial fees 1,293 1,047
Other expenses 1,124 3,675
ROC fees 319 372
17,907 19,789
Loss before taxation (17,907) (19,789)
Taxation 8 - -
Loss for the year (17,907) (19,789)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (17,907) (19,789)

The notes on pages 12 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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EFL Mauritius Limited 10
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
Stated Fair value Retained
capital reserve earnings Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
At 01 April 2022 28,720,231 (31,171,954) 2,155,680 (296,043)
Total comprehensive loss for
the year - - (19,789) (19,789)
At 31 March 2023 28,720,231 (31,171,954) 2,135,891 (315,832)
Total comprehensive loss for
the year - - (17,907) (17,907)
At 31 March 2024 28,720,231 (31,171,954) 2,117,984 (333,739)

The notes on pages 12 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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EFL Mauritius Limited 11
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
2024 2023
EUR EUR
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before taxation (17,907) (19,789)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments (7,152) 3,337
(Decrease)/increase in other payable and accruals (227) 4,546
Net cash used in operating activities (25,286) (11,906)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (25,286) (11,9006)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 125,987 137,893
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 100,701 125,987

The notes on pages 12 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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EFL Mauritius Limited 12

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

(a)

General information

EFL Mauritius Limited (the “Company”’) was incorporated in Mauritius under the Mauritius Companies
Act 2001 on 02 December 2010 as a private company with liability limited by shares and has its registered
office at 4th Floor, 19 Bank Street, Cybercity, Ebéne 72201, Republic of Mauritius. It holds a Global
Business Licence issued by the Financial Services Commission.

The principal activity of the Company is to act as an investment holding company. As at 31 March 2024,
the Company’s primary investment is in Forbes Lux International AG.

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Euro (“EUR”).
Material accounting policies

The material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements, which have been
applied consistently, are set out below:

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) and under the historical cost convention except for financial instruments which are
stated at fair value or carried at amortised cost.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the directors to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management’s
best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis which assumes that the Company
will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The validity of this assumption depends
on the continued financial support of its shareholder. The directors are of the opinion that this support will
be forthcoming over the next twelve months on the basis of a letter of support received from its holding
company confirming that they will provide financial support to the Company.

The directors therefore believe that it is appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared on the

going concern basis which assumes that the Company will continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future.
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EFL Mauritius Limited 13

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

(b)

Material accounting policies (continued)

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations effective in the reporting period

There have been amendments and interpretations that have become effective for the current year. The
Fund has adopted the following new and amended IFRS:

Definition of accounting estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)

Distinguishing between accounting policies and accounting estimates is important because changes in
accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively, while changes in accounting estimates are
applied prospectively.

The amendments to IAS 8 focus entirely on accounting estimates and clarify the following:

- The definition of a change in accounting estimates is replaced with a definition of accounting
estimates.

- Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty”.

- Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements
to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty.

- The Board clarified that a change in accounting estimate that results from new information or new
developments is not the correction of an error. In addition, the effects of a change in an input or a
measurement technique used to develop an accounting estimate are changes in accounting estimates
if they do not result from the correction of prior period errors.

- A change in an accounting estimate may affect only the current period’s profit or loss, or the profit
or loss of both the current period and future periods. The effect of the change relating to the current
period is recognised as income or expense in the current period. The effect, if any, on future periods
is recognised as income or expense in those future periods.

The effects of changes in inputs and/or measurement techniques are changes in accounting estimates. The
definition of accounting policies remains unchanged.

The amendments are effective for periods beginning after 1 January 2023, with earlier application
permitted, and will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company
applies the amendments.

The amendment is not expected to have a material impact on the Company.

Disclosure Initiative: Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)

Making information in financial statements more relevant and less cluttered has been one of the key focus
areas for the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
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EFL Mauritius Limited 14

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

(b)

(©)

Material accounting policies (continued)

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations effective in the reporting period

(continued)

Disclosure Initiative: Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)
(continued)

The IASB has issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and an update to [FRS
Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements to help companies provide useful accounting policy
disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1 include:

requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies;

several paragraphs are added to explain how an entity can identify material accounting policy
information and to give examples of when accounting policy information is likely to be material;
clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are
themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed;

clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or
conditions are themselves material to a company’s financial statements;

accounting policy information may be material because of its nature, even if the related amounts
are immaterial;

accounting policy information is material if users of an entity’s financial statements would need it
to understand other material information in the financial statements; and

the amendments clarify that if an entity discloses immaterial accounting policy information, such
information shall not obscure material accounting policy information.

The TASB also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional examples on
the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are consistent with the
refined definition of material.

The amendments are effective from 1 January 2023 but may be applied earlier.

The above new standards and amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2024 and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. Those
which may be relevant to the Company are set out below. The Company does not plan to adopt these
standards early. These will be adopted in the year that they become mandatory unless otherwise indicated:
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EFL Mauritius Limited 15

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

(©)

(d)

Material accounting policies (continued)

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Non-current liabilities with covenants
(Amendments to IAS 1)

Under existing IAS 1 requirements, companies classify a liability as current when they do not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the
reporting period. As part of its amendments, the IASB has removed the requirement for a right to be
unconditional and instead, now requires that a right to defer settlement must have substance and exist at
the end of the reporting period.

This right may be subject to a company complying with conditions (covenants) specified in a loan
arrangement. Additional disclosure is also required for non-current liabilities subject to future covenants.

The amendments also clarify how an entity classifies a liability that can be settled in its own shares.

The amendments apply retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning after 1 January 2024, with
early application permitted.

The amendment is not expected to have a material impact on the Company.

Foreign currency transactions

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Company’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (“the functional currency”). The Company’s
performance is evaluated, and its liquidity is managed in Euro. The financial statements are presented
in Euro (“EUR”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in Euro at the rates of exchange rating
at the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting date which are
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Euro at the rate of exchange rating at that date.
Exchange differences are taken to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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EFL Mauritius Limited 16

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

(e)

()

(2

Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Company has a number of strategic investments in unlisted entity which is not accounted for as
subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities. For those investments, the Company has made an
irrevocable election to classify the investments at fair value through other comprehensive income rather
than through profit or loss as the Company considers this measurement to be the most representative of
the business model for these assets. They are carried at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value through other comprehensive income
reserve.

Upon disposal any balance within fair value through other comprehensive income reserve is reclassified
directly to retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment, in which case the full or partial amount of the dividend is recorded against the
associated investments carrying amount.

Purchases and sales of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised on settlement date with any change in fair value between trade date and settlement date being
recognised in the fair value through other comprehensive income reserve.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous year.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, for all temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes. Currently enacted
tax rates are used to determine deferred tax.

The principal temporary difference arises from tax losses carried forward. Deferred tax assets relating to

the carry forward of unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.
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EFL Mauritius Limited 17
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(h)

(1)

G

Material accounting policies (continued)

Stated capital

Ordinary shares and preference shares are classified as equity.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value being their issue proceeds net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
* Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“OCI”), and fair value through profit
or loss. The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With
the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs.

*  Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR)
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised, modified or impaired.

The Company’s financial asset at amortised cost includes cash and cash equivalents. The Company
does not hold other class of financial assets.

*  Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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G

(k)

Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
*  Impairment

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables, the Company applies the
simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

Financial liabilities
* Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liability includes other payable and accruals.
*  Subsequent measurement

Two measurement categories exist for financial liabilities: Fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) and amortised cost. Financial liabilities held for trading are measured at FVTPL, and all
other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost unless the fair value option is applied.

*  Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires.

Receivables

Receivables are carried at anticipated realisable value. An estimate is made for doubtful receivables based
on a review of all outstanding amounts at year end. Bad debts are written off during the year in which they
are identified.
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M

(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)

(@

(r)

Material accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.

Other payable and accruals

Payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost. The difference
between the net proceeds received and the amount payable is recognised over the period of the accrual
using the effective interest method.

Expense recognition

All expenses are accounted for in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on the
accrual basis.

Related parties

Related parties are individuals and companies where the individual or company has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions.

Impairment

At end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Stated capital

Stated capital consists of ordinary shares and preference shares classified as equity.
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3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts recognised in the financial statements and disclosure of
contingent liabilities. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected
in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the material accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the directors
have made the following judgement that has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.

Functional currency

The determination of the functional currency is critical since recording of transactions and exchange
differences arising there from are dependent on the functional currency selected. As described in note
2(d), the directors have considered those factors described therein and have determined that the functional
currency of the Company is the Euro ("EUR").

4. Financial assets at FVTOCI
2024 2023
EUR EUR
At fair value
At beginning and end of the year 2 2
Financial assets at FVTOCI as at 31 March 2024 includes the following:
Name of investee Country of Number LA
company incorporation  Type of shares shares  held Cost  Fair value
(Unquoted) EUR EUR
Forbes Lux
International Ordinary
AG Switzerland shares 3,300 8.97% 2,814,191 1
Forbes Lux
International Participation
AG Switzerland shares* 34200 100% 28,357,765 1
31,171,956 2

* The participation shares have no voting rights.
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4. Financial assets at FVTOCI (continued)

Financial assets at FVTOCI as at 31 March 2023 includes the following:

Name of investee Country of Number %
company incorporation Type of shares shares  held
(Unquoted)
Forbes Lux
International Ordinary
AG Switzerland shares 3,300 8.97%
Forbes Lux
International Participation
AG Switzerland shares* 34,200 100%

Cost Fair value

EUR EUR
2,814,191 1
28,357,765 1
31,171,956 2

* The participation shares have no voting rights.

Fair valuation estimation

IFRS 7 requires disclosure of fair value measurement by level of the following fair value

measurement hierarchy:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities — Level 1;

Inputs other than quoted prices as in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) — Level 2; and

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data — Level 3.

The following table presents the Company’s financial assets at FVTOCI that is measured at fair

value at 31 March:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
2024
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income - - 2 2
2023
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income - - 2 2

5. Prepayments
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2024 2023
EUR EUR
FSC fees 922 479
Directors’ fees 2,000 -
TRC fees 1,063 -
Registered office and secretarial fees 810 -
ROC fees 237 -
MLRO fees 773 -
Accounting fees 1,826 -
7,631 479
6. Stated capital
Number of shares Amount
2024 2023 2024 2023
EUR EUR
Issued and fully paid up:
Ordinary shares of EUR 1 each
At beginning and end of the year 15,001 15,001 15,001 15,001
Preference shares of EUR 1 each
Atbeginning and end of the year 28,705,230 28,705,230 28,705,230 28,705,230
Total 28,720,231 28,720,231 28,720,231 28,720,231
The Preference Shares shall have the following rights:

(a) The right to receive notice of and to vote at any meeting of the Shareholder, with each Preference Share having
one vote;

(b) The Preference Shares shall be redeemable at the option of the shareholder at any time between the period
following the second year of their issue until the nineteenth year of their issue. The Preference Shares shall be
redeemed at their par value, or at such other price as may be determined by the Directors; and

(c) The Preference Shares shall be convertible into Ordinary Shares at the ratio of 1:1, at the option of the shareholder

at any time between the period following the second year of their issue until the nineteenth year of their issue.
For the avoidance of doubt, one Participating Share is convertible into one Ordinary Share.
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7. Other payables and accruals
2024 2023
EUR EUR
Payable to related party (see note 9) 432,374 432,374
Accruals 9,699 9,926
442,073 442,300

The payable to related party is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
8. Taxation
a. Income tax

Under the current laws and regulations, the Company is subject to tax in Mauritius on its chargeable
income at a fixed rate of 15%. The Company is however eligible for a tax credit equivalent to the higher
of actual foreign tax suffered and 80% of Mauritius tax payable on its foreign source income up to 30
June 2021 (the “date”). Post that date, the Company will be taxed at 15% and entitled to a partial
exemption of 80% on all its income derived. Its operational expenses will also be proportionately
disallowed accordingly resulting into a net tax of 3% subject to the following subject conditions:

i)  employing, either directly or indirectly, a reasonable number of suitably qualified persons to carry
out the core activities; and

i1)  having a reasonable level of expenditure incurred in Mauritius, which is proportionate to its level
of activities.

The Company is a Global Business Licence Company for the purpose of the Financial Services Act 2007.
Interest income on call and deposit accounts from banks licenced under the Banking Act 2004 is exempt
from tax till 30 June 2021. Gains or profits derived from the sale of units or of securities by a Company
holding a Global Business Licence under the Financial Services Act 2007 are exempt in Mauritius.

No Mauritian capital gains tax is payable on profits arising from sale of securities, and any dividends and

redemption proceeds paid by the Company to its shareholder will be exempt from any withholding tax in
Mauritius.
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8. Taxation (continued)
b. Tax reconciliation
2024 2023
EUR EUR
Loss before taxation (17,907) (19,789)
Tax calculated at 15% (2023: 15%) (2,686) (2,968)
Deferred tax asset not recognised on tax losses 2,686 2,968
Tax charged - -

At 31 March 2024, the Company had accumulated tax losses amounting to EUR XXX (2023: EUR
75,167) and is therefore not liable to income tax. During the year, tax loss amounting to EUR XXX (2023:
EUR 34,543) has been lapsed. The accumulated tax losses are available for net off against taxable income
arising in the forthcoming five years only.

c. Deferred tax

A deferred tax asset of EUR 2,686 (2023: EUR 2,968) has not been recognised during the year in respect
of the tax loss carried forward as the directors consider that it is not probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the unused tax loss can be utilised.

9. Related party transaction

During the year under review, the Company transacted with the below related entity. The nature, volume
of transaction and the balance with the entity are as follows:

Name of Nature of Nature of Volume of
related party relationship transactions transactions 2024 2023
EUR EUR EUR
Forbes & Amount
Company Shareholder payable - 432,374 432,374

The above transaction has been made at arm’s length, on normal commercial terms and in the normal
course of business.
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10.

(a)

Financial instruments and associated risks
Overview
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Market risk

- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Compliance risk

- Capital risk management

- Political, economic and social risk

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk

The Company invests in shares denominated in Swiss Franc (“CHF”’) and conducts transactions in United
States Dollars (“USD”). Consequently, the Company is exposed to the risk that the exchange rate of the
EUR relative to the CHF and USD may change in a manner which has a material effect on the reported

values of the Company’s assets and liabilities which are denominated in CHF and USD.

Currency profile

2024 2023
Financial Financial Financial Financial
assets liabilities assets liabilities
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Swiss Franc (“CHF”) 2 - 2 -
United States dollar (“USD”) - - - -
Euro (“EUR”) 100,701 442,073 125,987 442,300
100,703 442,073 125,989 442,300

Prepayments amounting to EUR 7,631 (2023: EUR 479) have been excluded in the above figures.
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10.

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Company is exposed to the CHF and USD.

The following details the Company’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the EUR against the
relevant foreign currencies. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 10% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number indicates a decrease in profit where the EUR strengthens 10% against
the relevant currencies. For a 10% weakening of the EUR against the relevant currencies, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit, and the balances would be negative.

The exposure in CHF and USD currencies had no material impact on the profit during the year under
review (2023: Nil).

Interest rate risk

The majority of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing and as a result the
Company is not subject to significant amounts of risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
the equity indices and the value of individual stocks.

The Company invests in unlisted company whose securities may be considered to be illiquid. Such
illiquidity may adversely affect the ability of the Company to acquire or dispose of such investment. The
investment may be difficult to value and to sell or otherwise liquidate and the risk of investing in such
company is much greater than the risk of investing in publicly traded securities. However on account of
the inherent uncertainty of valuation the estimated values may differ from the values that would be used
had a ready market for the investment existed.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises when a failure by counterparty to discharge their obligations could reduce the amount
of future cash inflows from financial assets on hand at the end of the reporting period.

The Company’s credit risk arises principally from financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income and cash and cash equivalents. The Company’s policy is to maintain its cash and
bank balance with a reputable banking institution and to monitor the placement of cash and bank balances
on an ongoing basis.
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10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period was:

2024 2023
EUR EUR

Counter parties
Financial assets at FVTOCI 2 2
United States dollar 100,701 125,987
100,703 125,989

Cash and cash equivalents

The bank balance has been assessed to have low credit risk as at 31 March 2024 as it is held with a reputable
banking institution.

() Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the maturity of assets and liabilities of a company do not match.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding from
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity reserve on the basis of expected cash
flows.

The maturity profile of the financial liability is summarised as follows:

3 months to 1

On demand year Total
EUR EUR EUR
2024
Other payable and accruals 432,374 9,699 442,073
2023
Other payable and accruals 432,374 9,926 442,300
(d) Compliance risk

Compliance risk arises from a failure or inability to comply with the laws, regulations or codes applicable
to the industry. Non-compliance can lead to fines, public reprimands, and enforced suspension of
operations or, in extreme cases, withdrawal of authorisation to operate.
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10.

(e)

()

(2

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern in order to provide returns for the shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Political, economic and social risk

Further economic and political developments in Switzerland could adversely affect the liquidity or value,
or both, of securities in which the Company has invested.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income, cash and
cash equivalents and other payable and accruals approximate their fair values.

Accounting classifications and fair values - fair value hierarchy

The tables below analyse fair value measurements for financial assets and financial liabilities, by the
levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial asset and financial liabilities,
including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial
asset and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

Accounting classifications and fair values - fair value hierarchy

Financial asset and financial liabilities not carried at fair value but for which fair values are disclosed
below:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
2024
Financial assets at
FVTOCI - - 2 2
Cash and cash equivalents - 100,701 - 100,701
Total asset - 100,701 2 100,703
Payable to related party - - 432,374 432,374
Accruals - - 9,699 9,699
Total liabilities - - 442,073 442,073
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10.

(2

11.

12.

13.

14.

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Fair values (continued)

Accounting classifications and fair values - fair value hierarchy (continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR

2023
Financial assets at
FVTOCI - - 2 2
Cash and cash - 125,987 - 125,987
equivalents
Total asset - 125,987 2 125,989
Payable to related party - - 432,374 432,374
Accruals - - 9,926 9,926
Total liabilities - - 442,300 442,300

The Company recognises transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as of the reporting period during
which the transfer has occurred. There has been no transfer between the levels in 2024 (2023: no transfer
in either direction).

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis which assumes that the Company
will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Company incurred a loss of EUR
17,907 (2023: EUR 19,789) during the year ended 31 March 2024 and, as at that date the Company’s total
liabilities exceeded its total assets by EUR 333,739 (2023: EUR 315,832). The validity of this assumption
depends on the continued support of the shareholder.

The directors are of the opinion that this support will be forthcoming over the next twelve months and
believe that it is appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared on a going concern basis.

Events after reporting period

There have been no material events after the reporting date which would require disclosure or
adjustment to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Contingent liabilities
At 31 March 2024, there was no contingent liability arising in the ordinary course of business.
Holding company

The directors consider Forbes & Company Limited, a company incorporated in India, as the Company’s holding
company.
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Forbes Bumi Armada Limited
Financial Statements — March 31, 2024

Financial statements
- the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024,
- Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024,
- Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024,
- Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024,
- Notes comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,
- Comparative information in respect of preceding year ended March 31, 2023,
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Report on the Audit of the Financial statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Forbes Bumi Armada Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

2, In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we de not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, 252, Veer Savarkar Marg, Shivaji Park, Dadar (West),
Mumbai - 400 028

T +91(22) 66691500, F: +91 (22} 66547804 / 07
Registered office and Head office: Sucheta Bhawan, 114 Vishnu Digambar Marg, New Delhi 110 002

Price Waterhouse (a Partnership Firm) converted into Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP {a Limited Liabillty Partnership with LLP identity no: LLPIN AAC 5001)
with effect frorn July 25, 2014, Post its corversion to Price Waterhouse Chariened Accountants LLP, iis [CAT registration number is 012754N/MS00015 (TCAT registration

number before converslon was 012754N)
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Page 78 of 244



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Forbes Bumi Armada Limited
Report on audit of the Financial Statement
Pagesof 5 :

9. We

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

10.As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable. :

11, AsT
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

4y

equired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
8o far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in
paragraph 11(g)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) (“the Rules”). Further, in the absence of sufficient
appropriate audit evidence, we are unable to verify whether the backup of books of account
and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has been maintained on a daily
basis on servers physically located in India during the period April 1, 2023 to June 8, 2023. -

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on April 1, 2024,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A.”
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{(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i

il

iii.

iv,

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations which would impact its
financial position. Refer Note 30 to the financials.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31,
2024.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note 32(vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note 32(vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement,

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company uses an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and that has operated throughout the year for
all transactions, except that the audit trail is not maintained for changes made by
certain users with specific access and no audit trail has been enabled at the database
level. Further, during the course of performing our procedures, we did not notice any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with in the accounting software,
except for the aforesaid instances of audit trail not maintained.
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12, There is no managerial remuneration required in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Accordingly,
reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number:012754N/N500016.

b

&

Naresh Kumar

Partner

Membhership Number; 147384
UDIN: 24147384BKFEGE7445
Mumbai

May 29, 2024

Page 81 of 244



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 11(f) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Forbes
Bumi Armada Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Page1of2

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements
under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial centrols with reference to financial statements of
Forbes Bumi Armada Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2, The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the
Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal finaneial
controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the
ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error,

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasenable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial

statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by ICAI

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number:012754N/N500016

&

Naresh Kumar

Partner

Membership Number: 147384
UDIN: 24147384BKFEGE7445
Mumbai

May 29, 2024
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and
the books of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best
of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

i

ii.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
Assets,

The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification. In our cpinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

The Company does not own any immovable properties (Refer Note 3,4 and 29(i) to the
financial statements). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including

(e)

(a)

(b)

Right of Use assets) and intangible assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting
on whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying
the amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying
value of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets does not arise.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been
initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made
thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has
appropriately disclosed the details in the financial statements does not arise.

The Company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not hold
any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions and accordingly, the
question of our commenting on whether the quarterly returns or statements are in
agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company does not arise.

iii. (@) The Company has not made any investments, granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances

v,

in nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the
reporting under clanse 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b),(iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any
guarantees or security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186, Therefore, the
reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Q

£ : %
f“’ ﬂferadnmsﬁ‘“r
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Page 84 of 244



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Forbes
Bumi Armada Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Page 2 of 4

vi.

vii, (a)

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.,

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under

sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the services of the Company.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues,
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Also, refer note
31 to the financial statements regarding management'’s assessment on certain matters
relating to provident fund.

{(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause {a) which have not been deposited

viii.

ix. (a)

(b)

(c}

GY

(e)

0

X. (a)

(b)

on account of any dispute.

There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961,

The Company did not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the
year, the reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared
Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

The Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not raised funds on short-term basis. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies during the year. Accordingly, reperting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year, Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

- D
8 012754500
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xi, (a)

Xii.

(b)

(c)

xiti,

xiv,

XV,

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither
come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed
or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under
Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central
Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and as
represented to us by the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received
during the year by the Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company,

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to
it, the reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24
“Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company
is not required to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act and,
accordingly, to this extent, the reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal
audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the
Act,

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him, Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with
the provisions of Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company,

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during

the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

{c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC} as defined in the regulations made

by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

Ly )
BN 0127545098
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(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company,

Xvii.

xviii,

xix.

the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016} has five CICs as part of the Group as detailed in note 29(iv) to the financial
statements. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information
provided by the management is accurate and complete.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year.,

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
the reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios (Also refer Note 29 to the financial statements), ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)} of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause
has been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Y

Naresh Kumar

Partner

Membership Number: 147384
UDIN: 24147384BKFEGE7445

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29, 2024
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As ab

As at

Notes March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

ASSETS
Non-cuwrrent asscts
Property, plant and equipment 3 - -
Right df use of Assels 4 {a) - 12,448.65
Intangible assels 5 - -
Financial asgels

Other financial nssets &(d) 37,236.61 14,7151
Delerred lax assels {net) 7 14,675.94 8,900.10
Ineame Lax assels {net) ] 54,630.01 97,267,553
Other ngn-current assels q 36,535.55 36,335.58
Total non-currcnt assets 1,43.077.54 1,59,866.37
Current assets
Finaneial assats

1. Investments &(a) - 9,95,388.43

ii. Trade receivables 6(b) 37,02,000.51 19,52,973.75

fii. Cash and cash equivalents i{3] 11,537.19 26,025,78

iv. Olher financial assets 6(d) 7746721 96,690.93
Other currenl assets 10 32,972.15 14,111,435
Taotal current assets 30,13.977.06 30,86,000.8.4
Taotal asscls 40,57,054.60 32,55.957.21
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Eyuity
Equity share capital 11{a) 5:50,000.00 5,50,000.00
Other equity
Reserves and surplus 14(h} 19,83,097.90 16,00,815.26
Total equity 25,33,007.00 21,50,815.26
LIABILEITIES
Non-current liabilities
Emplayee benefits abligations 12 8,122.42 5,882.92
Total non current liabilities 812242 5,882.92
Caryent liabjlities
Financiat liabilities

1. Lease labilities 4(b) - 14,017.09

{i. Trade payables

a. total antstunding dues of micro and small enterprises 13(a} 4,160.85 3,012.71
. total outstanding dues other than {fla) abave 13(a} 44,001.07 50,526.55

ili. Other financial liabilitias 13(h) 11,22,400.00 9,42,388.70
Emplovee benefils obligations 12 TREL 720.50
Other ewrrent Habilities 14 2,05,205.95 79,593.39
Total current labilities 15,15,834.28 10,99,259.03

Total equity and liabilities

40,57,054.60

32,55,957.21

The above balance sheet should be vead in cothmetion with the accompanying ioles.

The accompanying notes  to 34 are an integral parl of these financial statements,
This is the bolance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Mo. 012754N/N50006

Ravi Shankar
Direclor
DIN: 02031400

Naresh Kumar
Partner
Membership Number: 147584

Plaee: Mumbai
Date: May 29, 2024

Place: Mumbai
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\E
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{AI amownts in Rs, hundreds, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Year ended Year ended
© Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Revanue from operations 15 68,36,914.73 57.77.273.78
Other inconie 16 67,011.62 1,00,871.25
Total income 69,03,926.35 58,78,145.13
Lxpensges
Employes benefits expense 17 63,24,428.67 51,84,800.00
Depraciation and amoriisation expense 18 12,448.65 29,876,709
Other expenses 19 84,413.99 50,821.20
Finance costs 20 - 223,78 2,476.08
Total expenses 64,21,515.06 54,78,078.16
Profit before tax 4,82,411.29 4,00,071.97
Inenme tax expense a1

- Current tax 1,06,000.00 90,000.00

- Deferred tax (5,706.43) 4,364.14
Total tax expense 1,00,200.57 9.4,364.14
Profit for the year 3,82,210.72 3,05,707.83
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations (net) 12 G6.11 156.40
Income Lax relating to above 21 (24.19) {39.59)
Other comprehensive incame for the year, nek of tax, 7102 117.10
Total comprehensive income for the ycar 3,82,282,64 3,05.824.93
Earnings per equity share {Face value per share Rs, 10)
Basie and Diluted 26 6.95 5.50
The above stal tof profit and loss should be read in comfunction with the accompanying wotes.
The accompanying notes 1 ta 34 ave an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Statement of profit and loss referred to in our repat of even date.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No. o12754N/N500016

\ .

Naresh Kumar Ravi Shankar Venkata Sethuraman
Partnar Director Divector
Membership Number: 147384 DIN: 02031400 DIN: o52p2601

Place; Mumbai
Date: May 29, 2024
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Year ended

Year ended

Nates Mareh 41, 2oug March 31, zoz3
Cash flow from operating activitics
Profit before tox 482,411,209 4,00,071,97
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1B 12,448.65 29,876.79
Finance costs 20 22375 2,476.08
Dividend income 16 (26,166.21) (56,6.40.60)
Fair value gain from Investment 18 (11,551.32) {13,032.75)
Interest income 16 {1,06.38) {g66.50)
Unwinding of interest on fnancial assets 19 758.56 180065
Unwinding of discount oo security deposits 16 (822561 (1,836.52)
Luoss on sale of investments 14 96.66 25,00
Met forelgn exchange difference {24,551.38) 47215
4:31,723.26 3,64,353.10
Change in operating assets and Habilides:
{Increase) in trade receivohles (18,14,519.55) (3,60 552.74)
{Increase) In Other Ginanclal assets {2,337.28) {42936.82)
{Increase)/ decrease in Other current assets {18,860.70) 1,827.90
[ncreaseff Decreass) in Other current Yabilides 2,25,652.50 (53,938.25)
[ncrease in ather current Anancial labilities 1,80,055.18 34.415.51
Increase in employee benefits obligations 2,3G1,52 2,265.93
increase in trade payables 24,012.66 B.030.74
Cash (used in) operating activities (9,71,022.35) (86,533.69)
Income taxes paid (net) a (83,362.48) {92,614.45)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (A) (10,34.384.83) (1.79‘149.2)
Cash flows from/(eacd in) investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investments 10,30,455.6G 5/00,000.00
Payments {or purchase of investments (23,552.10) (4,00,867.10)
Dividend receiwad 16 26,166.21 56.649.69
Bank fixed deposit given {897.10) {1,860.01)
Interest received on fixed deposit 16 1,06..78 g66.50
Net cash inflow from investing activities (B) 10.33,237.08 1,54,788.27
Cash flows from/(used in) from Finanelng actvities
Principle elements of lease payments {14,017.09) (35.514.82)
Interest payment lease liahilities {223.75) {2,476.08)
Met cash outflow from Financing activities {C) (14,240.84) (37,990.00)
Net {(decrease) in cash and eash equivalents A+B+C (15,388.59) (62,351.77)
Cash and eash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 26,925,758 8q,276.02
Lifects of exchonge rate changes on cash and cash equivalents - 153
Cash and eash equivalents at end of the vear Gle) 11,537.10 26,925.78
Cash and cash equivalents cormprse of !
Cash on hand - 197.00
Balance with Banks
In current accounts 1130719 26,728.78
11,537.19 26,025.78
The aboue siak 1 af cash flows showld be read in comftmction with the aecompanying notes.
The accompanying notes 1 by 54 are an integral part of these (inancial statements.
This is the Statement of cash (lows referred ta in our report of even dats,
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Dirvetors -

Firm Registration No, 012754M/N500016
4o

Nar¢sh Kumar
Pattner

iiembership Number; 147389 [HN: 02031400

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 29, 2024
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Forbes Bumi Armada Limited
Statement of changes in equity
(Al amounts in Bs. hendreds, nitless otherivise stoted)

A, Equity sharve capituf

Noteg Amount
As at April o1, 2022 5,50,000.00
Changes in equity share capital 11{a} -
As at Maeeh 31, 2023 5,50,000.00
Changes in equily share capital 11{a) -
As at Mareh 31, zozg 5,50,000.00
B. Other equity
Reserves and Surplus
Other
Retained earnings  Comprehensive Total
Income
Balance as at April o1, 2022 11{b} 12,04,626.14 3610 12,94,990,33
Profit for the year 3,05,707.33 - 3,05,707.83
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - 117.10 117,10
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 3,05,707.83 117,10 3,05,824.93
Balance as at Mavch g1, 2023 16,00,333.97 481.20 16,00,815.26
Balance as at April 01, z023 (b} 16,00,333.97 481.29 16,00,815.26
Profit for the year 2,82,210.72 - 3,82,71072
Other Comprehansive Incomae for 1he year - 71.92 7192
Total Comprehensive Incame for the year 3,82,210,72 7H,02 3,82,282.64
Balance as at March 31, 2024 19,82,544.69 55321 19,83,007.00

The above skdement of changes in equity should be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes,

The accompanying notes 1 lo 34 are an integral part of these financial sialements.
This is the Statement of changes in equity refarvad to in our repot of even date,

For Price Waterhouse Charteved Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Boavd of Directors
Firm Registration No. ¢12754N{/Nso00016

Ve N
Ravi Shank Venkata Sethuraman

Drirector Director
DIN: 02031400 DIN: n5z226801

Narvesh Komar
Partner
Membership Number: 147384

Place; Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 20, 2024 Date; May 28, 2024
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Forbes Bumi Armada Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

Background

Forbes Bumi Armada Limited {the ‘Company’) is a joint venture between Forbes Campbel] Finance Limited and Burni Armada
{Singapore) Pte. Limited, Refer Note 11{a) for shareholding details, The Company has been granted a Recruitment and
Placement License from the Director General Shipping and accordingly pravides manning services.

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in India, The registered address of the Company is Forbes Building, Charanjit
Rai Marg, Fort, Mumbai-400001.

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on May 28, 2024,
1. Material Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant
pravisions of the Act.

{ii) Going Concern

The Dirvectors of the Company have assessed its liquidity position and its possible sources of funds, The Board of Directors
are confident of the Company’s ability to meet its obligations in the next twelve months from the balance sheet date,
Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

(iii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer & liahility in an orderty transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unohservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financlal statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

= Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

The assets and labilities reported in the balance sheet are classified on a “current/non-current basis”, with separate
reporting of assets held for sale and liabilities. Current assets, which include cash and eash equivalents, are assets that are
intended to be realised, sold or consumed during the normal operating ¢ycle of the Company or in the 12 months following
the balance sheet date; current liabilities are liabilities that are expected to be settled during the normal operating cycle
of the Company ot within the 12 months following the close of the financial year.

(iv) New amendments issued adopted by the Company
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 (the ‘Rules’) which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April

2023.

The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements. The other
amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of elarifications,

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company in the current or future reporting periods

and en foreseeable future transactions, Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made
toInd AS 12 as the Company accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory treatment.
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Forbes Bumi Armada Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the yvear ended March 31, 2024 {continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation

{c)

(i) Functional and presentation currvency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
envitonment in which the entity operates (‘the functional curvency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian
rupee, which is the functional and presentation currency of the Company,

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions ave translated into the functional currency vsing the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss. These gains/ {losses) are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within
other gains/ (losses).

Revenue recognition

The Company earns revenue from providing manning services. Revenue is recognised on cost plus basis as per the terms
of the contract.

The Company raises monthly invoice toward manpower charges and other allied charges as and when due based on the
terms of the contract as at the year end, the unbilled amounts are disclosed as “unbilled revenue”, The Service income
represents markup-up earned on support services provided to customers,

Revenue from manning services and support services is pravided over the period of time, where it is received and
consumed simultaneously by the customers and accordingly revenue is recognized over the period of performance and in
the accounting period in which the services are rendered,

The Company is considered to be a principal for revenue from manning services transaction since it controls a promised
service before transferring that service to the operator, in this case, the transaction is recorded in gross in the statement
of profit and loss. In case of service income, the Company is acting as an agent since it only arranges for another party to
provide a service to the operator with a mark-up, and hence, revenue is reported on a net basis.

The company uses the following indicators to determine if they control the service:

« The Company has the primary responsibility fo the service meeting the operator’s expectations;

« The Company is directly involved in the selection of candidates to perform the services to the operator;
+ The Company bears the associated risk;

- The Company has procurement risk;

« The Company has pricing latitude meaning it has the discretion to establish the price for a service.

{d) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences
and to unused tax losses,

The current income tax charge is caleulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation, Tt establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the tinancial statements, Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses enly if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority, Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceabie right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously,
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es to the financial statements as at an r the year en Maveh 31, 2024 {continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
direetly in equity, respectively,

(e) Leases

f)

ay

e
AAC-s007~ 2%,

As a lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date which the leased asset is available for
use by the Company.

A contract is, or containg, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset,
the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset; (i) the Company has substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease, and (iii) the Company has the right to
direct the use of the asset. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts tor these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities are [nitfally measured on the present value basis, Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

«  fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

= variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially meagured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date.

»  amounts expected to be payable by the company under residual value guarantees,

- theexercise price of purchase option if the company is reasonably certain to exercise the option and

= payment of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the company exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If the rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar valee to the right-
of-use asset in similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Lease payments are allocated between prineipal and finance cost. The tinance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period 50 as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or market data)
which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the Company uses that rate as a starting point to determine the
incremental barrowing rate.

Right of use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

= The amount of the initial measuwrement of lease liability

« Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
« Any inftial direct cost, and

= Restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s usetul life and the lease term on straight line
basis. If the company is reasonably certain to exercise purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s usetul life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all the leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis in profit and loss, Short term leases are leases with a term of lease term of 12 months or less.

Impairment of assets

Asszets arve tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use,
Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which ave largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
{cash-generating units). o
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Forbes Bumi Armada Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the yvear ended Maych 31, 2024 (continued)

{g) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other shart-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

{h) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value, The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective
of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures themn subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less loss allowance.

(i) Investments and other financial assets
(i) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
« those to be measured subsequently at fair value {either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss),

and
= those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of
the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
(ii} Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the group comrnits
ta purchase or sale the financial asset.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset (excluding trade receivables which do not contain a
significant financing component) at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

(iv)Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets cariied at amortised
cost, The impairment methodology applied depends on whether theve has been a significant increase in eredit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Finaneial Instruments,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised trom initial recognition of the receivables.

For other financial assets including cash and bank balances, the management has assessed the loss allowance on a case to
case basis considering the different risk factors and contractual terms for each of the balances. Such assessment requires
significant management judgement based on financial position of the counter parties/depositories/banks, market
information and other relevant factors.

The Company has receivables only from group Contpanies, which does not have a history of default, accordingly the
expected credit loss assessed by the management is Nil.

(v)Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

- the Company has transferved the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

« retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(vi) Income recognition

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the -
tatement of profit and loss as a part of other income,
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Forbes Bumi Armada Limited
Notes tp the financial statements as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow tothe Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

(i) Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and eguipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives which is as prescribed under Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013, as follows:

Assets Useful life
Computer Hardware 3 years Office
Equipment 5 years

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to iis recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount, These are included in profit
or loss within other gains/ (losses).

(1) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation. Intangible assets are amortised on a
straight line basis aver their estimated useful lives. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible
asset are determined as the difference behwveen the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The amortisation rates used are:

Asget Useful life
Computer Software 6 years

(1) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent Liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior te the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 to 45 days of recognition. Trade and other payables
are presented as cwrrent liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

{m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions: Pravisions ave recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there
is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date and are not discounted to its present value.

In case some or all of the expenditure requirved to settle the provision is virtually certain to be reimbursed by another party,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. In the Statement of Profit and Loss, the expense related to the
provision is presented net of the amount recognized for the reimbursement.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an cutflow ot resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
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Forbes Bumi Armada Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended Maych 31, 2024 (continued)

(n) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees'
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilitles
are settled, The Liabilities are presented as eurrent employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(a) Leave entitlement

The employee of the company is entitled to leave as per the leave policy of the Company. The liability in respect of
unutilized leave balance, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the end of the year end are
treated as short term employee benefits, The obligation towards the same is measured at the expecied cost of accumulating
compensated absences as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year
end,

(ii) Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) defined benefit plan such as gratuity
{b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund

(a) Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit eredit methad.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outtlows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting pericd on government bonds that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the
fair value of plan assets, This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet,

Changes in the present valie of the detined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

() Defined contribution plan

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publically administered provident funds as per local regniations, The
Company has no further payment obligations ence the contributions have heen paid. The contributions are accounted for
as defined contributions plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefits expense when they are due.

{0) Contributed Equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(p) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, been appropriately authorized and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

(q) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision malker.

The board of directors of the company is considered has the chief operating decision maker which assesses the financial
performance anad position of the company and malkes strategic decisions. See note 27 for segment information presented,
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Forbes Bumi Armada Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

{r) Earnings per share

(s)

2.

{i} Basicearnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

= the profit attributable to owners of the Company
« by the weighted average nwmnber of equity shares outstanding dwing the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

{ii) Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eainings per share to take into
account:

= the after tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded oft to the nearest hundreds as per the
requirement of Schedule IT1, unless otherwise stated.

Critical Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal
actual results, There are no critical estimates and judgements ascertained by the management that may materially impact
the results of the financial statements,
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Forbes Bumd Armada Limited

Motes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 4, 2024 (continued)

LA qurovmls in Rs. humdieds, unless otherise stated)

3. Property, plant and equipament
Particulars Office Coimputers Total
equipment
Year ended March i, 2023
Grass carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amaunt 6, 12102 257271 B,Ban.73
Additions - - -
Closing prross carrying amount 6,121.02 2,772,771 8,893.73
Accumulated depreciation
Opening lated depraciation 6,121.02 277270 8,893.73
Depreclation charge during the year - - -
Clesing accwmulated depreciation G,121,02 2,772, 71 8,893.73
Net carrying amnount - - -
Year ended March 31, 2oz
Gross carrying amount
CQpening gross camying amount 6,121,02 2,772.71 % B03.73
Additions - - -
Closing gross cayrying amount 6,121,082 2,772,771 8,893.93
Accamulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreclaion £,121.02 2,772.71 8,893.73
Depreciation charge during the year - - -
Cloging lated depreciation H,121.02 2,772.71 8,893.73
Net carrying amount - " -
4. Leases
(a) Right of use of Assets
Asat As at
Leasehold premises Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gross carrylng amount '
Opening grass carmying amount 1,52,403.58 1,62,403.53
Additons - -
Llosing grass earrying amount 1,62, 403.58 L,62,403.58
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 1,49,054.93 1,20,078,14
Depreclation charge during the year 12,448.65 20.8976.70
Closing ac lated depreciabdon 1,62,403.58 1,49,954.93
Net currying amount - 12,448.65

(b) Leose Liabilitles

The Company has taken office premises under leave and license acrangemant, The lease term is for 5 years but may have extension and
termination options. Mursbant to transition ta [nd AS 116 from April 01, 2019 ehwards the company has recognised Hght-ol-use assets for the

tease. The Company does not have short term lease or low value leages.

Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Linbilities - 13,017.09
- L4, 017,09
The Following is the movement in lease Habilides during the year ended Maxch 21,2024
Prrtdenlars As at As at
March a1, 2024 Muorch 31, 2023
Opening Balanee 14,047.00 449,331.91
Finance cost acenved duming the year 223.75 2,476.08
Payment of Lease Liabilities (14,240,841 {57,900.90)
Clasing Balance 0.00 14,047,049
Ar t recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Particulars Note As ot Asat
March a1, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation chorge of dght-oi-iise assets 4 12,448.65 29,876.79
Lease Rent 1% 26,812,094 -
Interest expense (included In finanee costs) 20 223.75 2,476.08
8% 85.54 3235287
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Forbes Bumni Armada Limited
Nates to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

AN amiouns in Rs. inmdreds, wnfess otherioiss stated)

Net debt reconciliation

" . Asg at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025
Cash and cash equivalents 11,537.19 26,925.78
Lease Llabilitles - {14,017.00]
Net debr 11,537.19 12,908.69
Particulars I Cash and Bank ['en's.e Tatal

obligations

Net debr as at March 31, 2022 fg,276.02 (40,531.01) 49,744.11
Cash flow {62,351.77) 35.514.82 {26,826.95)
Foreign exchange adjustment 153 - 153
Tnterest expense - {2,476.0:8) {2.476.08)
Interest paid - 2,476.08 2,476.08
Wet debt as at March 31, 2023 26,9:25.78 {L§,017,059) 12,908.60
Cash Mow {15.388.59) 14,017.09 (1,371.50}
[nterest expense - (=23.75) {223.75)
[nterest paid - 22375 223.75
Net debt &z at March 31, 2024 11,537.19 {0.00) 11,557.19
Note 11

Total maturities of tease Habllities as at March 31, 2024 is NIL (Previous year; Rs 14,007.09 in hundreds) as mentioned in note 23(h)

5. Intangilble assets

Computer
Parteulars

Software
Year ended Mavreh 31, 2023
Opening gross carrying amaount 2,763,00
Disposal -
Closing gross car amount 2,763.00
Opening accumulated amortisation 2,763,00
Dispasal -
Cloging lated amortisation 2,763.00

Net carrying amount -

Year ended March 31, 2024

Gross carrying amount

Openlng gross carrying amount 2,763.00
Disposal -
Closing gross carrying amount 2,763.00
Accumulated amortisation

Opening aocumulated amortisation 2,763,00
Dilspasal
Closing aceumulated amortisation 2,703,000

Net carrying sanount -

//Zhartmed

& o ‘\'p\.N AAG-50¢7 - \
e )
&

Lt rlfz-?s 1 N.'Nsﬂ“‘l

1

Page 100 of 244



-3

Gia)

6(b)

é{c)

&}

Farbes Bumi Armndu Limited
Noles 1o the financial staterments og atanl for the year ¢nd el March 21, 2024 (conlinued}
CAM armimes i R, andveds, smfess othenise stedod)

Finnncinl nszels Agal As Al
Mareh g, 2o Mareh 31, 2023

Current inyestimenty

Linvestrvent b utunl funids

Unguoted - Cucried nl Fair yalue thiraugh profit & loss Afe

NIL (Frevious veni: 240558.396) Units in Adityn Birla Swe Life Mutaal Fund - AB3L Liquld Fund- Duity | DCAY- Regular Plon - #,50,045.99
NTL (Previous year: 21a368.81) Units in 1CIC1 Prodential RMutwal Fund - Liguid fund - Takly 100 - 2,10,680.58
NI1L (Previous year ; 24474.08 } Unils in HDFC Liquld Fund - Daily [DOW - 2,42.581-35
N1L{Previous year : 14359.65} Linite in ST -bagiwm Vitra 3hort Duration Fond Regalar Plan - Caily 1DCW - = 4508197
Tatal vestmend in mutual finds - 2,95.388.90
Tetnl curcenl invealimenls - 005,308,093
Aggrepate amount of quoled investinents and market volue thereol - 4,55,188.97

ggregale amount of unquoted investment - -
Aggregnte amount of impalrment [n the valae af invesiments - .
Trede receivables

Trade receivables from reluted panles (Reter note 25) 424208367 19.5%,970.75

Unhilled revenue {Refer nole ag) * 5,684 3, 20,000.00
Tolal receivahles 7,902,040 ¢.51 19,352,973+
Cutrent portion 47.02.000.50 155297373
Mon-current portion - -

Brenkenp of sccllnly delnils
Trade ivobl dered good - U A 37:.92,000.50 19152,875,. 75
Tatal 2,00 0.51 19,5: R

*The recejvable is 'unbilled’ because Ihe Campany bos not yet iasned an invaice; however, the balance hag been included under rade receivables because it is an ditlonal right to 1
Aging of trade receivablet
Outsianding for following periads from the dne date
Unbilled Nol Dne Less “'::m & & m::nl:s -t 1-2 yenr 23 year More vhan 3 year Total

As atMarch a1, 2024
Undisputed imde raceivables

Considered pood el 91684 6,05.645.27 13,25,652.24 7:08,014.09 71t 87187 - - 37/92,000.51
Tolal 5.49.916-89 6,95,645.27 11,25,652.24 708,514.29 711,871.87 - - 37,92,000.51
As at Marcch 31, 2023
Undisputed lrode receivables

Considered good £,00,000.00 3:%1,101.87 7187188 - - - - 19,52.073.75
Tolal 920,000,000 3,21,104.87 71,871,860 - - - - 19,52,573.95
Cash and cash equivalenls
Balences with bonks
in current accounls L5374 >6,728.78
Cosh o1 hand - 19700
Total enab wid cash equivalents 153740 26,025.78
“There are na repatrialion restrictiona with regavd to eash ond eash equivalents s at the end of the reporting pericd and prior pedod,
Other Bnancial psseis

As nt dMarch 31, 202 As nl March 31, 8023
Curvent Non-current Currend Non-curcen

Security Deposils TrAG7a1 2062500 a5590.03 -
Bonk depasit will more than 12 months moturity* - 161161 1,000.00 14, 7FE4.50
Total glher Buanciol assels 77‘.’62.21 32&"“.6: 2(:‘&20‘23 Limifse

* of ihe abm 2 B3 1500000 hundreds is held as llen ngalos! bonk guorantes
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Forbes Bunid Arsada Limdted
MNotes lo Lhe financlal slaiements as el and for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continucd)
Al et ts Gn Ba, dinedveds, unde ik o)

7 Daferred Inx nsacls

Asnl Asm
March 3r, 20y March 31, zo23
Tux elfect of ilems constilulng deferred tax ausels

Disallowances under Section yofa)ia), yoa{7} and 43B of Ihe Ioomea Tax Act, 1961 14.237.24 1708488
Timing dlife betyean book bala d balat [ Tax Acl, 1961 [t . 1 and equij ]
inning difference aan ance ond balahce us per Inoome Tax Acl, 1961 [or property, pland and equipmenl 1o 50004
Lease Lia - 3875
Tolal deferred tax asscts £4,675-34 17,989.37
Tax effecl of itenis cansiiiuting defecred lax liabilillea
Otler liminy differences - 2.083.27
Total ileferved bax Babilites - 989,27
Net deferred lnx sssels 14,575.94 8,000,190
AL, t in deferred tox assets
Timing
difference
Disallowances between book Le
ufs 40i{7)and  balawce and U hn]s; Cther Grand Total
438 balauce as per nhilitied
Income Tax
Act, 1961
As'ut April 01, 2022 1087107 59397 1813.72 an By 13,303.63
(Charged)feredited;
=10 profit of loss 53,20 (36,23 (418,97 {nzad) (4,364.14)
- g ather eomprehensive inesma {39.29) - - - {3g.30)
As at March 31, zazg 17,084.88 509,74 39475 15,089.27) 3,900.10
{Chorgediferedited:
- 10 profit o loss {283 45) {764) (394751 goln.o7 579943
- to olhier comprehensive lneonie (24,19} - - - {24.19)
Az al March g1, 202y 11,237,2.4 .|=384o - - 14,675.34
Asal Asal
Meavch g1, 2024 Alarch 31, zoag
8, Inconie X assels (Net)
Non-currenl lnx ossets
Opening balance 5.07,161.92 FRFES PPk
Less: Pefund recelved {66,231.77) (27,679.40)
Add: Tax paid {including tax deducied ot source) 1,20,504.55 1,520,003 G
Closing balance BTS2 -0 FHT165.G2
Correot lux linbilities
Cpening balance L R:LTR ) 3,19.804.30
Add: Current tax peynble for the year 1,04, 00D, 00 O £HI0.00
Closing balance 5i5894.39 +09,89.4.49
Tolal Income tax assets {net) 54,630.01 07, 26753
9. Ollier non-curvent asscty
Balnnce with govermnent aulhorities (Amaount paid under protest)
Telal non-cnrrenl assels
10. Olther current assets
Advance Paid o vendat z0.408.16 -
Balonces with govenutienl authorilles 430.00 45000
Prepaid expenses 12,113-99 1366145
Tolnl vther turrenl nsels 32097215 L;111.95

Ipinbal

01275 ININD
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11{a)

11(b)

Forbes Bumi Avmuda Limited

Notes to the Anancial statements as at and for the year ¢nded March 31, 2424 (continued)

(Al ¢ in Rs. lnmdreds, irtless othertiise stated)

Equity share capital and other cquity
Equity share capital

Authorised equity share capital

As at April o1, 2022

Increase during the year
As at March 31, 2023
Inerease duning the year
As ot March 31, 2029

(i) Movemnent in equity share capital (Issued, subscribed and paid up capital)

As at April e1, 2022
Shares issued during the year
A5 at Mareh 31, 2023
Shares issued during the year
Asg at March 31, 2024

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

Par value of share
{Amount in Rs)

10

Number of shares Amount
1,00,60,000 10,00,000.00
1,00.00.0-00 lo,uu,oon.-nn
1,00,00 0110 10.00,000.-00
£5,00,000 5:50,000,00
55,00,0-00 5‘50,000;00
@oo,o-oo §,§o,oao.‘oo

The Company has one class of equlty shares having 2 par valus of Bs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held, They entitle to partielpate in dividends
and in the svent of Rquldation, the equity shareholdets are eligible 1o receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferentiat amounls, in proportion to

thelr shareholding.

{ii) Details of shareholders liolding more than 5% shares in the Comgany, which are also the shar

Forbes Camphell Finance Limiled and Nominees
Bumi Armada (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

{iii) Dretails of shareholding of promoters:

lder of the C\

As at March 31, 2024

As atMarch 31, 2023

MNumber of %% %
ahares holding Number of shares holding
28.05.000 51% 28,035,000 51%
26,995,000 49% 26,056,000 49%
55,00,000 55,040,000

As at March 31, 2029

As at March 31, 2023

Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of
Namie of Promaters Numbers of total muflher change dsring Nuambers of total nu.mlfer of change durli’ng the
shares shares
of shares the year shares year
Forbes Campbell Finance Limited 28,04,995 FLODY Wil 28,04,995 51.00% fail
Bumi Armada (Singapere) Pre. Lid 26,095,000 18.00% il 26,505,000 49.00% il
Other individual Jointly with Forbes
Comphell Finance Ltd:
Prashant Pradhan L 0.00% Hil 1 0.00% Nil
Mirmal Jagawat 1 2.00% Hil 1 0.00% Nil
Pankaj Ehattar - 0.00% il 1 0.00% Nil
Amna Kelkar 1 0.00% Hil - 0.00% Nil
Ravinder Prem 1 ©.00% il 1 0.00% Nil
Vikram Magar 1 0.00% il 1 0.00% Nil
56,030,000 55,00,000
Asgal Asg at
Reserves and surplus Mavch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Retained eamings 10,83,067.90 16,00,815.26
Total Reserves and Surplus 19,83,097,.90 16,00,815.26
As ot Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Retained enimings
Opening balance 16,00,815.26 12,0:4,990.33
et profit for the year a82,210.72 2,05,707.83
items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
- Remeasurement of post-emplayment benelit abligatlon, net at tax 7192 11710
Clasing balanece 14,83,047.90 16,00,815.26
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Forbes Bumi Armada Limited
Notes to the financial staternents as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)
{4l amounts in Rs. hundreds, unless otherwise stated)

Employee benefits obligations
As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Current Non-current Taotal Current Non-eurrent Total
Leave abligation 444.00 - 444.60 451.10 - 45110
Gratuity 33172 813242 8,454.14 269.40 5,882.92 §,152.32
Total provisions 776,41 Ba22.42 8#,898.83 220.50 5,882.092 6,003.42

{a} Leave obligations
The leava obligations covar the Company's Hability for earned leave,

The amount of the provision of fs.444.60 hundrads {Previous year: Bs 451.10 hundreds) iz presentsd as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional rght 1o defer settlement

for any of these obligations.

{b} Post-empleyment obligaHons - Gratuity

The Company provides for geatuity for employees in Indla ag per the Faymenl of Gratwity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous service for 8 period of 5 years are eligible for geatuity.
The amount of gratuity poyabla on retirementftermination is Uie employees last dravwmn basie salacy per month eomputed propottionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the nember of years

of service.

(¢) Defined contribotion plans

The Company also has certain defined conlribution plans, Centributions are made Lo Provident fund in India for emplayees al Lhe vate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The
contributions are made Lo registered provident fund administered by the Government. The obligation of the Company is limited 1o the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor
any consbruelive obligation, The expense recognized duning the year towards defined contribulion plan is Rs. 4,473.81 hundreds {Previous year: Rs.4,278.76 hundreds).

(i) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation aver the year are as follows:

Balance as at April oi, 2022

Currenl gervice cost

I[nierest expense

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Eemeasuremsanis

{Gain)floss from change In flnancial assumptions

Experience {gain)/loss

Total amount recegnised in other comprehensive ineome
Benelfit Paymenls

Balance as at March 31, 2023

Balanee as at April o1, 2023
Current service cost

Inlerest expense

Total nmount recognised in profit or loss

Remeasurements

{Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions

Experience {gain)floss

Taotal amount recognised in other comprehenszive income

Benefil Payments
Balance as at March 31, 2024

(ii} Significant estimates; Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis
The significant actuaviat assumptions were as [ollow :
March 51, 2024

6.97%
10%

Discounl rate
Salary growth rate

(iii) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the detined benetit obligallon Lo changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Present Value of Obligation

4,065.63

1,974.32
268.86
2,2:43.18

(211.88)
55.29
(156.49)

G,152.32

6,152.32

1,967.07
430.86

2,397.93

129,58
{225.69]
(96.11)

8,454.14

March 31, 2023

7.16%
10%

Change in ption Impact on defined benefit obligation
March 31, Marels 31, Inereagef March 31, March 31, Incrense/ March 31, March 31,
2084 2oy Decerease 2024 2023 Decrense 2024 2023
Discounl rale 1% 1% D o 0,190.57 6,734.53  1ncrease to 7.805.46 5,6473.64
Zalary growlh rals 1% 1% Increase to 9,050.64 6,048.22 Decrense lo 7,846.83 567211

‘The above sensilivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all olher assumptions constant. In practice, this ia unlikely 1o oceur, ond changes in some of the
assumplions may be correlated. When caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation Lo significant actuarial assumptions the same method {present value of the delined benefit
abligation calculated with the projecled unit eredit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied 2s when caleclating the defined banefi liability recognised in the balance sheel,

The methods and types ef assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not chonge compared 1o the prior year,
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13.

13(a)

13(b)

14.

Forbes Bumi Armada Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024 (continued)
(AN amounts in Rs. humdreds, wdess otherwvise stafed)

Employee benefits obligations {continued)

{iv) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit abligation is 7.02 years (Previous year; 7.32 years). The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

Behwveen Between
Less than a year 1-2 2-5 Over 5 years Total
years years
March 31, zozg4 33472 740.55 2,203.553 3,521.36 6,806.16
Mareh 31, 2023 269.40 267,57 1,653.89 2,600.40 4,881.26
{v) Assets liability comparison
Year March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024
EY( at the end of period 2,10%,24 2,446.19 4,0685.64 6,152,532 B,454.14
Blan Assats - - - - -
Swplus/{ Deficit) (2,103.24) (3,:446.12) (4,065.63} {6,152.32) {8,454.14)
Experience adjustment on plan assets - - - - -
Az at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial liahilities
Trade payables
Current
Trade payables: micro and small enterprises (Refar note balow & note 283 3,360.85 3,012.71
Trade payables; others 58,984.76 45,572.77
Trade payables to related parties (Refer note 25) 25,106,31 13,953.78
Total trade payables 8745102 62,539.20
Aging of trade payables:

Outstanding for following periods from the due date

Move than 3

Unbilled Not Due Less than £ year 1-2 years 23 years years Tatal
As at Mareh 31, 2024
Undisputed trade poyables
Micro and small enterprises - 3,360.85 - - - - 3.360.85
Dthers 17,336.37 61,267.84 5.86.86 - - - 24,0091.07
Total 17,336.37  64,628.69 5,486.86 " " - 8745102
As at Mavch 31, 2023
Undisputed trade payables
Micro and small enterprises - 3,012.71 - - - - 3,012.71
Others 14,473.60 45,252.05 - - - - 59,520.55
Total 14,473.60  48,0065.66 - - - - 62,539.26

Note:

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the "Micrg, Small and Medinm Enterprise Development Act, 2006" is based an the information available with the Company regarding
the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received fram them on request made by the Company, There are no overdoe principal amounts/
interest payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment mada to such suppliers during the year or any earlier years
and accordingly there is no interest paid or outstanding interest in this regard in respect of payments made during the year or brought forward from previous year.

Other finaneial liabilities

Current
Eniployee benefits payable 11,22 40000 9,42,388.79
Total other financial liabilities 11,22 ,400.00 9.1%,388.79

Other current liabilities
Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source 2,05,205.05 79.593.29

Total other current liabilitics 3,05,205.05 79,593.39
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15,

16.

17

18,

19

20.

Forbes Bumi Armada Limited

Noles to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

fAll amaounts in Rs. hundreds, unless otheruoise stated)

Revenue from operations
Revenue from contracts with customers
Income from manpower services (refer note 25)
Other operating revenue
Service income (refer note 25)
Total vevenue from operations

Other income and other gains

Dividend income from investments mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit orloss

Net fair value gains from investments mandatarily measured at
fair value through profit or loss

Interest Income

Unwinding of discount on security deposits

Interest on income tax refund

Other income

Met foreign exchange differences

Total other income

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident fund {Refer note 12)
Contribution to National Pension Scheme
Gratuity (Refer note 12)

Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefits expense

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3)
Depreciation of ROU of Assets {Refer note 4)

Amortisation of intangible assets {Refer note 5)

Total depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses
Unwinding of interest on account of security deposits
Lease Rent
Insurance
Travel and conveyance *
Director's sitting fees (Refer note 25)
Payment to auditors
Audit Fee
Tax audit Fee
Legal and professicnal fees
IT expenses *
Communication charges
Bank charges
Electricity charges
Net loss on sale of investments
Miscellaneouns expenditure
Total other expenses

Finance costs
Interest on lease liabilities
Total finance cost

*# Certain expenses pertain to related party, for details refer note 25
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Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

67,85,107.54 57,39,805.24
51,807.19 37.468.54
68,36,014.73 57,77,273.78
26,166.21 56,640.60
11,551.32 13,932.75
1,064.38 966,59
822,56 1,836.52
4,667.61 2,906.30
- 3,791.60
22,739.54 20,787.90
67,011.62 1,00,871.35
63,15,345.62 53,86,328.72
4,473.81 4,278.76
2,210.00 2,048.02
2,397.93 2,243.18
L.31 .41
63,24,428.67 53,94,899.09
12,448.65 29,870.79
12,448.65 29,876.79
758.56 1,809.65
26,812.94 -
2,587.30 2,025.00
1,923.53 4,520.15
1,500.00 1,300.00
8,000.00 £,000.00
1,000.00 1,000.00
12,047.00 14,086.00
13,831.35 6,136.97
1,543.93 1,304.85
519.90 644.01
9,333.50 8,783.60
16.66 25.00
2,719.23 1,184.77
84,413.99 50,821.20
224.75 2,476.08
223,75 2,476.08




a1,

Forbes Bumi Armada Limited
Notes to the financial statemcents as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)
(Al amounts in Rs. hundveds, unless othervize stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2024
Income tax expense

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Current tax:

Current tax on profits for the year 1,06,000,00 90,000.00
Total cunvent tax expense 1,00,000.00 $0,000.00
Deferved tax:

{Increase)/ Decrease in deferred tax assets - Statement of Profit and Loss {5,709.43) 4,364.14
Decrease in deferved tax assets - Other Comprehensive [ncome 24.19 39.39
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) {5,775.24) 4,403.53
Income tax expense 1,00,224.76 94,403.53

(a) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting prefit multiplied by India’s tax rate:

Profit before taxes 4,82,411.29 4,00,071.97
Tax amount at the rate of Indian tax rate of 25.168% 1,21,413.27 1,00,690.11
Tax effect of expenses/{income) which are not deductible {taxable) in caleulating taxable income:
- Other items Q02,64 1,030,79
Items which ave not considered previcusly in deferred tax now considered during the year on actual basis
where no deferred tax to be realised. {22,091.15) {7.317.57)
1,00,224.76 94,403.53
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Forbes Bumi Armada Limited

Notes to the financial siatements as at and far the year ended March g1, 2024 {continued}

LAl ammotings In Rs, hundreds, unless otherivise stated)

22, Fuir value measnrements

22(1} Finuncial instruments by cat ¥

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

TVIL Amortised cost FVI'L Amortised cost
Financial agsets
Investments in mutual funds - - 9,93,388.93 -
Trade receivables - 32,42,083.67 - 10,32,073.75
Unbilted Revenue - 54091684 - 020,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents - 11,557.19 - 26,025.78
Security deposils - of,002.21 - 05,600.93
Bank deposit with marez than 12 months maturity Cheld as lien against
bank guarantee) - 16,610.61 - 14,714 .51
‘Total financial ossets - 39,18,241.52 9,05,388.93 20,00,304.97
Financial linbilitics
Leage lighilities - - - 14,017.00
Trade payables - 8745192 - 6253020
Employvee benefits payable - 11,22, 400,00 - o,42,383,79
Total finaneial liahilides - 12,00,851.92 - 10,18,945.14

22{b) Fair value hievarchy
This section explains the jud, ond

made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are {a) recognised and measured at faic

value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which falr values are disclosed In the Anancial stalements. Ta provide an Indication abaut the reliability of the
inpuits used in determining fair value, the Company has clossified its financial instruments into the three levels preseribed under the accounting standard. An

explanation of each level follows undemeath the table,

Financial assets and liabilibes measured at faiy volue -
recorring falr value measurements at March 31, 2024

Notes

Level s

Level z

Level 3

Totad

Financial asgets
Tinancial lnstruments at FYPL
Tnyestment in mutual finds

&{ay

Tetal financinl assets

Financial assets and labilides measured at fair value -
recurving faiv value measurements at March 31, 2023

Notes

Level1

Level 2

Level g

Tatal

Financinl assets
Financial instruments at FYPL
[nvestment in mutval funds

£fa)

9,95,:388.93

45:388.93

Tatal financial assets

9.95.88.93

9,05.388.93

Financial assets and liabilites which nve measured at
amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed at

March 31, 2024

Motes

Level 1

Level 2

Level g

Total

Financial assets
Security deposits

6(d}

98.002.21

08,003.21

Total financial assets

9, 092,21

98,092,271

Financial assets and liabiliHes which are measured at
amgriised cost for which fair values are disclosed at
March 31, 2023

Motes

Level1

Level 2

Level 3

‘Fotal

Financial assets
Secunity deposits

&)

95/690.93

ﬁ‘EO‘ﬁ

‘Totnl financial nssets

95,600,93

22{¢) Valvaton processes

Level 1: Leval 1 hierarchy includes finanelal instruments measured using quaoted prices. There are oo items falling under level 1.

Level 2: The fakr valuea of financlal instroments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of

observable market dota and rely as littde as possible on entlty-specific estimales,

Lewvel 3t [Fone or more of the significant imputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

22(d) Foir value of financial ussets and Linbilides

ed a1 amertised cost

Ag at March 41, zoay

As at March 31, 2023

Particulurs .
Carrying amount Enir value CarrymF Fair value
Financial assets
Secunily deposits 98,002.21 of,092.21 05,690,092 95.690.03
Total financial assets 98,0922 98,092.21 095,090.03 95.£i00.93

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, unbilled teverue, bank deposit with mote than 12 moenths matunty, cash and cash equivalents, lease liabilities, trade
payables and payable to employees are considered to be the same as their init values, due to thelr shon-term nature,

The fair values for security deposits were caleulated based on eash flows dscounted using a current fixed deposit rate, They are classified as level 3 fair values in

the falr value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs, including counterparty credit risk.
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Forbes Bumi Avmada Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at andl for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)
(A amaunts in Rs. hundreds, unless otheroise slated)

. Financial risk mmanageinent
Financial risk fuctors

The Company's activities expose it o 2 variety of financial risks: market visk (including currency risk and interest cate risk), credit sk and Hquidity risk.

The Board of Directors is responsible for setting the objectives and underlying principles of financial risk management for the Campany. The management t=am then estallishes the
detalled policies sich as risk identification and measurament and exposure limits,

(a) Credit risk

Credit cisk arises from cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables. The Company anly deposlts cash with major banks with high quality ¢redit standing and limits exposure te any ane
caunler-parky.
The Company adopts the policy of dealing only with relaled parties and ohiaining sufficient security where appropriate to mitigate credit risk.

Credit rizk is the risk of financial loss w the Company if a customer fails to meet its contractual oblipations on cash and cash equivalents. The maximum exposure Lo credit risk is
represented by the cartying vaiues of the Company's tinancial assets.

Cash equivalents and investments
The Company limils its exposure to credit risk threugh dealing with well-established Foancial institutions with high credit standing, and thus management does not expect any

counterparty to fail ta meet its obligations. The Company does not consider there ko be any significant concentration of eredit sl in respect of which adequate impairment has not been
raised.

Trade veceivables
The Company has entered into a contract with three customers and is generating all it's revenue from the sald customers, Based on the management's assessment considering the
customer's market eapitalisetion and past history, the risk of default is low.

The Company does not have any collateral in respact of teade receivables.
The Company adopts the policy of dealing onty with related parties to mitgate credit osk.

{b) Liquidity rislk

Liquidity tisk is the risk that the Company will not be able 1o meet its finanelal sbligations as they fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as faras
possible, that it will ahways have suificient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both narmal and stressed conditions, without Incurring unacceptable losses or tsking damage to
the Company's reputation.

‘The risk is managed through cash flow forecasts and the optimisation of daily cash management.

‘The table below analyses the Company’s nen-derivative financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contraetinal undlscounted cash flows.

Far the year ended March 31, 2024

Contractual maturities of Anancial liabilities

Upto 1 year More than 1 year Total
Trade and cther payables 8745102 - 87.451.02
Other financial labilives 11,223, 4003,03 - 11,22,400.00
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Contractual maturities of financial liabilites Total

Upto 1 year More thin 1 year ¢
Lease liabilides 14,017.09 - 14,017.09
Trade and other payables 62,539.26 - 62,519.20
Other financial labilities 9,42,388.79 - 9,42,280.79

{e) Barket risk
Market risk is the risk thet changes in market prices, such as (oreign exchange tales, lnterest rates and equity prlees will affect the Company's income ar the value of its haldings of
financial instrements. The abjectlve of market tisk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the eturn.

(i) Forelgn corrency visl exposuee:
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in USD and GBP are as follows:

Currency March 31, 2024 Maxch 31, 2023
Finanelal Assets
Trade Recelvable usp 38,81,524.00 12,16,391.00
Financial Liabilides
Employee benefits payable GBP - 16,286.00

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Company is mainly esposed to the currency of USD and GBP

The tollowing table detail the Company's sensitivity to 4 5% increase and decrease in the Indian Rupee againsi the velevant foreign currencles. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstznding foreign currency denominated monelary item and adjust their transtation ot the period end for 2 5% change in foreign cuvrency tates. A positive number below lndicates an
increase in the profit o equity where Indlan Rupees strengthens 5% against the relevant currency, for 2 5% weaking of Rupee against the relevant currency, there would be comparative
negative impact on the pratit or equity.

As at harch 31, 2024 Asg at March 31, 2023

Impact on profit Impact on profit Impact on profit  Impact on profit

Pacticulars and loss with and [oss with and logs with and loss with
incrense in deerease in increase in decrease in
exchangevate by exchangevateby  exchangerate by exchange rate by
5% 5% 5% 5%

Financial Assets
UsH 1,60,986.21 {1,60,986.21) 49,7017 [49,701.74)
Finaneclal Liabititbes
GBP - - _ o Bigaa 7 {Biggd)

S e L aied 2
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(All {5 In Rs, hundreds, unless otheruise staled)

23, Finaneiad vislk management (cominued)
{ii) Interest vate risk
The Company {2 not exposed to inlerest rate risk.
{d) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabiliies
The Company has not ofisel any financial assets and lisbilities es on March 31, 2024,

24, Capital risk
(a) Risk management
The Company's objectives when managing eapital are to:
- safeguard their ability Lo continue as a going coneern, so that they can continue to provide returns fov shiareholders and benefits for olher
stakeholders, and
- maintain an cplimal capilal structire to reduce cost of capilal,
The Company's capital structure consisls of only equity share eapilal and has no debts which suggesls that there I3 no dsk for management of
capilal.
{b) Dividends
The Company hag not declared dividends in the current reporting year as well as prlor years.

25. Related party transactions

25(a) As per Indian Accounting Standard 24 'Related Party Transachons' as preserbed by Companies {Indivn Accounting Standards) Rules, 20153,
the Company's related parties and transactions are dizclosed below;
25(b} A) Parties where control exists;
Joint venturer
Percentage of share holding
B
Place of Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Forbes Camphbell Finance Limited India 51% 31%
Bumi Armada {Singapore) Pte Ltd. Singapore 4% 40%

Forbes Bumi Armada Limited

Notes to the inancial statements as at and for the year ended March a1, zozq {continued)

By Otherrelated partes :

UlHmate parent

Shapoori Pallenjl & Company Private Limited

Bumi Armada Berhad

Transactiony have taken place during the year/ closing balance existed at year end :

EntitHes under commen conbrel of joint venture
Shapoorfi Pallonji Energy Integrated Solutions Private Limiled
3P samoda Oil Exploration Privale Limited

Farvol International Serviee Limited

Armada 98/2 Pte Lid

Shapoorji Pallonji Armada Oil And Gas Service Private Limiled
Campbell Properties & Hospitality Services Ltd

ey Managerial Personnel

Ravi Shankar Srinivasan {Director)

Mahesgh Chelaram Tahilyani {Divector)
Venkata Selburaman Subramardan (Director)
Ganapathy Srihari RBama [yer (Director)

Kua Mei Fang {Director)

Gary Neal Chiistenzon (Director)

Nikhil Jaysinh Bhalia {Pirector)

Bavid James Clark (Direclor)

e Chartereq A
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Forbes Bumi Armada Limited

MNates to the Ananeinl statements as at and for the year ended March 11, 2024 {continued}

(Al amornis in Rs. hundreds, tnless otherudse stated)

25( ¢) Transsctions with related parties

Year ended

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Travelling expenses

Forvol International Serviee Limited &,682.30 3,810.46
Hotel Expense

Forvel Intermnational Service Limited 9,254,63 2,258.37

Campbell Properlies & Hospitalily Services Lid - 250,00
IT expenses

SP Armada Oil Exploration Private Limited 13,f25.00 5,%¢5.00
Income froim manpowey services

Armada 9872 Ple Ltd 2a,50,568.581 10,19,025.84

Shapoorji Pallonjl Armada Oil & Gas Service Private Limited 23,653,537 64 22,04,187.68

SP Armada Ol Exploration Privale Limited 23,81,00L.09 24,26,591.72
Service incomne

Armada 98/2 Pre Ltd 20,674,609 12,447.90

Shapoorji Pallonjl Armada Oil & Gas Service Private Limited 14,427.50 11,067.34

Shapoorji Pallonji Energy [nlegrated Solutions Private Limited - 466.11

SP Armada Cil Exploralion Privale Limited 16,705.00 14,484.19
Reimbursement of expenses

Armada 98/2 Pte Lid 3,31,830.57 1,92,371.85

Shapooi Pallonji Armada 0il & Gas Service Private Limited 2,56,015.60 2,18,372.10

Shapoorji Pallonfi Energy Integrated Solutions Private Limiled - 6,701.63

SP Armada Oil Exploration Private Limiled 3,01,284.56 2,71,575-34
Expense from Manpower services

Shapoodgi Pallonji Energy Integrated Solutions Private Limited 53.577.57 60,579.93
Director's sitting fees

Makezh Chelaram Tahilyand 400,00 300.00

Ravi Shankar Srinivasan 300.00 400.00

Venkata Sethuraman Subramanian 400.00 400,00

Wikhil Jaysinh Bhatia 400.00 200,00

25(d) Balances with refated parties as at March 31, 202q
The fallowing balances are outstanding al the end of Lhe reporting period in relation to transactions
Asat Ag at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Trade payahles

Forvol Internalional Services Limiled 4,603.16 .

SP srmada Qil Explovation Privale Limited 15,805.00 6,806,260

Shapooejt Patlonji Energy Integrated Solulions Privale Limited 4,608,15 7,057.58
Total pavable to related parties 25,106,31 13,953.78
Trade receivable

Armada 982 Pte Lid 32,19,724.13 9,94,035.07

Shapoorji Pallonji Armada Oil And Gas Service Private Limited 13,64 0.50 a3,848.17

$P Aemada Oil Exploralion Privale Limited 8,719.04 16,040.51

Total receivable from related parties

32,42,083.67

10,32,973.75

Unbilled veceivable
Armada 98/2 Pte Ltd 9,43,892.21 1,42,000.00
3hapoodii Pallonji Armada Oil And Gas Service Frivate Limited 1,04,024.63 3,77,000.00
5P Armada 0il Exploralion Private Limited 1,02,000.00 4,01,000.00
Totul receivahle from related parties 5.9, 010.84 9,%0,000,00
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20,

27,

28,

29.

Totles Bumi Armiads Limited
MNotes Lo the financial slntements as at and for the yesr ended March 31, 2024 (conlinued)

(Al amatmis in Rs. hundreds, unless otherwise stated}

Eornings per slare

Earmings per share has been calcubated by dividing the profit ottributable to the equity shareholders by Lhe weighted average number of equily shates outslanding during the year. The

nnumbecs wsed in caleulaling the baslef dilited earnings per equily share are a3 stated belaw

Particulars Yeor coded Year ended
March 31, 2024  March 3, 2023

Profit after laxnation {Ritpees) a,82,010.72 3.05,707.83

Weighled avernge nmmber of equiily shares of B3, 10 each andstanding during the year 35.00,000 55.00,000

Basle and Diluted earnings per share {Rupees) 6.95 5.56

Face value per share {Rupees) 10 FU]

Segmental Information
Description of segments and principal activities:

[6)] The Company's chief operating decision makers are the Board of Dérectors who examine the Company's performanee only (rom 1» services provided and has aceardingly,
identified anly ane reportable segment which is provision of manpower Lo its related entities.

(i) The chief operating decision makers primarily use a measuce of profit before tax as included 1n the internal management report ta assess the performance of Lhe eperating segment
which is measured consistently with profit and loss in the Anancial stale ments,

(i) There ate thret customers having mare thanh 10% of the grass reveniie tor the year ended March 31, 2o24 and March 31, 2o23 respectively contribuklng 1o 35.07% (Rs 23,57,706.09
hundreds), 34.63% {Rs 23,67,965.14 hunadreds] and 30.30% (Rs 20,71,243-50 hundreds) for the year ended hMarch 31, 2024 and 42.24% (R5 24,40075-91 bundreds), 39.90% {Rs
29,05,255.02 hundreds) and 17.85% (Rs 10,31,473-74 hundreds) for the year ended March 31, 2023,

{v]  The Campany ls damiciled in Indla. The amount of lts revenue from external customers broken down by location of the customers is shown in the table below:

Revenue firom External Cust Marel g1, 20 Mareh gu, 202

Indla {7,65,671.23 47.45,800.04
(Other Countries 20,71,243.50 10,3, 47374
Total 68,36,914.73 =7.77.277.78

&) Thetatal of all non-cirrent assels {excluding other financal ossets) ave located only in Tndia a5 an Mareh 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

Dues Lo miero, sinall and mediwm enlerprises

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered nnder Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmenl Act, 2006 {* MSMED Act™). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSRIED

Actare as follows:

ParHeulars Wlarch 31, 202 Maveh 31, 2023

5] The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpald to any sipplier ot the end of each accotinting yegr 2,360.85 201271

(i) The nmount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of seeflon 16 of the Miero, Small and Medium Enlerprlses Development Aet, 2006 (27
of 2a06), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year® _ _

(it} The amauwnt of interest due and payable forthe period of delay Tn making payment (which has bean paid but beyend the appolnted day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the blicra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

{vy Interest paid, other than underSection 16 of MSMED Adt, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day
during the year - -

{v)  Theamount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the énd of each accounting year, and . .

(vi}  The amount of turther interest remalnlng due and payable even o the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enlerprise, for the purpose of dissllowance of 2 deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Mlcro, Small and
Aedlum Enterprizses D Agl, 2006 - -

Nute: The above information cegarding dues payable to Mlero and Small enterprises is compiled by management o the extent the information is

ilable with the Company regarding the status of suppliers os Micro ond Smzll enterprizes,
*Delays caused due ta default by supplier such as delay in submisslan af valld nvolces, supporting, ele. are not constdered as delay In payment.
Financial Ralios

Sr.  |Ratie Numerator Denominator Cuerenl Previous Peviod |% Variance Reason For
o Peried Variance*
a3 Current ratic Current Assets Currant Linbllitles 2.58 281 {&.03)|Na
b} Dbt -equlty ratia MA
3] Debt service coverage ratio A
d) Return on equity ratio PAT Axerage Shareholdet equity | .05 ‘ 556 o502 | Refer Note 1 below
e) Loventory turnover ratio MA
T . ’ ) {26.90)
1] Trade Rec ratio + (tom op Average trade recelvables X+ .36 Refer Mote 2 belaw
£l Trade pavables trnover ratlo Total other Average trade payables L13 087 20.62 | Refer Mote 3 below
D] Mel capital irnover ratio Revenue (rom opevation Working capital 285 291, {1963 Na
4] [¥et profit ratio PAT Revenue from aperatlon 20b 0.05 565 {MA
1K Returny on Capilal eplayed EMT Capital employed 0.19 .19 L0 | MA
Iy Return on investmant EBIT Total Assets Q.12 9.12 (3.728){MNa

4 Regsons for varances morve than 25% have been disdased,
¥ Change in prior period ratio is due te considering average teade receivable and {ende payabe as denominator,

[Moke:

1] Increase in profilis mainly due bo increase in business with Armada 98/2 Pte Ltd, realised galn due to chahge In axchange rate Mactuatlon teansnetlon wlth Armada 9852 Pte Ltd.

2) Trade receivable from Armada g8/2 Ple Lid is mustanding due to nun collection of amaonnt,

k1] Increase In trade payable ratio is mainly dve b ledse expense has been recognized has shor term lease and increase in 1T expense during the year,
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a1,

az.

Forhes Bumi Armada Limited
Mates ke the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)
{All amonnis in Rs, hundreds, unless otherwise stated)

Other regulatory infarmation

{1} Tille deeds of immovable praperties nat held in name of the Company
The Company does nol hold any immavable properties (refev note 3 and 4 Lo the financial stalements) and hence
there are na tille deeds which ore not held in name of the Company.

{li) Registration of charpes o satisfacton with Regisiear of Companies
There are no charges er salisfaction which are yat 1o be repistered with Lhe Registrar of Companies beyond the
slalutory period.

(iii} Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and Ananeial institutions
The Company did nol have any loans o other horrowings from any lender during the year and hence reporting
of utilisation of borrowings is not applicable Lo the Company.

(iv) The Group has five CICs whicl are parl of the Group - 3P Finance Private Limited, SC Finance and Investments
Private Limited, Hermes Commerce Private Limited, Renaissance Commerce Privale Limited and Shapeorji
Pallonjt Energy Private Limited.

The Income Tax Department ralsed a demand of Rs 65,07,.470 for transfer pricing adjustments for AY 2010-11, The eompany disputed this and
ppesled to the C izsioner of Income Tax (Appeals) [CIT{A)]. On March 13, 2021, CIT(4) granied relief. The asseszing officer issued an order
giving effect on Juie 20, 2023. However, the company 15 st awaiting the refund ta be credited to their bank aceount,

The Company has evaluated the impact of the recent Supreme Court juds: tin case of "Vivek da Vid dir and Others V{5 The
regional Provident Fund Commissioner (I1) West Bengal " and the related circular { Cireular o, C-1 /1{33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/a84
) dated darch 20, 2019 issued by Employae 's Provident Fund Organisation in relation to non- exelugion of eerlaln allowance from the definiion
of "basic wages” of the relevant employees lor the purposes of determining conhibulion provident fund under The Employees’ Provident Funds
& Miscellaneous Provisional Aet, 1952 . In the assessmend performed by the management, the aforesaid matier does not have any significant
impact and accordingly, no provision has been made in these Financial Slatements.

Additional regulatory information required by schedule 111

i) Delail of benami property held
The Company dees not held any benami property under the Benami Transaclion (Prohibition] Aet, 1083 {45 of 1988) and rules made
theretinder

i) Borrowing secured against current assets
The Company bas no borrowings from banlks and financiol institutions on the basis of seeurity of curent assets.

iif) Wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institation or gavernment or any
government autharity,

iv} Relationship with struel: off companies
The Company has no ransactions wilh the companies struck off under Companies Acl, 2013 or Companles Ael,
1956,
v) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company does not have any investment other than mutual fund accordingly company has nething to report
with respect to number of layers preseribad under the Comnpanies Aet, 2013,

vi] Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has nol entered into any seheme of arrangement which has an acegunting impact on current or
previous financial year.

vil) Utilisatian of borrowed funds and share preminm
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds Lo any other person(s) or entity(ies), including fereign entities (Intermediaries)
will Lhe understanding thal the [ntermediary shall:
a. directly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimale Beneficiaries) or
ls, provide any guarantee, security ot Lhe like to or on behall of the ulimate benaficiaries
The Company has not received any fund from eny person(s) or entityfies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
{whether recorded in wriling or otherwise) that the Company shall:
a. divectly orindirectly lend or invest in ather persons or entilies identified in any manner whalsoever by or on
bebalf of the Funding Party {Uitimale Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guaraniee, security or the ke on behalf of the ultimale beneficiar{es
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Forbes Bumi Arieada Lindted
Notes to the financial statements as at and far the year ended March 51, 2024 (continued)
AN amounts in Ra. hundreds, uniess oierwise siated)

viil) Undisclosed imcome .
There Iz no income surrendered or diselosed as income during Uie current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961, thal has not been recorded in the books of aceount.

ix} Details of erypto curreney or virtual currency
The Company has nol traded er invesled in eryplo corvency or virtual carreney during e current or previous year.

%) Valuation of PP&Y, inlangible asset and investmeni property
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of nse assel) or intangible assets or both during the
ciwrent or previous year,

i) Loans or advances to specified persons
The Company bas nol given any loans or advances to specified persons.

Aecording to the Master Direction on Export of Goods and Services (FED Masler Direction Ne. 16/2015-16, January 1, 2016, as amended} by the
Reserve Bank of India, export proceeds must be realized and repatriated within g monus feom the date of export, As of March 31, 2024, the
Company has foreign eurrency receivabtes of Rs. 32,19,724.13/- hundreds for manpawer services from its group companies that are overdue for
maore than preseribed time limil. The Company has informed its Authorized Dealer (AD) Bank aboul these oulstanding balances and the invoice
dates, which have bzen acknowledged, Management has started the process of collecting Ihese receivables and does not anticipate any loss or
impacl on the financial stalements due 1o these aped receivables,

There are no capital commitments for the vear ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

For Price Waterhouse Chactered Aceountants LLP Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Registration No, a12754M/Nso0016 q))J/ -
! eyfﬁ
LY
2 N

Venlkata Sethwraman
Director Diractor
DIN: 02034400 DIN: 05222601

Nar€sh Kumar
Partner
Membership Number: 147384

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2024

Flace; Mumbai
Date: May 29, 2024
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UB G & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS finandial statements of FORBES
CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2024 and the Statement of Profit and Loss(including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit, changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our modified opinion.

Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include the Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Audit Report FCFL FY 2022-23 Page | 1

O

S
M&yline Wealth Space, Above D Mart, Premier Road, Vidyavihar West, Mumbai - 86.
office@ubgco.in |  www.uPageill6 of-2uABL941(1579 | +91-9870508636



In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism th roughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 20 13, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, make its probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (I) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect
of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’ a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the statement of changes
in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of accou nt.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the expla nations
given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position except those disclosed in financial statements;

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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i. On the basis of the written representations received from the
management as on March 31, 2024, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.

ii. On the basis of the written representations received from the
management as on March 31, 2024, no funds have been received by
the company from any person(s) or entities including foreign entities
(*Funding Parties”) with the understanding that such company shall
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party
(ultimate beneficiaries) or provide guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

iii. Based on the audit procedures performed, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the below representations given
by the management contain any material mis-statement.

h. No dividend was declared/paid during the year by the Company, therefore
question of compliance of section 123 of the Act does not arise.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, no remuneration has been paid by the Company to its directors during
the year so the provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable.

FOR U B G & Company
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 143076W

Gaurav J. Parekh

Partner

Membership No.: 140694
Mumbai,

Dated: 22" April, 2024

UDIN: 24140694BKBHSU2219
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nexure ‘A’ to the In endent Auditor’'s Report of RBES MPBEL
FINANCE LIMITED for the Year ended as on 31st March 2024

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report on even date:

a. (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(B) The Company has no intangible assets as on 31st March 2024. Therefore,
the paragraph 3(i)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b. The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
Management at regular Intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

c. According to the information and explanation provided to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of one immovable
property (investment property) aggregating Rs. 18,10,217 (net book value) are
not available with the company and hence we are unable to comment on the
same. However, property receipt of the particular immovable property issued
by the local municipal corporation in the name of the company is available with
the company.

d. The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible
assets or both during the year.

e. Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have
been initiated on are pending against the company for holding benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended
in 2016) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our
commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in
its financial statements does not arise.

As per the information and explanations given to us, there is no inventory in hand
at any point of time during the year, hence paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
made investment in, provided any guarantee, or security or granted any loans or
advances in nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, limited liability
partnerships or any other parties, hence paragraph 3(iii)(a) to 3 (iii)(f) is not
applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has entered into transaction in respect of loans and investments complying
with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act and rules framed
thereunder.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits and the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to
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76 or any other relevant provisions of the Com panies Act and the rules framed there
under are not applicable to the Company. Therefore, the paragraph 3(v) of the order
is not applicable to the company.

vi. The Sub-section (1) of the Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to

vii.

the Company, hence paragraph 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of

our examination of the books of accounts, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods & service tax,
provident fund, employee state insurance, income tax, service tax, value added
tax, cess and other statutory dues during the year with the appropriate
authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, value added tax, duty
of customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears
as at March 31,2024 for a period of more than six months from date which they
became payable. Undisputed dues in respect of sales tax which were
outstanding, at the end of the Financial Year 2022-23, for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable are as follows:

Nature of Nature Amount Period to | Due date | Date of
the Statute | of the (Rs.) which the payment

dues amount

relates |

Sales Tax Act | Sales Tax | 15,69,598 FY 1993 to Various Unpaid

and 2000

interest

thereon

Management had decided to write back the old provision of Sales Tax Liabilities
in the Financial Year 2022-23, as there was no demand / communication received
from Sales Tax department. We are unable to comment on the same due to
unavailability of necessary documentary evidences.
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viii.

Xi.

xii.

xiii.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of
income tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess and
any other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of dispute
except the followings:

Nature of | Nature Forum where Period to Amount

the of the Dispute is which the (Rs.)

Statute dues Pending amount relates

Income Tax | Income Commissioner of | FY 2003-04 1,40,41,352
Tax Income Tax

(Appeals)

Income Tax | Income Income Tax FY 2004-05 75,320
Tax Appellate Tribunal

Income Tax | Income Income Tax FY 2007-08 1,90,459
Tax Appellate Tribunal

Income Tax | Income Income Tax FY 2009-10 1,72,33,159
Tax Appellate Tribunal

Madhya Sales Tax | Commercial Tax, | FY 1997-98 to| 10,09,077

Pradesh Demand | Bhopal 1999-2000

sales Tax

Act

As per information and explanation provided to us, there are no transactions being
not recorded in the books of account and that have been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961).

ix. The Company has not taken term loans from any lender during the year, hence

paragraph 3(ix) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and the term loan during the year. Hence
reporting under this clause 3(x) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us by the management which
have been relied by us, there were no frauds on or by the Company noticed or
reported during the period under audit.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clause3 (xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind-AS
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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xiv. Internal audit is not applicable to the Company, therefore reporting under this clause
is not applicable.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi. As per the information and explanation provided to us, The Company is not req uired
to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

xvii. The company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year. However, cash
loss of Rs. 88,071.57 thousand incurred in the previous financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
this clause is not applicable.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

xx. Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 rega rding spending on CSR is not applicable
to the Company. Therefore, reporting under the said clause is not applicable.

FOR U B G & Company
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 141076W

Gaurav J. Parekh

Partner

Membership No.: 140694
Mumbai,

Dated: 22" April, 2024

UDIN: 24140694BKBHSU2219
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE IN DEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
ferred to in our Report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of FORBES
CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance
Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note req uire that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind
AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material
effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR U B G & Company
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 14107

CA Gaurav J. Parekh

Partner

Membership No.: 140694
Mumbai,

Dated:22" April, 2024

UDIN: 24140694BKBHSU2219
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

As at As at
Note 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Particulars No. 2 in Thousand & in Thousand
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
a Property, Plant and Equipment 3 981.93 107.18
b Investment Property 4 1,810.22 385.53
¢ Financial Assets:
i) Investments
a) Investments in Subsidiaries 5 -
b) Investments in Associate 6 - -
c) Investments in Joint Venture 7 28,056.40 28,056.40
d) Other Investments 8 6,64,110.71 6,50,283.31
6,92,167.11 6,78,339.71
ii) Other financial assets 11A 10.00 1.00
6,92,177.11 6,78,340.71
d Tax assets
i) Deferred tax assets (net) 17 - -
i) Current tax assets (net) 20 - 1,648.54
- 1,648.54
Total Non-current assets 6,94,969.25 6,80,481.96
2 Current assets
a Financial Assets:
i) Trade receivables 9 68.70 -
i) Cash and cash equivalents 12 1,439.54 16,420.69
iii} Bank balances 128 14,115.70 -
iv) Other financial assets 118 - -
15,623.94 16,420.69
b Other current assets 138 - 0.89
Total Current assets 15,623.95 16,421.58
Total Assets 7,10,593.20 6,96,903.54
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a Equity share capital 14 38,641.31 38,641.31
b Other equity 15 6,71,512.49 6,56,755.04
Total Equity 7,10,153.80 6,95,396.35
Liabilities
1 Current liabilities
a Financial liabilities:
i) Trade and other payables 19
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 56.65
enterprises; and
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 163.75
enterprises and small enterprises
ii) Other financial liabilities 16 - -
163.75 56.65
b Current tax liabilities (net) 20 275.64 1,448.04
¢ Other current liabilities 17 - 2.50
Total Current Liabilities 439.40 1,507.19
Total Liabilities 439.40 1,507.19
Total Equity and Liabilities 7,10,593.20 6,96,903.54
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1to38
As per our report of even date -
For U B G & COMPANY NIRMAL JAGAWAT Chairperson

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No: 141076W N
RAVINDER PREM

l ""{ ~__ Director

urav Parekh
Partner
Membership No.: 140694

Mumbai, 22nd April, 2024 Mumbai, 22nd April, 2024

*|\ 141076W | *
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Year end. Year end.
Note 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Particulars No. ¥ in Thousand ¢ in Thousand
| Revenue from operations 21 736.33 720.00
Il Other income 22 949.55 12,826.18
I Total Income (1 +11) 1,685.88 13,546.18
IV Expenses:-
Finance cost 23 - 8,554.94
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 282.55 51.17
Other expenses 25A 361.83 435.05
Total expenses 644.38 9,041.16
V Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax (Ili - IV) 1,041.50 4,505.02
Vi Exceptional items 258 - (90,214.47)
VIl Profit / (Loss) before tax (V + VI) 1,041.50 (85,709.45)
VIl Tax expense / (credit):
Current tax 26 133.00 646.00
In respect of prior years 26 (21.56) -
Deferred tax 26 - -
111.44 646.00
IX Profit / (Loss) for the period (VII - Vill) 930.06 (86,355.45)
X Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 13,827.40 58,040.51
Total Other Comprehensive Income 13,827.40 58,040.51
Xl Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX + X) 14,757.46 (28,314.94)
Xil Earning per equity share :
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share 27 3 0.24 T (22.35)
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1to 38
\ L4
As per our report of even date
For U B G & COMPANY NIRMAL JAGAWAT Chairperson
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg Ng; 141076W \ \
RAVINDER PREM \_\} \ o Director

Partner
Membership No.: 140694
Mumbai, 22nd April, 2024 Mumbai, 22nd April, 2024

*| 141076W | *
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Year end. Year end.
31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Z in Thousand &in Thousand
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before Tax 1,041.50 (85,709.4%
Adjustments for -
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss - 8,554.94
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets 282.55 51.17
Interest Income (940.55) (440.71)
Dividend Income - (10,815.87)
Exceptional ltems:
Impairment of Investment in Red. Pref. shares 543.99
Loss on sale of investments - 89,692.15
Credit balances / excess provision written back (9.00) (1,569.60)
(667.00) 86,016.0;
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 374.50 306.6:
Movements in working capital:
Decrease / {increase) in trade receivables and other receivables (77.70) 63.00
(Increase)/decrease in other assets 0.89 1,569.60
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables and other payables 107.10 (29,563.64)
Increase / (decrease) in provisions 9.00 -
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities (2.50) (1,806.82)
36.79 {29,737.8¢
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 411.29 (29,431.24
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) 390.47 {989.41
(a) Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 80L.76 (30,420.6"
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets (including adjustments on account of capital work-in-
progress and capital advances) (2,582.00) -
Proceeds from sale / surrender for buy-back of long-term investments
-in subsidiaries - 3,63,027.84
Interest received 914.79 432.73
Dividend received - 10,815.87
(b) Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (1,667.21) 3,74,276.44
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 65,000.00
Repayment of borrowings (3,85,000.00)
Interest paid - [8,554,94}
(c) Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities - {3,28,554.9«
(d) Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a + b +¢) (865.45) 15,300.8*
(e) Cash and cash equivalents as at the ¢ nt of the year 16,420.69 1,119.8:
(f) Cashand cash equivalents as at the end of the year 15,555.24 16;420.65
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1to38
As per our report of even date -
For U B G & COMPANY NIRMAL JAGAWAT Chairperson
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No: 141076W
RAVINDER PREM irector

Partner
Membership No.: 140694
Mumbai, 22nd April, 2024

Mumbai, 22nd April, 2024

*| 141076W | *
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024

A. Equity share capital No.of Shares Amount
T in Thousand

Balance at 31st March, 2022 3,864.13 38,641.31
Changes in equity share capital during the
year - -
Balance at 31st March, 2023 3,864.13 38,641.31
Changes in equity share capital during the
period = -
Balance at 31st March, 2024 3,864.13 38,641.31

B. Other Equity ¥ in Thousand

Attr ble to Owners
Items Of Other
Comprehensive Total Other
Reserves and surplus Income Equity
Reserve for equity
Capital Equity Component instruments
5 Red i in Det through other
reserve premium reserve d ing: Reserve issued Total comprehensive Total
Balance at 31st March, 2022 204.06 3,00,071.70 (7,12,691.51) 7,500.00 48,277.63 (3,56,638.13) 10,41,708.11 6,85,069.98
Prafit / (Loss) for the year - - (86,355.46) - - (86,355.46) . (86,355.46)
Met fair value gain / (loss) on investmants
in equity instruments at FVTOC - - - - - - 58,040.51 58,040.51
Balance at 31st March, 2023 204.06 3,00,071.70 (7,99,046.98) 7,500.00 48,277.63 (4,42,993.59) 10,99,748.62 6,56,755.03
Profit / (Loss) for the year - . 930.06 - - 930,06 . 930.06
Net falr value gain / (loss) on investments
in equity instruments at FVTOCI - - - - - = 13,827 40 13,827.40
Balance at 31st March, 2024 204.06 3,00,071.70 (7,98,116.91) 7,500.00 48,277.63 (4,42,063.53) 11,13,576.02 6,71,512.49
See ac panying notes forming part of the financial 1to 38
-
As per our report of even date NIRMAL JAGAWAT irperson
For U B G & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
RAVINDER PREM Dirgctope »

—

Membership No.: 140694
Mumbai, 22nd April, 2024

Mumbai, 22nd April, 2024
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Continued

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Forbes Campbell Finance Limited was incorporated on 25th April, 1977 in India having registered office at Forbes Building, Charanjit Ral Marg, Fort, Mumbal 400001. The Company
is wholly owned subsidiary of Forbes & Company Limited and is mainly engaged in real estate business and investment activities.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i)

ii)

iv)

Statement of Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read

gether with Companies (Indian Acc Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.
Basis of Preparation and Pi ion
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instr that are d at fair values at the end of each reporting
period
For fi | reporting | fair value m are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement In its entirety, which are described as follows:
«  Level 1 inputs are quated prices (unadjusted) in active rkets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

«  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
«  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule |l to the
Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of products/! ities of the Comg and the normal time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation In
cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its of ing cycle as 12 hs for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilitles as current and non current

The preparation of the financial In conformity with Ind AS requires the Manag to make and pi idered in the reported of
assets and liabllities (including i t liabilities) and the reponadilmmeandaxpenmdurlmthewr. The g beli that the used in prepa

of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable, Future results could differ due to these and the diff bet the actual results and the estimates
are recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialise.

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Subsidiaries:
subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company has control, including through its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company has power over the investee, is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its h it with the i and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

Investments in Subsidiaries are accounted at cost less provision for impairment.

Associates:
An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Signficant influence Is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

in ! are ac  at cost less provision for impairment,
Joint Arrangements:
Under Ind AS 111 loint Arrang its, i ts in joint arrang are classified as either joint operations or joint The classification depends on the
| rights and obligations of each investor, rather than the Iégal structure of the joint arrangement. The Company has both joint jons and joint

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the rel ivities require i consent of the
parties sharing control.

Investments in Joint ventures are accounted at cost less provision for impairment.

The Company recognises its direct right to the assets, liabilities, and exp of joint aperati and its share of any jointly held or incurred assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses. These have been Incorporated in the financial ts under the appropriate headi

The Ci y has elected to i ith the carrying value of all of its | in subsid jates and joint vel recognised as of April 1, 2015 (transition date)

measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price
(excluding refundable taxes), b ing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the led use.
Any trade d and ret are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Subsequent expenditures related to an item of property, plant and equipment are added to its carrying value only when it is probable that the future economic benefits from
the asset will flow to the Company and cost can be reliably measured.
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

v)

vi

vii)

wiii)

[

xi

)

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equi t are recognised in the Stat t of Profit and Loss.
Depreclation on property, plant and equi t has been provided on stralght line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and dep i hod are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for

on a prospective basis,

The estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are as under:

Sr.
Mo. |Class of assets il d useful life

a |Furniture & Fixture As per Schedule Il

b |Office equipment, Electrical llations, Computers:-

- Owned As per Schedule |1

On transition to Ind AS, the C has el d to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per
the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equig tas of the ition date.
Capital work-in-progress
Prajects under which tangible fixed assets are not yet ready for their use are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental exp and attributable interest.
Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property under construction for such purposes}. Investment properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16's requirements for
cost model,

An i t property s d gnised upon disposal or when the | t property s per {y withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference b the net di ip ds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the property is derecognised,

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has el d to i with the carrying value of its t property gnised as of April 1, 2015 (transition date) measured as
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets, being computer software, are to be stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost will
comprises acquisition and impl jon cost of sof fori | use (including software coding, installation, testing and certain data conversion).

Amor is to be ised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in esti being nted for on a prospective basis

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference bety the disposal p ds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are ised as | or in the of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets under development

E diture on develof eligible for capitalisation is to be carried as intangible assets under development where such assets are not yet ready for their intended use.
Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the C i the
recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount Is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. If such recoverable amount of the asset or
the bl of the cash g ting unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying tis reduced to its bl The
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously d
Impalrment loss no longer exists, the bk is d and the asset is reflected at the lower of recoverable amount and the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no imp loss been ised

Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment, investment property
The C has elected to inue with the carrying value of all of its plant and equipment and Intangible assets ised as of April 1, 2015 (transition date) measured as

per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company entity b a party to the co | provisions of the instr its

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit o loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or

financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financlal liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are gnised i diately in the t of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets

Al gnised fi jal assets are sub ly d in thelir entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the cl ification of the financlal assets
Classification:

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is ta hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All ather financlal assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

xii)

The effective i hod is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period, The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly di sti d future cash pts (including all fees and amounts that form an integral part of the eff interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective Interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest Income |s d in the Stat
of Profit and Loss and is included in the “Other income” line item.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on g d in the S of
Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss gnised in the St of Profit and Loss incor tes any dividend or i earned on the financial asset, Dividend on financial
assets at FVTPL is gnised when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is blished, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the entity, the dividend does not rep ar y of part of cost of the and the of dividend can be d reliably.
Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, loan i , trade receivabl
financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset.

For trade ivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transacti the Ce always the loss all atan
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses,

Further, for the purpose of ing lifetime exp i credit loss ("ECL") all for trade ivables, the Company has used a | expedient as permitted under Ind

AS 109 Fi ial This i credit loss all ce is
adjusted for forward-looking information,

puted based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and

For recagnition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase In the credit risk
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,

then the entity reverts to i impaii loss all based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the E d life of a fi 1 t. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Comp d ises a fi al asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party,

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange diffs are ised in the S of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity :
Debt and equity instr ts issued by a Company are classified as either fi fal liabilities or as equity in di with the suk of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual | in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are ised at the d ived, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and
losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the Instruments

ial liabilities when, and only when, the C ¥'s obligations are disct d lled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt

instr ts with sub ially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. A
substantial modification of the terms of an existing fi ial liability (whether or not attributable to the fi | difficulty of the debtor) is d for as an extinguish

of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new fi lal liabllity. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is gnised in the Stat of Profit and Loss

financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified
debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt i . Fi ial tracts are gnised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the Issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the t ised less lative amartisation where appropriate.

Impairment of financial
The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used reasonable and supportable
Information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial Instr were initially ised in order to pare it with
the credit risk at the transition date. Further, the Company has not undertaken an ext search for inf ion when determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs,
whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recagnition, as permitted by Ind AS 101,

Earnings per share
Basic Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Continued

xiii) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a p biigation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Cc
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

y will be required to

The recognised as a provision is the best esti of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the oblig When a provision is d using the cash flows estimated to settle the p t obligation, its carrying is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are ex; d to be d from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset If it is virtually
certain that I t will be ived and the of the ivable can be d reliably.

Contingent liability is disclosed for (i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or (i) Present obligations
arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliabl of the of the obligati

cannot be made.

xiv) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the ] ived or receivabl

Sale of Services:
a) Income from services is recognised on accrual basis as and when the services are performed,

b) Interest income from a financial asset is gnised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured

reliably. Interest income Is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the amortised cost and at the effective | rate applicabl
¢} Dividend income from i is gnised when the shareholder's right to receive pay t has been blished (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the of i can be d v).
xv) Foreign Currency Transactions
In preparing the financial of the C entity, transactions in currencies other than the company’s functional currency viz. Indian Rupee are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, y items d i d in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevaliling at that date,
hange diffs on y items are recognised in the Sta of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.
xvi) Lease accounting
As @ lessee:
From 1 April 2019, leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a correspanding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Company.
Contracts may contain both lease and non lease F The Comg Il the consid in the contracts to the lease and non-lease components based on their
| jalone prices. Hi , the Company has elected not to separate lease and non-lease comp and instead for these as a single lease components.

Assets and llabllities arising from a lease are initially measured on present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

- fixed pay (including in sub fixed pay
- the exercise price of the purchase option If the Company is r bly certain to ise that option, and
- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that option

), less any lease incentive receivable

Lease payments to be made under bly certain extension option are also included in the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the
lessee's incremental borrowing rate, being the rate that lessee would have to pay to borrow the fund necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset ina
similar economic environment with similar term, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:
- where possible, uses recent third party financing received by the lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflects changes in financing condition since third party financing
- use a bulld-up approach that starts with the risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases, which does not have recent third party financing, and
- make adjustments specific to the leases, e.g. term, security, currency etc.

The C y is exposed to [ | future in variable lease payments based on index or rate, which are not included in the lease liability until they take effect.
When adj to lease pay based on index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
Lease pay are alk d b principal and finance cost. Finance cost is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodical rate of on the ining bal of the liability for each period.
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost prising the following:

- the t of initial nent of lease liability

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
- any initial direct costs, and
- restoration costs

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are ona ight-line basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Short

term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

As a lessor:
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a straight line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating leases are added to the ying t of the underlying asset and gnized as exp over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective

leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature, The Company did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as a lessor as a
result of adopting the new leasing standard.
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xvii)

xvill)

xix)

Taxes on Income
Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net profit or loss for the period. Current tax is measured at the
amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is gnised on porary diffs b the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the sep fi | stat ts and the cor ding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductibl ¥ y diff to the extent that it Is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences

can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the Initial recognition (other than in 2 business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it Is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liabllity is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates

(and tax laws) that have been d or suk ively i by the end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are g 1 in other prehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also gnised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively

Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, cheques, drafts on hand, balances in current accounts with banks, other bank deposits with
original maturities of three months or less,

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, which are assets that ily takes a sub ial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets; until such time as the assets are substantially ready for thelr intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary Investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred,

Segment Reporting

An operating isa p of the C that in ivities from which it may earn revenue and incur expenses, whose operating results are

regularl iewed by the C s chief operating decisi mkerlnmrwqﬁmmwalmuwCompen\rsmnufmandnsns:perfmmam

STV

©On 24 July 2020, the Mbni:tr\r of Corponl‘.: Affalrs {MCA} hud issued amendments to certain Ind AS as follows:

]

i)

iv)

v)

vi)

Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations

The definition of the term “business” has been revised. An optional test has been juced to identify of fair value to permit a simplified assessment of
hether an acquired set of ities and assets is not a business. Additional guidance with ek ts of busil and on ing whether an acquired pro is sub i

An entity is required to apply the d to busi binations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period

beginning on or after the 1 April 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period. There was no impact on the financial statements of the
Company on adoption of the above amendments for the year.

Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Additional disclosures have been introduced for uncertainties arising from interest rate benchmark reforms consequential to the Imdgn ing related b in the
Ind AS 109 —Fi ial Instr The Company did not have any transactions during the year to which these di were bl

Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments
Temporary exceptions from applying specific hedge accounting requirements have been introduced for all hedging relationships directly affected by ‘interest rate benchmark

reform’. (i.e. the market-wide reform of an interest rate benchmark, including the repl t of an | rate benct * with an al ive benchmark rate). This
amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020. The Company did not have any transactions during the year to which these
i wars sppitcabl

Ind AS 116 - Leases

A Practical expedient has been allowed to permit lessees to exclude COVID-19 related rent concessions to be treated as a lease modification. This amendment is applicable to

the Compan\r from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020. There were no rent concessions during the year and accordingly, there was no impact on the
of the C y on adoption of the above amendments for the year,

ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (and consequential
amendments to other Ind AS)

The definition of the term “material” has been revised and is applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020, Consequent to the revised
definition of “ fal”, certain ' were also notified in the Ind AS 10 - Events after the Reporting Period, Ind AS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting and Ind AS 37 -
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

There was no impact on the fi ial of the Company on adoption of this d for the year.

Standards issued but not yet effective
As on the date of approval of these fi ial stats ts, there were no new standards or amendments which have been notified but not yet adopted by the Company and

expected to have any material impact on the fi ial of the Company.
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

4. Investment property

¥ in Thousand
As at As at
31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Completed investment properties 1,810.22 385.53
Total 1,810.22 385.53
As at As at
Cost or Deemed Cost 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
|Balance at beginning of year 1,331.69 1,331.69
[Additions 1,617.21 -
|Balance at end of period 2,948.90 1,331.69
As at As at
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Balance at beginning of year 946.17 923.33
Add :- Depreciation for the period 192.51 22.84
Balance at end of period 1,138.68 946.17
As at As at
Carrying amount 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Balance at beginning of year 385.53 408.37
Additions 1,617.21 -
Disposals - -
Depreciation expense 192.51 22.84
Balance at end of period 1,810.22 385.53

All of the Company's investment properties are held under freehold interests.

4.1 Fair value measurement of the Company's investment properties

The fair value of the Company’s investment properties as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out as on the respective dates by V.5.Modi Associates, Chartered Engineer, Approved Valuers. The fair value was
determined based on the market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar properties as well as other

lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

Details of the Company’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31st March, 2024 and 31st

March, 2023 are as follows:

Fair value as at
Particulars Level 3 31st Mar., 2024
Office Units located in India- Pune City 19,000 19,000
Property 2 -
Property 3 =
Total 19,000 19,000

Fair value as at
Particulars Level 3 31st Mar., 2023
Office Units located in India- Pune City 17,300 17,300
Property 2 -
Property 3 h
Total 17,300 17,300

For the office units located in Pune City, India, the fair value was derived using the market comparable approach based on recent

market prices without any significant adjustments being made to the market observable data.

4.1 Note on Investment property direct expenses included in other expenses:-

% in Thousand
Year end. Year end.
31st Mar.,, 2024 31st Mar., 2023

Direct operating expenses arising from investment property that generated rental

income during the year 47.50 65.85
Direct operating expenses arising from investment property that did not generate

rental income during the year - -
Total 47.50 65.85
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Continued

5. Investments in Subsidiaries at cost
Non Current Investments

¥ in Thousand
As at As at
31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
particulars Qty A t aty Amount
In subsidiary companies at cost
Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)
Equity Instruments
1. Equity shares of T 10 each in Forbes Campbell Services Ltd. -
TOTAL AGGREGATE OF UNQUOTED INVESTMENTS (A) -
Aggregate of impai in value of i (8) ® =
TOTAL INVESTMENTS {A) - (8) 2 5
_— —_—
6. Investment in associates at cost 2 in Thousand
As at As at
31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
part ay Amount ay A
Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)
Equity Instruments
L. Equity shares of ¥ 10 each in Forbes Technosys Ltd. 218.98 1,515.55 218.98 1,515.55
2. Equity p in Fi given to Forbes Technosys Limited
TOTAL AGGREGATE OF UNQUOTED INVESTMENTS {a) 218.98 1,515.55 218.98 1,515.55
Aggregate of i in value of i A 1,515.55 1,51555
TOTAL INVESTMENTS (A) - (8) _ _-d ————
Preference shares
1. 6% Non-cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares
(NCRPS) of ¥ 10 each in Forbes Technosys Ltd. 127.40 543,99 127.40 543.99
TOTAL AGGREGATE OF UNQUOTED INVESTMENTS (8) 127.40 543.99 127,40 543.99
Aggregate of imp in value of i (B) 543.99 543.99
— —_—
7. in joint at cost T in Thousand
As at As at
31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
particulars Qty Amount Qty Amount
In joint venture company
Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)
Equity Instruments
1. Equity shares of ¥ 10 each in Forbes Bumi Armada Ltd, 2,805.00 28,056.40 2,805.00 28,056.40
TOTAL AGGREGATE OF UNQUOTED INVESTMENTS (a) 2,805.00 28,056.40 2,805.00 28,056.40
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments (8) - -
TOTAL INVESTMENTS (A) - (8) 28,056.40 28,056.40

*| 141076W ) *
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued
8. Other investments

BA.  Other Non Current Investments ¥ in Thousand
As at As at
31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
particulars Qty A t Qty A t
8.1A. Quoted Investments (all fully paid) at fair value through OCI
In Holding Company
Equity Instruments
1. Equity shares of T 10 each in Forbes & Company Ltd. ( Refer Note 2) 166.40 71,917.22 166.40 97,292.91
TOTAL AGGREGATE OF UNQUOTED INVESTMENTS (A) 166.40 71,917.22 166.40 §7,292.91
8.2A. Quoted Investments (all fully paid) at fair value through 0C1
In Fellow subsidiary
Equity Instruments
1. Equity shares of ¥ 10 each in Eureka Forbes Ltd. { Refer Note 2) 1,295.97 5,92,193.49 2,495.97 5,52,990.40
TOTAL AGGREGATE OF UNQUOTED INVESTMENTS (A) 1,295.97 5,92,193.49 2,495.97 5,52,990.40
8.3A. Unquoted Investments (all fully paid) at fair value through P&L
In Other entities
Equity Instruments
1. Equity shares of T 10 each in The Svadeshi Mills Co. Ltd, 1,349.26 13,492.60 1,349.26 13,492.60
2. Equity shares of ¥ 10 each in Forbes Edumetry Ltd (Refer Note 1 below) 1,656.00 14,436.12 1,656.00 14,436.12
TOTAL AGGREGATE QUOTED INVESTMENTS (8) 3,005.26 27,928.72 3,005.26 27,928.72
TOTAL INVESTMENTS (A) + (B) 3,171.66 6,92,039.43 3,171.68 6,78,212.04
Less : Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments (C) 27,928.72 27,928.72
TOTAL INVESTMENTS CARRYING VALUE (A) + (B) - (C) uﬂi- 5,50,283.31
—_—
Aggregate market value of quoted investments — 6:64,110.71 6,50,283.31
—_—e
8.4A. Category-wise other investments — as per Ind AS 109 classification ¥ in Thousand
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar,, 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity Instrument 27,928.72 27,928.72
Less:- Img In value of 27,928.72 27,928.72
0.00 . o.00
Financlal Assets measured at FYTOCI (Debt instruments and equity investments)
Equity instruments 6,64,110.71 6,50,283.31
TOTAL 6_&‘,110.71 6,50,283.31
MNote :

1. Forbes Ed y Limited, a subsidiary, has initiated vol y winding up under section 500 and other applicabl ions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Consequently, the Company does not have any significant influence or control over Forbes Edumetry Limited and therefore it is being reclassified from subsidiary to other
investment. Further, Investments made in Forbes Edumetry Limited are fully provided,

2 A posl h of ar is entered between Forbes & Company Limited ("FCL"), Eureka Forbes Limited ("EFL") and subsidiaries of Eureka Forbes Limited ("EFL")

being Forbes Enviro Selutions Limited ("FESL"), Aquaignis Technologies Private Limited ("ATPL"), Euro Forbes Financial Services Limited ("EFFSL") and their respective
shareholders ("Scheme") was filed with Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") Mumbai Bench after approval of Board of Directors of the respective companies on
September B, 2020. Upon the scheme being effective and pursuant to provisions of the scheme, the name of EFL shall be changed from * Forbes Enviro Solutions Limited” to
"Eureka Forbes Limited". The Dy ger and the q llotment of shares of FESL to the company shall be completed upon inter alia the approval of the scheme by NCLT
and the pletion/satisfs of ather p lures. Thereafter, the shares issued and allotted by FESL shall be listed on the relevant stock exchange.
Pursuant to order dated 25th January, 2022 of the Hon'ble NCLT, bai Bench, the posi h of merger was app i and in ideration, 15 fully paid up equity
shares of T 10/- each of EFL were alloted to the equity share holders of Forbes & Company Limited against 1 equity share of ¥ 10/- each held by them in Forbes & Company
Limited.

3. The board of directors of FTL have pursuant to provisions of Section 230 to 232 applied to the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for merger of Forbes Campbell Service

Limited {"FCSL") and FTL for a consideration of ¥ 3 Lakhs effective 1 October, 2021 and also proposed for reduction in the share capital of FTL. The NCLT, in its order dated 16™

September, 2022 ('the Order’) approved the Composite Scheme of A g for [ fon of Forbes Campbell Service Limited (‘FCSL’) into FTL and reduction of share
capital of FTL. The appointed date of the Scheme is 1" October, 2021 and the scheme has been effective from 29™ September, 2022 i.e., the last date on which the certified
copy of the order was filed with the Reg of G les. to scheme, the Company has cancelled equity share of investment of ¥ 21,678.22 thousand equity shares

of T 10 each for a consideration of ¥ 0,001 per share.

a) 21,678.22 thousand equity shares of ¥ 10 each out of the existing 21,897.20 thousand equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up for a consideration of ¥ 0.001 for each equity
share so cancelled.
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9.

10.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables- Current ¥ in Thousand
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Trade receivables
a) Considered Good- Billed - -
b) Considered Good- unbilled - -
c) Related Parties 68.70 -
b) Disputed - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -
Total 68.70 -
Trade receivables- Ageing schedule As at As at
Range of Ofs period 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar,, 2023
Undisputed Trade receivables:
Unbilled . -
Not Due - =
Less than 6 months 68.70 -
& months - 1 year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
>3 years = -
Total 68.70 . B
Loans / Advances
10A. Loans / Advances - Non Current T in Thousand
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
a) Loans and advances to others
- Considered Good - -
- Disputed 3,953.95 3,953.95
Less : Allowance for doubtful advances 3,953.95 3,953.95
Total - -
10B  Loans / Advances - Current ¥ in Thousand
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
a) Inter-Corporate Deposits to related parties
- Unsecured, considered good - “
- Doubtful 45,000.00 45,000.00
Less : Allowance for bad and doubtful loans 45,000.00 45,000.00
Total = =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

Details of loans and advances in nature of loans granted to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel and related

parties
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
a) amounts repayable on demand
- Promoters - -
- Directors - =

- Key Managerial Personnel
- Other related parties
b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment
- Promoters
- Directors
- Key Managerial Personnel

- Other related parties 45,000.00 45,000.00
Total 45,000.00 45,000.00
11. Other financial assets
11A. Other financial assets - Non current Tin Thousand
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
a) Security deposits
- Unsecured, considered good 10.00 1.00
- Doubtful 9.00 18.00
Less : Allowance for bad and doubtful loans 9.00 18.00
Total 10.00 1.00
11B. Other financial assets - Current ¥ in Thousand
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
a) Accruals:
i) Interest accrued on deposits with bank - -
i) Interest accrued on Loan given to related parties- Doubtful 1,783.76 1,783.76
Less : Allowance for bad and doubtful loans 1,783.76 1,783.76

Total (a)

Total (a)
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12. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash
flows can be reconciled to the related items in the balance sheet as follows:

¥ in Thousand

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Balances with Banks
a) In current accounts 1,439.54 636.98
b) Deposits accounts (with original maturity upto 3 months) - 15,783.71
1,439.54 16,420.69
Other Bank Balances
a) In deposit accounts with original maturity of more than 3 months but less
than 12 months, deposited with AXIS Bank. 14,115.70 =
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 15,555.24 16,420.69
13. Other assets
13A. Other assets - Current T in Thousand
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023

a) Capital Advances
a) Advances for supply of goods and services

- Unsecured, considered good - 0.89

- Doubtful 0.89 B

Less : Allowance for doubtful advances 0.89 -
- 0.89

b) Prepaid expenses - -
Total - 0.89
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14. Equity Share Capital
¥ in Thousand

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 38,641.31 38,641.31
Total 38,641.31 38,641.31
Authorised Share capital :
46,14,200 fully paid equity §hares of T 10 each 46,142.00 46,142.00
Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
38,64,131 fully paid equity shares of ¥ 10 each
(Previous year : 38,64,131) 38,641.31 38,641.31

38,641.31 38,641.31

14. 1 Fully paid equity shares

Number of shares Share capital

Particulars { In numbers ) ¥ in Thousand
' Balance at March 31, 2022 3,864.13 38,641.31
Movements - -
Balance at March 31, 2023 3,864.13 38,641.31
Movements - -
Balance at March 31, 2024 3,864.13 38,641.31

Fully paid equity shares, which have a par value of 10, carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends.

14. 2 Details of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate controlling party, their subsidiaries and associates

Fully paid ordinary shares
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar,, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the period 3,864.13 3,864.13
The holding company - .
Total 3,864.13 3,864.13

14. 3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

As at As at
31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Number of shares % holding inthe | Number of shares % holding in the
Particulars held class of shares held class of shares
lly paid equity sha
Forbes & Company Limited 3,864.13 100.00 3,864.13 100.00
Total 3,864.13 100.00 3,864.13 100.00
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15. Other equity
T in Thousand
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
a) Amalgamation reserve 204.06 204.06
b) Securities premium reserve 3,00,071.70 3,00,071.70
¢} Reserve for equity instruments through other
comprehensive income 11,13,576.02 10,99,748.62
d) Retained earnings (7,98,116.91) (7,99,046.97)
€) Capital redemption reserve 7,500.00 7,500.00
f) Equity Component in Debentures issued 48,277.63 48,277.63
Total 6,71,512.49 6,56,755.04
T in Thousand
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
15.1 Amalgamation reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 204.06 204.06
Movements - 7
Balance at end of the period 204.06 204.06
15.2 Securities premium reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 3,00,071.70 3,00,071.70
Movements = =
Balance at end of the period 3,00,071.70 3,00,071.70
15.3 Reserve for equity instruments through other
comprehensive income
Balance at beginning of year 10,99,748.62 10,41,708.11
Net fair value gain / (loss) on investments in equity instruments
at FvTOCI 13,827.40 58,040.51
Balance at end of the period 11,13,576.02 10,99,748.62
15.4 Retained earnings
Balance at beginning of year (7,99,046.98) (7,12,691.51)
Profit / (loss) attributable to owners of the Company 930.06 (86,355.45)
Balance at end of the period {7,98,116.91) (7,99,046.97)
15.5 Capital redemption reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 7,500.00 7,500.00
Movements - =
Balance at end of the period 7,500.00 7,500.00
15.6 Equity Component in Debentures issued
Balance at beginning of the year 48,277.63 48,277.63
Movements fi =
Balance at end of the period 48,277.63 48,277.63
Total 6,71,512.50 6,56,755.04
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16. Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities - Current
¥ in Thousand

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023

a) Interest accrued but not due on Inter-corporate deposits from Related party - -
b) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (debentures) - -
Total - i

17. Other current liabilities
T in Thousand

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
a) Statutory remittances - 2.50
Total - 2.50

18. Current Borrowings
¥ in Thousand

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023

Unsecured - at amortised cost
a) Inter-corporate deposits from related party " i
Total = -

= Amounts repayable to related parties of the Group. Interest of 11.50% per
annum is charged on the outstanding loan balances.

*| 141076W | *
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19. Trade payables

Z in Thousand

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Micro and small enterprises - 56.65
Others 163.75 -
Total 163.75 56.65
Payable to Micro and small enterprises represents the principal amount. There is no interest due / accrued / paid / payable during the

year. The figures for the year ending 31 March, 2024 have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

The Company has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms.

Trade Payable in du

Z in Thousand

As at As at
Range of Ofs period 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Unbilled - 56.65
Not due - -
Less than 1 year 163.75 -
1-2 year
2-3 year - -
>3 year - -
Total 163.75 56.65
20. Current tax assets and liabilities
T in Thousand
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Current tax assets
Tax refund receivable - 1,648.54
- 1,648.54
Current tax liabilities
Income tax payable 275.64 1,448.04
275.64 1,448.04
Current Tax Assets (current portion) - -
Current Tax Assets (non-current portion) - 1,648.54

*| 141076W | *
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

21. Revenue from operations

2 in Thousand

Year end. Year end.
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
a) Operating revenues
i) Rent and amenities 736.33 720.00
Total 736.33 720.00
22. Other Income
Z in Thousand
Year end. Year end.
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated at fair
value through profit or loss:
a) Interest Income
i) Bank deposits 914.79 432.73
ii) Income Tax refund 25.76 7.98
Total (a) 940,55 440.71
b)  Dividend Income
i) from long-term investments ¥ 10,815.87
ii) from current investments - -
Total (b) - 10,815.87
c) Other Non-Operating Income
i) Others
Credit balances / excess provision written back 9.00 1,569.60
Total (b) 9.00 1,565.60
Total (a+b+c) 949.55 12,826.18
23. Finance costs
T in Thousand
Year end. Year end.
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
(a) Interest costs :-
i) Interest on loans from related parties (ICD) - 8,554.94
i) Other interest expense X =
Total (a) - 8,554.94
iv) MNotional Interest on Debentures from related parties - i
Total - 8,554.94
24, Depreciation and amortisation expense
T in Thousand
Year end. Year end.
Particulars 31st Mar,, 2024 31st Mar., 2023
i) Depreciation of investment property 192.51 22.84
i)  Depreciation- Furniture and Fixtures & Office Equipment 90.04 28.33
282.55 5117

Total
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25. A.  Other expenses

¥in Thousand

Year end. Year end.
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar,, 2023
a)  Repairsto:
i} Buildings 28.80 48.00
ii) Others - N
28.80 48,00
Rates and taxes (excluding taxes on income) 81.62 171.64
Legal and professional charges 52.27 43.45
Provision for doubtful loans and advances 0.89 -
Director Sitting Fees 100.00 75.00
Miscellaneous expenses 3.87 5.86
Total (a) 267.43 343.85
b) Audit Fees
i) For statutory audit 41.30 41.30
ii) For other services 53.10 49.80
Total (b) 94.40 91.10
Total (a+b) 361.83 435.05
25. B.  Exceptional items
T in Thousand
Year end. Year end.
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
a) Investment in FTL write off (2,16,760.55)
a) Loss on sale of investments (89,692.15)
c) Impairment of Investment in FTL - 2,16,238.24
- (90,214.47)
Note: Details of Exceptional items as below -
T in Thousand
Year end. Year end.
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar,, 2023
Amalgamationof FCSL into FTL, and reduction of Share Capital - (2,16,782.23)
Balance receivable after capital reduction 21.68
Total (a) (2,16,760.55)
Due to amalgamation, Reversal of Impairment of FTL Investment - 2,18297.78
Remaining FTL Investment, after capital reduction - (1,515.55)
After Amalgamation, Impairment of FCSL investment - (543.99)
Total (b) - 2,16,238.24
Loss on Sale of 1,000 thousand EFL equity shares to Forbes (98,432.59)
Profit on Sale of 200 thousand EFL equity shares to Forbes - 8,740.43
Total (c) - (89,692.15)
Total (a+b+c) - (50,214.47)
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26. Income taxes relating to operations

26.1 Income tax recognised in profit or loss
¥ in Thousand

Year end. Year end.
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023

Current tax
In respect of the current year 133.00 646.00
In respect of prior years (21.56) -
Others - -

111.44 646.00
Deferred tax
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year relating to
continuing Operations 111.44 646.00
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27.  Earnings per share

Year end. Year end.

Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
¥ per share < per share
Basic earnings per share 0.24 (22.35)
Diluted earnings per share 0.24 (22.35)
27.1. Earnings per share ( EPS)

Year end. Year end.
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company (InT)
(A) 930.06 (86,355.45)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic
earnings per share (Quantity in numbers) (B) 3,864.13 3,864.13
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (A/B) 0.24 (22.35)
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28.

29,

Contingent liabilities

¥ in Thousand

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Corporate guarantee issued in favour of Union Bank of India which in turn
has issued guarantee on behalf of Forbes Technosys Ltd,, a fellow
subsidiary of the Company. 531.17
Income Tax matters in dispute under appeal. 31,540.29 31,540.29
Sales Tax Demands by the Madhya Pradesh Sales Tax Authorities for the
year 1997-98, 1998-99 and 1999-00. 1,009.08 1,009.08

Operating Lease: Company as lessor

The company has given the licensed premises on operating lease basis, the details of which are as follows:

T in Thousand

As at As at
Class of Asset 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Gross carrying Amount 2,948.90 1,331.69
Accumulated Depreciation 1,138.68 946.17
Depreciation for the year 192.51 22.84
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30. (a) Related party disclosures
Current Year
(a) Name of the Related Parties and Description of Relationship:
Nature of Relationship Name of entity Abbreviation used
A Ultimate Holding Company / 1 Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited SPCL
Holding Company 2 Forbes & Company Limited F&CL
B Fellow Subsidiaries 1 Forbes Technosys Limited FTL
(where there are transactions) 2 Forbes Precision Tools and Machine Parts Limited FPTMPL
3 Shapoorji Pallonji Forbes Shipping Limited SPFSL
4 Volkart Fleming Shipping & Services Limited VFSSL
C Joint Venture 1 Forbes Bumi Armada Limited FBAL
Previous Year
Nature of Relationship Name of entity Abbreviation used
A Ultimate Holding Company / 1 Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited SPCL
Holding Company 2 Forbes & Company Limited F&CL
B  Fellow Subsidiaries 1 Forbes Technosys Limited FTL
(where there are transactions) 2 Shapoorji Pallonji Forbes Shipping Limited SPFSL
C Joint Venture 1 Forbes Bumi Armada Limited FBAL
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024 - Continued

33.  Particulars of loan given / Investments made / guarantees given, as required by clause (4) of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
TinTh
During the Period Rate of
Name Given | Returned Closing Balance Period Interest Purpose
A made
Forbes Campbell Services Limited : - : :.: :: o | Corporate Purpose
Forbes Bumi Armada Limited - - 28,056.40 N.A N.A__ |General Corporate Purpose
= 28,056.40 N.A N.A
Svadeshl Mills Company Limited** - - - N.A N.A _ |General Corporate Purpose
= - N.A N.A
Forbes Edumetry Limited** - - - N.A N.A__ |General Corporate Purpose
- - N.A N.A
Forbes & Company Limited (At FV) - - 71,917.22 N.A N.A__ |General Corporate Purpose
- 97,292.91 N.A N.A
Eureka Forbes Limited (At FV) - - 5,92,193.49 N.A N.A__ |General Corporate Purpose
- 5,52,990.40
B Loans (Inter Corporate Depaosit)/Ad
Forbes Edumetry Limited** - 3,953.95 N.A N.A_ |General Corporate Purpose
- - 3,953.95 N.A NA
Forbes Technosys Limited - - 45,000.00 - - |General Corporate Purpose
% = 45,000.00 -
C G Given
Forbes Technosys Limited = N.A N.A | General Corporate Purpose
= 531.17 N.A N.A

** Investments Impaired & Advances Provided
Figures in Italics are Previous Year's Figures
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH, 2024 - Continued

34. Segment reporting

Total non-cash expenses other than depreciation

*\ 141076W

The Ci y has identified busi as "l Activities™ and "Real estate”.
g results, assets and segment liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the seg as also il dona ble basis,
Information about business segments for the : T in Thousand
| Particulars I ent Activities ] Real Estate | Total |
| 31stMar, 2024 31stMor, 2023 | 31stMar,2024  3istMar,2023 | 3istMar,2024  3istMor, 2023 |
Segment Revenue - 10.815.87 736.33 720,00 736.33 11,535.87
Inter segment revenue - - = 2 = =
Revenue from operations - 10,815.87 736.33 720.00 736.33 11,535.87
Segment Results (79,398.60) A406.28 602.98 A406.28 (78,795.62)
i » ito £ % = » -
Its after excep items - (79,398.60) 406,28 602.98 406.28 (78,795.62)
Add: Unallocated income 94955 2,010.31
Less: Unallocated expenses (292.76) (368.21)
{Loss) / Profit before tax and finance costs 1,063.06 (77,154.51)
Less: Finance costs = £,554.94
{Loss) / Profit before tax 1,063.06 (85, 705.45)
Provision for taxation:
Current tax expense 133.00 646.00
{Loss) / Profit after tax 930.06 {sq,sssﬂ
Capital employed
Segment assets 692,167.11 6,78,339.71 2,860.84 492.70 6,95,027.95 6,78,832.41
Unallocated corporate assets 15,565.24 18,071.12
Total assets 6,92,167.11 6,78,339.71 2,860.84 492.70 7,10,593.19 6,96,903.53
Segment liabilities = = =
Unallocated corporate liabilities 439.40 1,507.19
Total liabilities - - - 433.40 1,507.19
Capital amployed 69216711 67833971 286084 5270 7,10,15379 69539634
Cost I d to acquire seg assets
adjustments on account of capital work-in-progress - - - - x
Unallocated cost incurred to acquire assets including
_adjustments on account of capital work-in-progress ) 3
Total capital expenditure = =
i dation / isat - - 282.55 5117 28255 5117
Unallocated amortisation s =
Total amortisation 2B2.55 51,17
Non-cash other than d it - * E -
Unaliocated non-cash other than n = =

*
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

35. Financial instruments

35.1. Capital management
The company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the

optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in notes 16 offset by cash and bank balances) and equity of the Company
(comprising issued capital, retained earnings, security premium, amalgamation capital redemption and other reserves as detailed in notes 14 & 15),

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual as well as long term operating plans and other strategic investment plans, The
funding requirements are met through det es. The Comp itors the capital structure on the basis of total debt to equity ratio and maturity profile

of the overall debt portfolio of the Company.

35.2 Gearing ratio

The gearing ratic at end of the period was as follows :- T in Thousand
As at As ar
Particulars 31st Mar., 2029 31st Mar., 2023
Cash and bank balances » -
Net debt - -
Equity 7,10,153.80 * 6,95396.35
Net debt to equity ratio (Refer Note a) - -
Note:-
a) Net Debt Equity Ratio = Long Term Borrowings and Short Term Borrowings (less Cash and Bank Balance) / Equity
35.3 Categories of fi fal i
Tin Thousand
Asat As at
Particulars 31st Mar,, 2024 31st Mar., 2023
[Financial assets
a)Measured at Amortised Cost
Trade receivables 68.70 -
Cash and bank balances 15,555.24 16,420.69
Loans (Inter Corporate Deposit) = -
Investments in subsidiaries - -
Investments in associates - -
Investments in joint ventures 28,056.40 28,056.40
Other Financial Assets 10.00 1.00
Sub Total-a 43,690.33 44,478.08
asured at FVTOCI

Equity Investment (Refer Note 9 A)* 6,64,110.71 6,50,283.31
Sub Total- b 6,64,110.71 6,50,283.31

Total (a+h) 7,07,801.04 6,54,761.40
Fil ial liabilities
Measured at Amortised Cost
Borrowings - =
Trade and other payables 163.75 56.65
Other financial liabilities - -
Total 163.75 56.65

*Fair Value of 1,66,398 number of equity shares of face value of T 10 each held in Forbes & Company Limited (Holding Company) is valued at quoted prices as
fair value hierarchy of level 1,
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

36.

37.

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

On the basis of responses received against enquiries made by the Company, there is 2 NIL outstanding in respect of Micro and Small Enterprises covered
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as at the Balance Sheet date. The Company has not defaulted in payment of
dues to such entities during the period.

Exceptional item

i) Previous year ended March 31, 2023, the board of directors of FTL have pursuant to provisions of Section 230 to 232 applied to the National Company

Law Tribunal (NCLT) for merger of Forbes Campbell Service Limited (“FCSL") and FTL for a consideration of 2 3 Lakhs effective 1 October, 2021 and also
proposed for reduction in the share capital of FTL The NCLT, in its order dated 16" September, 2022 (‘the Order’) approved the Composite Scheme of
Arrangement for amalgamation of Forbes Campbell Service Limited (‘FCSL’) into FTL and reduction of share capital of FTL. The appointed date of the
Scheme is 1% October, 2021 and the scheme has been effective from 29" September, 2022 i.e., the last date on which the certified copy of the order was

Consequent to capital reduction, remaining FTL Investment ¥ 1,515.55 thousand and FCSLinvestment of T 543.99 thousand has been impaired.

i} During the quarter ended 30th September, 2022 and 30th lune, 2022, the Company sold 10,00,000 equity shares and 2,00,000 equity shares respectively

38.

39.

of Eureka Forbes Limited (EFL), of ¥ 10 each at the then prevailing market price of EFL on BSE Limited. The difference between the net disposal proceeds
on sale of EFL shares in the open market and the carrying amount of EFL investments in FCFL books, amounting to ¥ 98,432.59 thousand has been
recognised as an exceptional loss on sale of investments during the quarter ended 30th June, 2022 and ¥ 8,740.43 thousand has been recognised as an
exceptional gain for the quarter ended 30th September 2022,

Net debt reconciliation
T in Thousand
31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023

Short Term Borrowings -

Long Term Borrowings - -
Total debt - -
Cash & Cash equivalents - -
Net debt - 2

Zin Thousand

Other assets Liabilities from financing activities

Cash and bank Long Term Short Term
overdraft Borrowings Borrowings Total

Net debt as at 1st April, 2023 - " . =
Cash flows ‘ 2 5 .
Interest expense - - & =
Interest paid - - 5 -
Net debt as at 31st December, 2023 - - 5 2

Figures for the previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date -

For UB G & COMPANY NIRMAL JAGAWAT airperson
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg Nq: 141076W

RAVINDER PR Director

urav Parekh
Partner
Membership No.: 140694

Mumbai, 22nd April, 2024 Mumbai, 22nd April, 2024
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(a wholly owned Subsidiary Company)

Financial Statements
For the Year ended March 31, 2024
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BATLIBOI & PUROHIT

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Forbes Technosys Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Adverse Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Forbes Technosys Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, because of
the significance of the matters discussed in the ‘Basis for Adverse Opinion’ section of our Report, the
aforesaid financial statements do not give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (“Ind AS™), as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its net loss and the other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

a) We draw attention to Note 34(a) of the financial statements which states that the Company has
incurred a net loss of Rs. 46.32 lakhs during the current year and the Company’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by Rs. 11,011.11 lakhs as at March 31, 2024. The Company has
accumulated losses of Rs. 18,322.65 lakhs and its net-worth has been fully eroded as at March 31,
2024. Further, the Company has filed an application to National Company Law Tribunal — Mumbai
Bench on February 20, 2024 to initiate Corporate Insolvency and Resolution Process (CIRP) under
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 for the reasons stated therein. Considering the above, and
in the absence of necessary and adequate evidence with respect to the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, we believe that the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the financial statements is inappropriate. Consequently, this could result in the Company not
providing for adjustments, if any. that may be required to the carrying values of assets and liabilities,
and its consequential impact on the accompanying financial statements is not ascertained.

b) We draw attention to Note 34(b) of the financial statements which indicates that the Company is in
the process of negotiating settlements with and obtaining balance confirmations, from its outstanding
trade payables (other than related parties) of Rs. 1,693.43 lakhs and trade receivables of Rs. 308.22
lakhs as at March 31, 2024, which has not been completed as of the date of this Report. In view of
the uncertainty associated with the such process and in the absence of balance confirmations from
material vendors and customers, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding these balances and are unable to ascertain the adjustments that may be required to these
balances.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our
reporl. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issucd by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relovant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulf

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Et

National Insurance Building, 2nd Floor, 204, Dr. D. N. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001, Indi
Tel.: +91-22-2207 7942 / 2201 4930 ® Email: auditteam@bnpindia.in
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BATLIBOI & PUROHIT | Continuation Sheet

Chartered Accountants

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
Adverse Opinion on the financial statements.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern
Refer the ‘Basis for Adverse Opinion’ section of this Report.
Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Board Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other in.stmation and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. o

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

L2 ¢
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B ATLIBO' & PUROHIT Continuation Sheet

Chartered Accountants

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

& Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2029 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure A’
a statement on the matters spevified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
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2.

a)

b)

c)

d)

g

h)

)

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for Adverse Opinion” section of this
Report, we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for Adverse Opinion” section of this
Report and for the matters stated in the paragraph ‘2.(j)(vi)’ below on reporting under Rule 1 1(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors Rules, 2014, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for Adverse Opinion’ section of this
Report, in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

The matters described in the ‘Basis for Adverse Opinion’ section of this Report, in our opinion, may
have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on March 31,
2024 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

The modification relating to the maintenance of books of account and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the ‘Basis for Adverse Opinion’ section of this Report and in paragraph “2.(b)” above on
reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and in paragraph “2.(j)(vi)® below on reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report
expresses an Adverse Opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor’s report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16), as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid/provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection

Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been

vi.

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures performed, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided in (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, inventory the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that audit trail feature is not enabled at
database level to log any direct changes. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of accounting software
for the period for which the audit trail feature was operating.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024.

For BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.101048W

N. 8. Gaur

Partner

Membership No. 137138
Place: Mumbai

Date : May 22, 2024
ICAI UDIN: 24137138BKGEMNS8576
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report to the members
of Forbes Technosys Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(a)

(®)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(b)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by the
management in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion,
provides for physical verification of all the property, plant and equipment at reasonable
intervals. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not have ownership of any
immovable property.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) or intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated during the year or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion, with regards to the nature and size of its inventories, the
frequency is reasonable and the coverage and procedure of such physical verification carried
out during the year were appropriate. Discrepancies noted during such physical verification
were less than 10% of the value of respective inventory classes. All discrepancies noted
during the year were properly dealt with in the books of account, however, the quantitative
details of scrap and obsolete inventory and its reconciliation with in the Accounting Software
(SAP) have been maintained in spreadsheets and the Company is in the process of updating
the quantities in the Accounting Software (SAP) which have not been completed as at the
date of this Report.

During any point of time of the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(i)(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any investments, or provided any loans or
provided any advance in the nature of loans or stood guarantee or provided any security to
any entity during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans, made investments or given guarantees in respect of which
p—
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v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

()

(b)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable. Accordingly,
reporting under paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public in accordance with the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any relevant
provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the maintenance of cost records as specified by
the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is
not applicable to the Company based on its turnover in the immediately preceding financial
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities though there has
been slight delays in a few cases which, in our opinion, were not serious.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed statutory dues
referred above were in arrears as at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no statutory dues, referred to in
sub-clause (a), were outstanding that have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which was not recorded in the books of account. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on our audit and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, all inter-corporate deposits received from the Parent and its group companies
are repayable on demand. As informed, the parent and the group companies have not
demanded the repayment during the year, accordingly, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans to any lender during the year. There were no outstanding loans from any
banks, financial institution or government during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, no term loans were obtained or utilised during the year by the
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on
the audit procedures performed by us, funds raised on short term basis have not been utilised
for long term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or i
companies. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i x)(e) of the Order is not applicable.
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)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

®

()

(b)

(a)

(b)

(©)

()

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partly or optionally) during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion and based on the
audit procedures performed by us, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 was filed with the Central Government during the year or upto the
date of the Report.

As represented to us by the management, no whistle blower complaints were received by the
Company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a ‘nidhi’ company and it has not accepted any deposits. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xii)(a), paragraph 3(xii)(b) and paragraph 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company is in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies
Act 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, provisions of section 192 of the Act and paragraph

3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities during the vear. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.
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(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(c)

(d)

(2)

(b)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Group (as defined the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Direction 2016) has two Core Investment Companies
(CICs) as part of the Group.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 3,840.90 lakhs (which includes
Rs. 3,539.52 considered as cash loss for the year as bad debts written off and adjusted against
existing provision for credit loss during the year) in the current financial year and cash losses
of Rs. 1,934.67 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our comments
under the paragraph ‘Basis for Adverse Opinion’ of our Report on the audit of the financial
statements of the Company, our analysis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
in our opinion, sufficient appropriate audit evidence is not available to support the
Company’s ability of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, the Company was not required to spent any amount in terms of Section 135
of the Act during the year. Accordingly, second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of
the said Act and paragraph 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, the Company did not have any ongoing project in terms of Section 135 of
the Act during the year. Accordingly, provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said
Act and paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

For BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.101048W

y

N. S. Gaur

Partner
Membership No. 137138
Place : Mumbai

Date : May 22, 2024
ICAI UDIN: 24137138BKGEMN8576
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph (h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement’s section of our
report to the members of Forbes Technosys Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of Forbes Technosys Limited
(“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial
Controls based on the Internal Control over Financial Reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of Internal Control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and,
both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal
Financial Controls system over Financial Reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting included obtaining an understanding of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of Internal Control based on the assessed risk. The

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
miastatoment of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our Adverse Opinion on the Company’s Internal Financial Controls system over Financial Reporting of
the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. A
company's Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, proj ections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Adverse Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2024:

a) The Company’s internal control system towards assessment of the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, as more fully explained in note 34(a) to the accompanying financial statements
was not operating cffectively due to uncertainties in the judgments and assumptions made by the
Company in such determination, which could result in the Company not providing for adjustments,
if any, that may be required to the carrying values of assets and liabilities, and its consequential
impact on the accompanying financial statements.

b) The Company’s internal control system towards determining the carrying value of trade payables
and trade receivables, was not operating effectively, as more fully explained in note 34(b) to the
accompanying financial statements, which could result in the Company not providing for
adjustments, if any, that may be required to these balances, and its consequential impact on the
accompanying financial statements.

A “material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's
annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
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In our opinion, because of the possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has not maintained adequate and
effective internal financial controls over financial reporting as of March 31, 2024, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal F inancial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2024 financial statements of the
Company, and these material weaknesses have affected our opinion on the financial statements of the
Company and we have issued an Adverse Opinion on the financial statements.

For BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.101048W

[ Ts

N. S. Gaur

Partner

Membership No. 137138
Place : Mumbai

Date : May 22, 2024
ICAI UDIN: 24137138BKGEMN8576
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars Note No. 2024 2023
ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
a)  Property, plant and equipment 3 5.70 6.91
b)  Capital work-in-progress * E
c) Intangible assets 4 - 147
d) Intangible assets under development 4 - -
e) Financial assets:
i} Otherfinancial assets 5 37.96 18.82
f)  Other non-current assets 6 2034 270.27
g) Deferred tax assets (net) - -
Total Non-Current Assets 64.00 297.47
2 Current assets
a)  Inventories 7 1.38 65.12
b)  Financial assets:
i} Trade receivables 8 308.22 293.09
i) Cash and cash equivalents 9 19.01 81.78
i) Bank balances other than (ii) above 9 23.72 69.30
iv) Other financial assets 5 170.26 58.46
c)  Other current assets 6 199.60 206.28 |
Total Current Assets 722.19 774.03
Total Assets 73=6|.=!$9 _m
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a)  Equity share capital 10 94.90 94.90
b}  Instrument entirely equity in nature 11.1 6,237.00 6,237.00
c)  Other equity 11.2 (17,307.93) (17,261.61)
Total Equity (10,976.03) (10,929.71)]
LIABILITIES
1 Non-Current Liabilities
a)  Financial liabilities:
i) Borrowings 12 26.02 23.07
b)  Provisions 13 3.00 32.82
Total Non-Current Liabilities 29.02 55.89
2 Current Liabilities
a)  Financial liabilities:
i) Borrowings 14 7,851.11 7,764.03
i) Lease liabilities ] -
iii} Trade payables 15
(i) Total dues of micro and small enterprises 1,031.54 1,091.78
(i) Total dues of other creditors 1,011.13 1,193.37
iv) Other financial liabilities 16 1,715.38 1,719.38
b)  Provisions 13 10.90 22.72
¢t}  Other current liabilities 17 113.14 154.04
Total Current Liabilities 11,733.20 11,945.32
Total Liabilities 11,762.22 12,001.21 |
Total Equity and Liabilities 786.19 1,071.50 |

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Batliboi & Purohit For and on behalf of th rectors
Chartered Accountants

ifm regn No.101048W Mr. Rohit Jayakar
Managing Director

N. 8. Mr. Jai Mavani (]

Partnerid ~ o5\ G P Director
Membership No, 137138 -' ) LY
~ LR Mr. Vinod Bhandawat
3 Director U/
Mr. Sandeep Kadakia

Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date :

Place : Mumb

Date: .2
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FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. in Lakhs)

: For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars No.
SEEES March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Incomes:
1 Revenue from operations 18 109.87 319.82
] Other income 19 222,74 221.73
[} Total Income (1 +11) 332.61 541.55
v Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 20.1 7.09 84.75
Purchases of stock-in-trade (traded goods) 20.2 1.44 31.70
Changes in inventories of finished goods 20.3 35.58 45.23
and stock-in-trade (traded goods)
Employee benefits expense 21 58.14 200.75
Finance costs 22 51.76 1,082.31
Depreciation and amortisation expense 231 2.68 419.78
Other expenses 23.2 343.29 1,797.65
Total expenses (IV) 499.98 3,662.17
V  |Profit / (Loss) before tax and Exceptional items (I1I-1V) (167.37)] (3,120.62)|
VI  |Exceptional Items - net gain /(loss) 233 125.99 (265.96)
VIl |Profit / (Loss) before tax (V-VI) (41.38) (3,386.58)
Vill  |Tax expense
Current tax - =
Earlier years tax adjustments 4.94 -
Deferred tax = >
4.94 -
IX |Profit / (Loss) for the year (VII - VIII) (46.32)) (3,386.58
X Other comprehensive Income
Remeasure gain/ (loss) of the defined benefit plans - 1.62
Xl |Total Comprehensive income for the year (IX+X) (46.32) (3,384.96)
Xl |Earning per equity share (face value Rs.10 per share) 25
Basic earnings per equity share (4.88) (356.86)
Diluted earnings per equity share (4.88) (356.86)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalfmﬁj Directors
Mr. Rohit Jayakar e

Managing Director

As per our report of even date
For Batliboi & Purohit
Chartered Accountants

Firgil regn No.101048W

-

Mr. Jai Mavani 2
Director

N. S. Gaur
Partner@
Membership No. 137138

Mr. Vinod Bhandawat
Director

Mr. Sandeep Kadakia
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date :

Place : Mumbai

Date :Q_';., 51203'4
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FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Profit/(Loss) before tax {41.38)| (3,386.58))
Adjustments for -

Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.68 419.78

Liabilities/ Provisions no longer required written back (189.86) (178.84)

Interest income (23.34) (20.28)

Finance cost 51.76 1,082.31

Provision for trade receivables 80.00 1,230.90

Provision for doubtful advances 65.63 47.46

Bad debts written off 50.73 36.31

Provision for warranty - (7.28)

Impairment of intangibles assets (including under assets development) - 500.00

Loss on disposal/Write off of assets = 0.22

Exceptional jtems:

Provision for obsolete and slow moving inventory 28.26 96.97

Employees' Full & Final Settlement written back (241.77) -

Gain on Interest walver - (175.81) (702.79) 2,504,76
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes (217.29) (881.82)
Adjustments for changes In working capital:

(Decrease) / Increase in Trade payables (15.34) 198.28
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade Provisions 148.22 (38.52)
(Decrease) / Increase in Other current liabilities (43.90) (82.60)
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Financial liabilities (4.00) (18.78)
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade receivables (211.49) 238.66
Decrease/ (Increase) in Inventories 35.48 69.59
Decrease / (increase) in Other Non Current Assets - 128.70
Decrease [ (Increase) in Other Financial Assets (135.88) 8.21
Decrease / (increase) in Other Current Assets £.68 (220.23) 181.51 685.05
Cash generated from operations (437.52) {196.78)
Income taxes (paid)/ Refund (net) 249.93 69.89
(a) Net cash generated from operating activities |15]‘.59u 126.89]
Cash flows from Investing activities:
Maovement in fixed deposits not considered as cash equivalents 45.58 (2.20)
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment - 2.97
Interest income received 23.34 68.92 20.28 21.05
Ib) Net cash used in Investing activities 68.92 21.05
Cash flows from financing activities:
Inter Corporate Deposits from Related Party 100.00 3,185.00
Repayment of Inter corporate deposit (40.00) -
Repayment of non current borrowings (including debetnures) = (2,341.90)
Finance costs paid (4.10) 55.90 (675.55) 165.90
(c) Net cash (used)in /g d from fi ing activiti 55.90 165.90
(d) Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a +b +c) (62.77) 60.06
(e) Cash and cash equivalents as at the c ement of the period
Balances with banks in current accounts 81.73 21.66
Cash on hand 0.05 81.78 0.06 21.72
(f} Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the period (d +e)
1 Balances with banks in current accounts 18.92 81.73
Cash on hand 0.09 19.01 0.05 B1.78
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. - =
As per our report of even date
For Batlibol & Purohit For and on behalf of ard offDirectors
rtered Accountants
regn No.101048W Mr. Rohit Jayakar,
» Managing Director
Mr. Jai M i 2 M
N. 5. Gaur Director
Partner{
Membership No. 137138 Mr. Vinod Bhandawat
Director
Mr. Sandeep Kadakia
Chief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : LTX? 20 2—" Date :
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FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

A) Equity Share Capital (Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 94.90 94.90 |
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 94.90 94.90 |
Add: Issued during the year -
Balance at the end of the current reporting period 94.90 94.90
B) Instrument entirely equity in nature
_ {Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars 10% Optionally Redeemable
Compulsory Convertible Non- Pepetual Loan Total
Cumulative Preference Shares
Balance as at March 31, 2022 62.00 - 62.00
——
Changes in during the year
-Issued during the year - 6,175.00 6,175.00
Balance as at March 31, 2023 gﬁﬂ 6,175.00 5|237.00
Changes in during the year
-Issued during the year - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 62.00 6,175.00 55237'00
C) Other equity
(Rs. In lakhs)
Equity component
|Particulars ot campount Gapital Resen_'e G| Desmeil s Retained earnings Total
financial Amalgamation contribution
instruments
Current year
Balance at March 31, 2023 807.09 (21.13) 228.75 (18,276.32) (17,261.61)
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - - (46.32) @.G.SZIL
Balance as at March 31, 2024 807.09 I!21.13[ LZSJS {18!322.64} !17!307.93!
Previous year
Balance at March 31, 2022 799.87 (21.13) 228.75 (14,891.36) (13,883.87)
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - - (3,384.96) (3,384.96)
Add: Purchase Consideration as per Composite Tid2 - - B 7.22
Scheme of Arrangement
Balance at March 31, 2023 807.09 (21.13) 228.75 (18,276.32) 11?'261.61l

As per our report of even date
For Batliboi & Purohit
Chartered Accountants

Firrq regn No.101048W

N. S. Gaur
Partner
Membership No. 137138

Place : Mu

Date : 2_1..?;3"/ 2° }Af

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of t

Mr. Rohit Jayakar

ard pf Directors

/

Managing Director

Mr. Jai Mavani

Director

Mr. Vinod Bhandawat
Director

Mr. Sandeep Kadakia

Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date :

v
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FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note No. 3 - Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of use assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
A) Property, Plant and Equipment
Carrying amount of :
a) Furniture & Fixtures 0.53 0.80
b) Data Processing Equipments 4.64 5.06
¢) Office equipment 0.53 1.05
5.70 6.91
=
B) Right of use assets
a) Buildings/ Premises - -
Total 5.70 6.91
m— Cmd
|
ROU Property, Plant and Equip
Particulars Buildings/ Premi Furni & Fixt Datx rw:e:iln: Office equipment Total
L. Cost/ Deemed cost
Balance as at March 31, 2022 (Restated) 37.38 10.75 723.38 69.57 841.08
(+) Additions - . - g -
(-) Disposals/Write off - - - 7.73 7.73
Balance as at March 31, 2023 37.38 10.75 723.38 61.84 833.35
(+) Additions - - - 5 %
(-) Disposals/Write off - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 37.38 10.75 723.38 61.84 833.35
= ——— ————
1L, Accumulated reciation
Balance as at March 31, 2022 (Restated) 36.46 9.45 717.53 64.35 827.719
Depreciation expense 0.92 0.50 0.79 0.98 3.19
Eliminated on disposals of assets ~ - - 4,54 4.54
Balance as at March 31, 2023 37.38 9.95 718.32 60.79 826.44
Depreciation expense - 0.27 0.42 0.52 1.21
Eliminated on disposals of assets - - - = =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 37.38 10.22 19_.74 61.31 827.65
18 i
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - 0.80 5.06 1.05 6.91
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 0.53 4.64 0.53 5.70

Page 179 of 244



FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note No. 4 - Intangible assets and intangible assets under development

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
|intangible Assets
Carrying amount of :
a)Internally developed
Product related softwares and related technologies - 1.47
b) Acquired
Operational related softwares - -
- 1.47
Product related Operational Total
Particulars software software
I. Cost/Deemed cost
Balance as at March 31, 2022 (Restated) 11,428.57 180.48 11,609.03
(-) Disposals/Write off - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 11,428.57 180.48 115609.03
(-) Disposals/Write off “ = =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 11,428.57 180.48 11,609.03
Il. Accumulated amortisation / Impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2022 (Restated) 10,510.49 180.48 10,690.97
Amortisation expenses for the year 416.61 - 416.61
Impairment 500.00 - 500.00
Balance as at March 31, 2023 11,427.10 180.48 115607.58
Amortisation expenses for the year 1.47 - 1.47
Balance as at March 31, 2024 11,428.57 180.48 11!610.52
1ll. Carrying Amount
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1.47 - 1.47
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - - -
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FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 4.1- Carrying amount of internally developed product related softwares and related technologies:

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particular Carrying amount as Carrying amount as
on 31.03.2024 on 31.03.2023
Cheque truncation system - -
Other computer softwares - 1.47
: 1.47 |

Note No. 4.2 Impairment analysis and provision

Particular

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

llmpairment Expenses
Intangible assets under development
Total Disclosed as exceptional items

Total impairment expenses for the year

500.00

500.00

500.00
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FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note No. 5 - Other financial assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
: As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars
2024 2023
INon-current
a) Security deposits 37.96 -
b) Deposits with bank held as margin money with remaining - 18.82
Imaturity of more than 12 months
Total 37.96 18.82
Current
a) Security deposits 151.90 40.05
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits (34.82) (34.82)
117.08 5.23
b) Earnest money deposits 74.22 74.27
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits (21.04) (21.04)}
53.18 53.23
Total 170.26 58.46
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FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note No. 6 - Other assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Non-current
a) Advance income tax 20.34 270.27
b) Balances with statutory / government authorities - VAT - -
Total 20.34 270.27
Current
a) Prepaid expenses . 0.73
b) Balances with statutory / government authorities 21.67 26.20
c) Advances to Employees - 3.29
d) Advances to Suppliers 36.29 20.00
Less: Provision for doubful advances (20.00) (20.00)
16.29 -
e) Others* 176.12 190.54
Less: Provision for doubful balances (14.48) (14.48)1
161.64 176.06
Total 199.60 206.28

*Includes Rs. 175.20 lakhs recoverable from one customer against bank guarantee invoked by the
customer on alleged delay/non performance of service. However, the delay/non-performance was on
account of covid-19 restriction on travel. The Company is in the process of arbitration proceedings as per

legal advice.
Note No. 7 - Inventories (Rs. in Lakhs)
Paiticulais As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2024 2023
Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value
a) Raw materials and components 0.42 0.32
b) Finished goods (Other than those acquired for trading) 0.41 041
c) Stock-in-trade (Traded goods) 0.55 64.39
Total 1.38 65.12

Notes:

(i) The method of valuation of inventories has been stated in note 2.4.
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FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note No. 8 - Trade receivables (Rs. in Lakhs)
particulars As at March | As at March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Current

Li} Unsecured, considered good
From related parties (Refer note (i) below) 0.30 0.30
From others 307.92 292,79
Hiii Unsecured, considered doubtful 40.00 3,499.52
348.22 3,792.61
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 40.00 3,495.52
308.22 293.09

Notes:

/) These amounts are receivable from a private company in which one or more directors of the Company were directors in the said private company during

the year.

Trade Receivable as at 31st March 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars !Less than 6 months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
6 months 1 year 3 years
i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good 10.86 12.28) 62.84 114.70 147.54 348.22 |
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant - - - - “ =
increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - = 2 B 2 -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — considered good N | - < - =
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
[vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - . -
|Trade Receivable as at 31st March 2023 I Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
|Particulars |Less than 6 months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  |Total
6 months 1 year 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good - 61.04 4.12 261.84 3,465.61 3,792.61
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant - - = - - -
i it risk
iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables = considered good - - - o N -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant 4 - H = &
increase in credit risk
.!"""I DisEuted Trade Recelvables — credit impaired - - - - - -
Movement in the Exwed crgdg loss allowance
Particulars As at March | As at March
31,2024 31,2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,499.52 2,326.11
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables Calculated at lifetime expected credit losses
Impairment losses recognised in the year based on lifetime expected credit losses 80.00 1,230.90
3,579.52 3,557.01
Written off / utilised during the year (3,539.52) (57.49)]
hBaIan\ce at the end of the year 40.00 3,499.52
Note No. 9 - Cash and bank balances (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at March | As at March
Farticue 31,2024 31,2023
1;] Cash and cash equivalents
i} Cash on hand 0.09 0.05
if) Balances with bank
- In current accounts 18.92 81.73
19.01 81.78
b] Other bank balances
Balances held as margin money with remaining maturity of less than 12 months 23.72 69.30
272 69.30
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FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note No. 10 - Equity share capital
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
a) Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 5,70,50,000 9,705.00 9,70,50,000 5,705.00
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid:
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each with voting rights 9,48,972 94.90 9,48,972 94.90
Total 9,43,9}‘2 9422 548,972 54.90
i) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares and ding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting perlod:
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars No. of shares Amount
Equity shares with voting rights :
Balance as on March 31, 2022 (Restated) 9I4_s‘9-.-z 94.50
Issued during the year - =
Balance as on March 31, 2023 9,48,972 94.90
Issued during the year e =
Balance as on March 31, 2024 9,48,972 94.90

* Inter corporate deposit converted in to equity share during the year

ii) Rights attached to equity shares:

a) Right to receive dividend as may be approved by the Board / at the Annual General Meeting.
b} The equity shares are not repayable except in the case of a buy back, reduction of capital or winding up in terms of the provision of the Companies Act, 2013,

¢) Every member of the Company holding equity shares has a right to attend the General Meeting of the Company and has a right to speak and on a show of hands, has one vote if he is present in person
and on a poll shall have the right to vote in proportion to his share of the paid-up capital of the Company.

il) Details of Equity shares held by the holdi Y, its sub les and associates:
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
Forbes & Company Limited, the Holding company 7,30,000 7,30,000
Forbes Campbell Finance Limited, the fellow subsidiary company 2,18972 2,18972
9I4!E!?2 2IQI|572
Iv) Detalls of Equity shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
Particulars No. of shares held % of holding
As at March 31, 2024
Forbes & Company Limited, the Holding company 7,30,000 76.93%
Forbes Campbell Finance Limited, the fellow subsidiary company 2,18972 23.07%
As at March 31, 2023
Forbes & Company Limited, the Helding company 7,320,000 76.93%
Forbes Campbell Finance Limited, the fellow subsidiary company 2,18,972 23.07%
u! Share huldini g Promoters
As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2024 2023 % total % change
Promoter name
shares during the year
No. of shares held | No. of shares held
a) Equity share of Rs.10 each
Forbes & Company Limited, the Holding company 7,30,000 7,30,000 76.93% -
Forbes Campbe!l Finance Limited, the fellow subsidiary company 2,18,972 2,18,972 23.07% -
b) Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each
Forbes & Company Limited, the Holding company 6,00,000 6,00,000 61.22% -
Forbes Campbell Finance Limited, the fellow subsidiary company 2,60,000 2,60,000 26.53% -

vi) No shares were allotted pursuant to contract{s) without payment being recelved in cash or by way of bonus shares and no shares were bought back during the period of five years iImmediately

preceding March 31, 2024.
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FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note No. 11.1 - Instruments entirely equity in nature (Rs. In lakhs)
As at March 31
Particul March 31, 2024 7
articulars As at Marc s 2023
a) 10% Optionally Redeemable Compulsory Convertible Non-Cumulative Preference Shares
62.00 62.00

Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the year -
62.00 62.00

Closing Balance
(Refer Note 33 for detailed disclosure on Preference Share Capital of the company.)

b) Pepetual Loan

Opening Balance 6,175.00 -

Add: Addition during the year (Refer note below) - 6,175.00

Closing Balance 6,175.00 6,175.00
Balance at the end of the year 6,=237.00 6,237.00

On March 15, 2023, the Company had entered into an agreement with Shapoorji Pallonji & Co Private Limited (‘the Lender’), where unsecured|

Inter-Corporate-Deposits (ICD’) having principal amount of Rs. 6,175.00 lakhs (including interest accrued thereon) as at March 31, 2022
repayable on demand with interest rate of 11.50% per annum, were converted into an unsecured perpetual loan (‘the Perpetual Loan’) with
effect from April 01, 2022. The said Perpetual Loan has no maturity or defined tenure and repayment of any amount in part or in full is at sole
discretion of the Company. Interest accrual on the Perpetual Loan is non-cumulative and is payable at sole discretion of the Company up to
11.5% per annum for any particular or preceding financial year/s. The said Perpetual Loan shall be subordinate to all existing amount borrowed
or debt securities issued by the Company to any other person (other than the Lender itself) and shall be ranked only senior to the equity share

capital of the Company.

Based on the above terms, the Company does not have any obligation or repayment or distribution (of interest) under the said agreement and
repayment or distribution (of interest), if any, is at the sole discretion of the Company. Accordingly, the said Perpetual Loan has been classified
as instruments entirely equity in nature. Interest accrued and payable of Rs. 1,706.63 lakhs (Previous year: Rs.1,706.63 lakhs) on such ICDs has

been disclosed as other financial liabilities.
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FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note No. 11.2 - Other Equity

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31,
2023

a)Equity component of compound financial instruments
(i) Equity component of 0.1% Cumulative non-convertible preference shares

Opening Balance

Add: Addition during the year

Closing Balance

(Refer Note 33 for detailed disclosure on Preference Share Capital of the company.)

(ii) Equity component of 6% Non-Cumulative non-convertible redeemable preference shares

Opening Balance

Add: Purchase Consideration as per Composite Scheme of Arrangement

Closing Balance

(Refer Note 33 for detailed disclosure on Preference Share Capital of the company.)

(iiii) Interest component of Compound Financial instruments reclassified to equity
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the year
Closing Balance
(Refer Note 33 for detailed disclosure on Preference Share Capital of the company.)

b) Capital Reserve on Amalgamation (Debit Balance)

Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the year
Closing Balance

c) Deemed capital contribution - Financial Guarantee commission
Opening Balance

Add: Addition during the year

Closing Balance

d) Retained earnings
Opening Balance
Add: profits for the year (including other comprehensive income)

Closing Balance

Balance at the end of the year

8.94

8.94

8.94

8.94

7.22

7.22

7.22

790.93

790.93

722

790.93

790.93

(21.13)

(21.13)

(21.13)

(21.13)

228.75

228.75

228.75

(18,276.32)
(46.32)

(14,891.36)
(3,384.96)

228.75
Lt

(18,322.65)

‘18!276.32!|

(17,307.93)

(17,261.61)

Nature and purpose of reserve

Capital reserve

C of Ind AS 103 “Business Combinations”.

Retained earnings

Other equity components

accordance with Ind AS 32 / Ind AS 109.

Retained earnings represents accumulated earnings/losses of the Company as on the balance sheet date.

The Capital reserve (debit balance) has been created on account of the amalgamation accounted by applying the principles as set out in Appendix

Other equity components represent the amounts/benefits received from the transactions with shareholders in the nature of the equity in
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FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note No. 12 - Borrowings - Non- Current (Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March | As at March 31,
Particulars
31, 2024 2023

a) Liability Component of Compound Financial Instrument

i) Liability Component of Preference Share Capital 26.02 23.07

Total 26.02 23.07

Notes:
12.1) 0.1% Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Participating Preference Shares were issued in 2010-11 for a

tenure of 20 years with cumulative dividend of 0.1% per annum. (Refer note 33 for details of preference share
capital)

12.2) 6% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares were issued on March 31, 2023 for a
tenure of 3 years. (Refer note 33 for details of preference share capital)
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FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note No. 13 - Provisions

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Non-current
a) Provision for employee benefits
i) Gratuity (Refer note 26) - 2133
ii) Compensated absences - 8.49
b) Other provisions
i) Assurance Warranty (Refer note below) 3.00 3.00
Total 3.00 32.82
|Current
a) Provision for employee benefits
i) Gratuity (see note 26) - 5.85
ii) Compensated absences - 5.97
b) Other provisions
i) Assurance Warranty (Refer note below) 10.90 10.90
Total 10.90 22.72

Note : Movement of warranties

The Company provides warranty on certain products, undertaking to repair or replace the item that fail to perform
satisfactorily during the warranty period. Warranty provisions are made for expected future outflows where no
reimbursements are expected and estimated based on using historical information on the nature, frequency and average
cost of warranty claims. The Table given below gives information about movement in warranty provisions.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Amount

Balance as on March 31, 2022 (Restated)
Additional provisions recognised

Reduction arising from utilisation/reversal during the year

Balance as on March 31, 2023
Additional provisions recognised

Reduction arising from utilisation/reversal during the year

Balance as on March 31, 2024

21.18

(7.28)

13.90

13.90
(13.90

13.90
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FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note No. 14 - Borrowings- Current (Rs. in Lakhs)

purtichlars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
. 2024 2023

{Unsecured, at amortised cost
a) Loan from related parties - repayable on demand

Inter corporate depsoits (ICD) (refer note (i) to (iv) below 7,851.11 7,764.03

TOTAL 7,851.11 7,764.03

“Notes:

(i) Fixed rate ICD from Shapooriji Pallonji Development Managers Private Limited repayable on demand. The effective rate of interest

is 15.0% p.a (as on March 31, 2023 was 15.0% p.a)
(i)  Fixed rate ICD from Forbes & Company Limited repayable on demand. The effective rate of interest is 11.00% p.a (as on March 31,

2023 was 11.00% p.a.).
(iii)  Fixed rate ICD from Volkart Flemming Shipping & Services Limited is repayable on demand. The effective rate of interest is 11.00%
p.a (as on March 31, 2023 was 11.00% p.a.)

(v)  Fixed rate ICD from Forbes Campbell Finance Ltd repayable on demand. The rate of interest is 11.75% p.a. (as on March 31, 2023
(vi) Forbes & Company Limited, Volkart Flemming Shipping & Services Limited and Forbes Campbell Finance Ltd have waived interest
for the period of two years (April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2024) as per the Interest Waiver Letter received from the respective

companies
(vii) No charge or satisfaction are pending to be registered with registrar of companies as on March 31, 2024.
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FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note No. 15 - Trade Payables (Rs. in Lakhs)

parGciitar As at March 31, | Asat March 31,

i 2024 2023
Current
a) Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note 28)* 1,031.54 1,091.78
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,011.13 1,193.37
Total 2,042.67 25285.‘15
Trade Payables ageing schedule as on 31st March 2024
Particulars | Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
lfess than 1 year |1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
years

(I)MSME 34.19 291.24 25.60 680.51 1,031.54
(ii)Others B2.44 48.29 81.15 799.24 1,011.13
(iii) Disputed dues = MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Total 116.63 339.53 106.76 1,479.75 2,042.67

Trade Payables ageing schedule as on 31st March 2023

Particulars

utstanding for following periods from due date of payment

| O
Less than 1 year |1-2 years 2-3 years IMore than 3 Total
years
())MSME 291.16 33.70 214,17 459.43 998.46
(ii)Others 252.44 118.76 269.51 552.66 1,193.37
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - 80.33 12.99 93.32
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Total 543.60 152.46 564.01 1,025.09 2,285.15
Note No.16 - Other financial liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2024 2023
Current
a) Security Deposits 8.75 12.75
b) Interest accrued and payable on demand* 1,706.63 1,706.63
Totall 1,715.38 1,719,38
|

* Payable to Shapoorji Pallonji & Company Private Limited (ultimate holding company) on previously outstanding Inter-corporate deposits, which have been converted
into perpetual loan and disclosed as instruments entirely equity in nature (refer note 11.1 (b}.

(Rs. in Lakhs[

Note No. 17 - Other liabilities
Particolars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023
Current
Contract Liabilities
a) Payables to statutory authorities (includes Rs. 94.48 Lakhs,unreconciled Income Tax Refund) 97.64 101.22
b) Unbilled revenue - Service Contracts - 36.82
c) Security deposit - Vendors 15.50 16.00
Total 113.14 154.04
|
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Note No. 18 - Revenue from operations (Rs. in Lakhs)

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Sale of goods
i) Traded goods
Business Automation Products 16.22 161.58

16.22 161.58

b) Sale of services
i) Annual maintenance and support services charges 93.65 142.70

ii) Other Service Charges - 15.54
93.65 158.24
Total 109.87 319.82

18.1) No adjustments were required to be made to Contract Prices in respect of discounts, rebates, refunds etc.
during the year.

Note No. 19 - Other income (Rs. in Lakhs)

. For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) Interest income
i) on fixed deposit with banks 5.50 4.70
ii) on Income tax refund 17.84 15.58
b) Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back 189.86 178.84
¢) Miscellaneous income 9.54 22.61
Total 222,74 221.73
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Note No. 20.1 Cost of materials consumed

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Opening stock of raw materials and components 0.32 24.67
Add: Purchases 7.19 60.40
7.51 85.07
Less: Closing stock of raw materials and components 0.42 0.32
Total 7.09 84.75
Less: Disclosed as exceptional item
Write down of Inventory to net realisable value - -
Total 7.09 84.75
Note No. 20.2 Purchases of stock-in-trade (traded Eoods}
; For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Scanner - 29.90
Others 1.44 1.80
Total 1.44 31.70

Note No. 20.3 Changes in inventories of finished Eoods and stock-in-trade

Particulars

a) Inventories at the beginning of the year:
i) Finished goods

ii) Stock-in-trade (traded goods)

b) Inventories at the end of the year:
i) Finished goods
ii) Stock-in-trade (traded goods)

Less: Disclosed as exceptional item
Write down of Inventory to net realisable value

Net increase/Decrease

traded goods)
For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

0.41 0.41

64.39 206.59

64.80 207.00

0.41 0.41

0.55 64.39

0.96 64.80

63.84 142.20

28.26 96.97

35.58 45.23
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Note No. 21 - Employee benefits expense

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) Salaries and wages 52.48 184.93
b) Contribution to provident and other funds 3.25 10.54
c) Gratuity expense (Refer note no. 26) 1.91 3.73
d) Staff welfare expense 0.50 1.55
Total 58.14 200.75

Note No. 22 - Finance costs
; For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Interest expense on:

i) Debentures - 2294
ii) Term loans = 23.28
iii) Cash credits and working capital loans - 8.99
iv) Loans from related parties 30.08 732.79
v) Others 2.95 4.05
vi) Interest on MSME 14.63 288.75
47.66 1,080.79
b) Other borrowing costs 4.10 1.52
Total 51.76 1,082.31
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Note No. 23.1 - Depreciation and amortisation

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Depreciation on Property plant and equipment 1.21 2.25
Amortisation on intangible assets 1.47 416.61
Amortisation of ROU assets - 0.92
2.68 419.78

Note No. 23.2 - Other expenses (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Managed assets service provider's charges
Contract labour charges
Contract assets written off
CHI Charges
Power and fuel
Rent including lease rentals
Repairs and maintenance - Others
Insurance
Communication
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Freight and forwarding
Service charges
Strategic Support Service Charges
Legal and professional
Payments to the auditor (Net of Taxes)
i) Audit fees
i) Limited Review
iii) Others
Bad debts written off
Provision for trade receivables (net)
Provision / Write off of Doubtful Advances
Loss on disposal/Write off of assets
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

18.30 42.06
36.68 145.26
- 157.45
- 0.10
5.87 10.45
0.41 6.46
0.54 0.47
0.81 7.10
4.56 6.64
3.38 7.43
0.82 2.73
- 2.40
= 0.24
2.37 7.17
63.39 70.87
4.00 4.77
3.50 3.50
0.55 =
50.73 36.31
80.00 1,230.90
65.63 47.46
- 0.22
1.74 7.66
343.29 1,797.65
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Note No. 23.3 - Exceptional Items - gain /(loss)

Partielars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Impairment of intangibles assets (including assets under development) - (500.00)
b) Gain on Interest waiver - 702.79
c) Sales tax demand paid (16.25) (371.78)
d) Write down of inventories to net realisable value (28.26) (96.97)
e) Invocation of bank guarantee by customer (71.28) -
f) Employees' full and final settlement written back 241.77 -
125.98 (265.96)

Note:

During the year the Company has settled and paid various employee's full and final settlements and has written back a balance amount of
Rs. 241.77 lakhs. Out of the total amount written back Rs. 132.11 lakhs was pertaining to employees whose incentives and full and final
claims were disputed by the Company on account of performance deficiencies. Claims of such employees have been included under

contingent liability.
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Note No. 24 - Segment information

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on the types of goods or services delivered or provided. In respect of sale of goods, the
information is further analysed as Trading Segment and Manufacturing Segment and in respect of sale of services as Transaction
Network and Support Service Segment. Trading segment includes the sales of sanners and others. Manufacturing segment
includes the sale of different types of Kiosks. Transaction network and services comprises maintenance, servicing, transaction
charges, support services for kiosks and other devices. No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the company.

Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets and segment liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of
the segments as also amounts allocated on a reasonable basis.

On account of significant reduction in operation during the past few years, the chief operating decision maker performs
assessment of the remaining operation as a single segment. Accordingly, there are no separate reporting segment during the

year.
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Note No. 25 - Earnings per Share
(Rs. In lakhs)
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rupees Rupees
1) i) Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable to Owners for Basic earnings (46.33) (3,386.58)
i) Effect of dilution on Profit/ (Loss) for the year. - -
iii) Profit / (Loss) for the year adjusted after effect of dilution (46.33) (3,386.58)
2) i) Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per 9.49 9.49
share (in lakhs)
i) Effect of dilution on weighted average number of equity shares (in lakhs) - =
iii) Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per 9.49 9.49
share (in lakhs)
3) Par value per share 10.00 10.00
Earnings per Share (in Rs.)
Basic earnings per share (4.88) (356.86)
Diluted earning per share (4.88) (356.86)

Diluted earnings per share

The diluted earnings per share has been computed by dividing the Net profit after tax available for Equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares. In the current year since, the effect of the conversion of Preference shares was anti-dilutive, it has

been ignored.
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26. Employee benefit plans
26.1 Defined Contribution plans

The Company makes contributions to Provident Fund (including NPS) and Employees State Insurance which is defined
contribution plan for qualifying employees. Under the Scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified
percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at
rates specified in the rules of the schemes. The Company has recognised the following amount in the statement of

profit and loss under the head "Employee Benefit Expense".

(Rs. In lakhs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2024 2023
Contributions to provident fund (including NPS) 3.25 10.54
Contributions to Employees State Insurance - =

26. 2 Defined benefit plans

The Company offers Gratuity (included as part of Gratuity expense in Note 21 Employee benefits expense) as
employee benefit scheme to its employees. The Company's Gratuity scheme is unfunded.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

(Rs. In lakhs)
Valuation as at
Particulars Forsheves | . fisech i
ended March 31, 3093
2024

Discount rate(s) N.A. 7.31%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase N.A, 5.00%
Attrition N.A. 20.00%
Retirement age N.A. 60 & 70 Yrs
Mortality tables N.A. Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2012-14) Urban

Note:

As at March 31, 2024, the Company did not have any employee who has completed five years accordingly, the

Company has not obtained Actuarial Valuation for the year.

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefits plans are as follows:

(Rs. In lakhs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2024 2023
Current Service Cost 1.91 3.03
Past Service Cost and (gain)/loss from settlements - .
Net Interest expense - 2.98
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in the Statement of Profit 1.91 6.01
and Loss
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions - (0.98)
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from experience assumptions - (0.64)
Others (describe)
Adjustments for restrictions on the defined benefit asset
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive - (1.62)
income
Total 1.91 4.39
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The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the "Employee benefits expense" line
item in the statement of profit and loss.The premeasurement of the net defined liability is included in other
comprehensive income.Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows:

(Rs. In lakhs)
Pariiculirs As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023

Opening defined benefit obligations 27.17 48.87
Current service cost 191 3.03
Interest Cost - 2,98
Past Service Cost and (gain)/loss from settlements - -
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions 2 =
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions - (0.98)
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from experience assumptions . (0.64)
Benefits paid (29.08) (16.75)
Closing defined benefit obligation - 36.51
Gratuity Liability of resigned employees transferred to trade payables - 9.34
Closing defined benefit obligation provision - 27.17

26.3 Mortality

It is assumed that the active members of the scheme will experience in-service mortality in accordance with the Indian

Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14).

26.4 Experience adjustments (Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023
Opening Net Liability 27.17 48.87
[Expense as above 191 6.01
Amount Recognised in Balance Sheet . 36.51
Experience gain / (loss) adjustments on plan liabilities - 1.62

26.5 Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected
salary increase and employee turnover. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably
possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptions constant.

(Rs. In lakhs)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars afe3
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions - 36.51
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting - (0.75)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting . 0.80
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase - 0.81
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase - (0.77)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover - 0.06
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover - (0.06)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the
defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance

sheet.
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27. Financial Instruments
27.1 Capital Management

The Company's Board of directors and KMP review the capital structure of the company on an annual basis. As part of the review, the
committee considers the cost of capital and the risks assoclated with each class of capital. The gearing ratio at March 31, 2024 [s negative (as

below).

27.1.1 Debt-Equity Ratio

The Debt-Equity ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows: (Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As on March 31, As on March 31,
2024 2023
Paid-up debt capital (Refer Note (i) Below) 26.02 23.07
Equity (Refer Note (i) Below) (10,976.05) (10,929.72)
Net debt to equity ratio Negative Negative

Notes:

{i) Debt is defined as Long-term borrowings and Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note 12)

(ii) Equity is defined as Equity Share Capital and Other Equity (Refer note 10 and 11)

[Rs. In lakhs)

27.2 Categories of financial instruments
Particulars As on March 31, As on March 31,
2024 2023

Financial Assets

(a) Cash and bank bal 42.74 151.08
(b) Other financial assets at amortised cost

(i) Other Financial assets 208.22 77.28 |
(ii) Trade receivables 308.23 293.09
Total 559.19 521.45
M ed at Amortised cost

(1) Other Financial liabilities 1,715.38 1,719.38
(i) Borrowings 7,877.13 7,787.11
(iii) Trade Payables 2,042.67 2,285.15
| Total 11,635.18 11,791.64 |

27.3 Financial Risk Management Objectives

The Company sells goods and provides services to the business in domestic markets and procures goods and services from domestic
markets. The Management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the company by analysing exposures by
degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

27.4 Foreign currency risk management

The Companies does not have any foreign currency exposure, accordingly the company is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

27.5 Interest rate risk management

The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk because the Company does not have any borrowings at floating interest rates. Currently,
the Company's borrowing are in the form of Inter Corporate deposits from parent group companies only at fixed interest rates.

27.6Fi ial risk B nt objectives

The Company activities expose it to financial risk- credit risk and liquidity risk. In order to manage the aforementioned risk the company

operates the risk management policy.

The Company function reports quarterly to the Group's risk management committee, an independent body that monitors risks and policies

implemented to mitigate risk exposures.

27.6.1 Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the company. The

company only transacts with entities that are assessed as creditworthy.

Trade receivables consists of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the

financial condition of accounts receivable. (Refer Note 8 for provision for expected credit loss).
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27.6.2 Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the company's short-term, medium - term and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate banking facilities, obtaining inter-corporate
deposits and capital contribution from its Holding Company, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Note 27.6.3 below sets out details of additional undrawn facilities that the company has at

its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk. (Also refer Note 34)

27.6.3 Liquidity and interest risk tables

Expected maturity for Non-derivative financial liability other than lease liabilities

The following table details the company's remaining contractual maturity for the non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment
periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flow of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
company may be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest

date on which the company may be required to pay.

(Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-5 years 5 + years Total

March 31, 2024

Non-interest bearing
2,042.67

Trade payables 2,042.67
Interest accrued on payable to ultimate holding 1,706.63 1,706.63

company
Security deposits 8.75 8.75

Fixed interest rate instruments

Loans from related parties
Shapoorji Pallonji Development Managers 399.24 399.24
Private Limited i
Forbes & Company 6,806.93 6,806.99
Forbes Campbell Finance Ltd 467.84 467.84
Volkart Fleming Shipping and Services Limited 177.04 177.04
Liability Companent of Preference Shares
Forbes Campbell Finance Ltd 20.93 20,93
Shapoorji Pallonji and Co. Pvt. Ltd. 5.09 5.09
March 31, 2023
| Non-interest bearing
Trade payables 2,285.15 2,285.15
Interest accrued on payable to ultimate holding 1,706.63 1,706.63
company
Security deposits 12.75 12.75
Fixed interest rate instruments
Loans from related parties
Shapoaorji Pallonji Development Managers 37217 37217
Private Limited
Forbes & Company 6,746.99 6,746.99
Forbes Campbell Finance Ltd 467.84 467.84
Volkart Fleming Shipping and Services Limited 177.04 177.04
Liability Component of Preference Shares
Forbes Campbell Finance Ltd 18.78 18.78
Shapoorji Pallonji and Co. Pvt. Ltd. 4.29 4.29

AVIAY
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Expected maturity for Non-derivative financial assets
The following table details the company expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the

undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of information
on non-derivative financial asset is necessary in order to understand the company's liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on

a net asset and liability basis.

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-5 years 5 + years Total

March 31, 2024

Non-interest bearing
Trade receivables 308.23 - 308.23
Cash and cash equivalents 19.01 - 19.01
Security deposits 117.08 37.96 155.04
Earnest money deposits 53.18 - 53.18

Fixed interest rate instruments -
Deposits with bank 23.72 - 23.72

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-5 years 5+ years Total

March 31, 2023

Non-interest bearing
Trade receivables 293.09 - 293.09
Cash and cash equivalents B81.78 3 81.78
Security deposits 5.23 = 5.23
Earnest money deposits 53,23 - 53_3

Fined interest rate instruments -
Deposits with bank 69.30 18.82 88.12
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27.7 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements

approximate their fair values.

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at amortised cost: 559.18 559.18 __521.45 521.45
Other non-current financial assets 37.96 37.96 18.82 18.82 |
Trade receivables 308.23 308.23 293.09 293.09 |
Cash and cash equivalent 19.01 19.01 81.78 B1.78
Bank Balances 23.72 23.72 69.30 69.30
Other current financial assets 170.26 170.26 58.46 58.46
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities held at amortised cost: 11,635.18 11,635.18 11,791.63 11,791.63
Borrowings (Non current) 26.02 26.02 23.07 23.07
Trade payables 2,042.67 2,042.67 2,285.15 2,285.15
Borrowings (Current) Including current 7,851.11 7,851.11 7,764.03 7,764.03
Other current financial liabilities 1,715.38 1,715.38 1,719.38 1,719.38
Fair value hierarchy (Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars Fair value hierarchy as at March 31, 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at amortised cost:
Other non-current financial assets - - 37.96 37.96
Trade receivables - - 308.22 308.22
Cash and cash equivalent 19.01 - - 19.01
Bank Balances 23.72 - - 23.72
Other current financial assets - 170.26 170.26
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities held at amortised cost:
Borrowings (Non-current) - - 26.02 26.02
Trade payables - - 2,042.67 2,042,67
Borrowings (Current) - - 7,851.11 7,851.11
|_Other current financial liabilities (Including - - 1,715.38 1,715.38
Particulars Fair value hierarchy as at March 31, 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at amortised cost:
Other non-current financial assets - = 18.82 18.82
Trade receivables - - 293.09 293.09
Cash and cash equivalent 81.78 - - 81.78
Bank Balances £9.30 - - 69.30 |
Other current financial assets - - 58.46 58.46 |
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities held at amortised cost:
Borrowings (Non-current) - - 23.07 23.07
Trade payables - - 2,285.15 2,285.15
Borrowings (Current) - - 7,764.03 7,764.03
Other current financial liabilities (Includin = - 1,719.38 1,719.38
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Note No. 28 Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Rs. In Iakhs}
Particulars Ason Ason
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i) Principal nt remaini ald to micro, small and medium enterpri s at the end of]|
(i) Principa 'anwu maining unp icro, s nd mediu erprises a the end o 589.87 664.75
the accounting year
(if) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), N
(ifi) Principal payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting 10.86 84.21
(iv) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year} but without adding the interest - _
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;
(v) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year;
14.63 288.75
and
{vi) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and #4166 2108
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

The information as required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, has been determined to the extent such

parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company
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29 Related Party Transactions
(a) Details of related parties:

|Names of related parties

Shapoorji Pallonji & Company Pvt Ltd
Forbes & Company Limited
Forbes Campbell Finance Limited

Ultimate holding company
Holding company
Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary

|Shapoorji Pallonji Development Managers Private Limited
Volkart Fleming Shipping & Services Limited

Forvol International Services Limited

Shapoorji Pallonji Finance Private Limited

Mr.Rohit Jayakar, Managing Director

Mr. Subramania lyer Kuppuswamy, Non-Executive Director
Mr. Vinod Bhandawat

Mr. Jai Mavani, Non-Executive Director

Key Management Personnel
Director
Director
Director

(b) Details of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2024

Ms. Prachi Dave Sitting Fees paid

Name of Related Party |Nature of Transactions As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2024 2023
Shapoorji Pallonji & Company Strategic Support Services 2.90 3.65
Private Ltd Interest on Liability Component of Compound Financial Instruments - 0.49
Forbes & Company Limited Service charges 1.20 6.00
Services received- Rent 0.15 4.25
Inter-Corporate Deposits taken 100.00 3,185.00
Repayment of Inter-Corporate Deposits 40.00 -
lRe‘tmbursement of expenses 181 1.79
[Financial Guarantee Commission - 0.24
Other Reimbursements (Payment) - 0.63
Security Exp - FCSL - 15.54
Interest waiver 713.22 536.46
Royalty charges [Rs. 24 (Previous Year: Rs. 24})] 0.00 0.00
Forbes Campbell Finance Ltd Interest waiver 49.64 49.50
Shapoorji Pallonji Development  Jinterest paid / provided 30.08 30.00
Managers Private Limited
Forvol International Services Service charges 0.56 -
Limited
Volkart Fleming Shipping and Interest waiver 16.88 16.83
Shapoorji Pallonji Finance Private |interest paid / provided (on delayed payment of bills discounted by the - -
Limited vendors of the company)
Mr. Rohit Jayakar, Remuneration paid / payable 14.21 14.21
Managing director
Mr. Eddie Poonawala Sitting Fees paid - 0.60
- 0.40
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(c) Details of related party balances outstanding as at March 31, 2024

|Name of Related Party |Nature of Balances As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023
Shapoorji Pallonji & Company Trade payables 111.47 112.67
Private Ltd. Perpetual Loan - Instruments entirely equity in nature 6,175.00 6,175.00
Trade receivables 0.30 0.30
Preference Shares Classified as Compound Financial Instrument 10.00 10.00
Interest Accrued on Debt Component of Preference Shares 4.04 3.49
Interest accrued 1,706.63 1,706.63
Forbes & Company Limited Trade payables 349.24 349.62
Deposits payable 6,510.73 6,450.73
Corporate Guarantee given to Banks for loans taken by Company - 69.33
Preference Shares Classified as Equity 60.00 60.00
Interest accrued 296.26 296.26
6% -Non Cumulative/Non convertible redeemable Preference Share 13.26 13.26
Equity Share Capital 73.00 73.00
Security Deposit Receivable - For Registered office at Andheri 0.09 -
Forbes Campbell Finance Ltd Interest accrued 17.84 17.84
Inter-Corporate Deposits payable 450.00 450.00
Corporate Guarantee given to Banks for loans taken by Company 150.00 150.00
Equity Share Capital 21.90 21.90
Preference Shares Classified as Compound Financial Instrument 26.00 26.00
Interest Accrued on Debt Component of Preference Shares 2.15 =
Shapoor]i Pallonji Development Interest accrued 199.24 172.17
Managers Private Limited Inter-Corporate Deposits payable 200.00 200.00
Volkart Fleming Shipping & 10% Optional convertible redeemable Preference Shares 2.00 2.00
Services Limited Inter-Corporate Deposits payable 153.00 153.00
Interest accrued 24,04 24,04
|Remuneration and Reimbursement of 2.37 0.94

Mr. Rohit Jayakar, Managing
Director
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30. Lease arrangements

30.1 The Company as a lessee

30.1.1 Leasing arrangements

The company has taken certain buildings and premises under cancellable operating leases. In such lease agreements, there
are no terms for purchase option or any restriction such as those concerning dividend and additional debts. Lease
agreements of the Company do not contain any variable lease payment or any residual value guarantees. The Company has
not entered into any sublease agreement.

30.1.2 Income/Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss (Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

0.41 6.46

Lease payments accounted as rent expense

Amortisation of Right of use assets (net of capitalisation) - 0.92

Unwinding discount on lease liabilities = -

Gain on lease modification/termination - -
0.41 7.38

Total
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31. Contingent liabilities and Commitments:

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

Contingent Liabilities:

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts
(a) Claims of creditors
(b) Claims of employees

352.60 61.65
132.11 -

Commitments

31.1 Contingent liabilities above represent estimates made mainly for probable claims arising out of litigation and disputes
pending with tax authorities. The probability and timing of outflow with regard to these matters depend on the final
outcome of litigations / disputes. Hence the Company is not able to reasonably ascertain the timing of the outflow.

31.2 During the year, the Company has received a demand notice from one of its creditors for Rs. 492.51 lakhs (including
interest for delayed payments) under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 against which the Company has accounted
a liability of Rs. 339.01 lakhs (including interest provision for delayed payments). The balance claim of the party has been
disputed by the Company which has been included under the contingent liability.

31.3 In addition to above, the Company is also subject to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of
business. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where
provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liability, where applicable. The management does not reasonably
expect that these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the

Company's operations or financial condition.

32. Deferred tax balances
The Company has restricted the recognition of deferred tax assets on account of unabsorbed depreciation and brought

forward business loss and certain other assets to set off the deferred tax liabilities arising on account of temporary
difference arising on Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets. The Company did not have any deferred tax
liability as on March 31, 2024, accordingly, the Company has not recognised any deferred tax assets. Unabsorbed
depreciation and brought forward business losses as per Income Tax Return (ITR) filed by the Company for Assessment Year
2023-24 were Rs. 9,148.50 Lakhs and Rs. 14,520.84 Lakhs.
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33. Preference Share Capital

(A) Details of Preference Share Capital (Rs. In lakhs)
As on March 31, 2024 As on March 31, 2023
Particulars
No. of shares Rupees No. of shares Rupees
a) Authorised share capital
10% Non Cummulative, Optionally Redeemable Compulsory Convertible Preference 6,20,00,000 6,200.00 6,20,00,000 6,200.00
Shares of Rs. 10 each
6% Non-Cumulative non-convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10 each 1,00,00,000 1,000.00 1,00,00,000 1,000.00
0.1 % Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Participating Preference Shares of Rs. 55,00,000 550.00 55,00,000 550.00
10 each
7,75,00,000 7,750.00 7,75,00,000 7,750.00
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid:
10% Non Cummulative, Optionally Redeemable Compulsory Convertible Preference 6,20,000 62.00 6,20,000 62.00
Shares of Rs. 10 each
0.1 % Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Participating Preference Shares of Rs. 1,00,000 10.00 1,00,000 10.00
10 each
6% Non-Cumulative non-convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10 each 2,60,000 26.00 2,60,000 26.00
Total 9,80,000 98.00 9,80,000 98.00
i) Reconciliation of the number of Preference shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
Particulars No. of shares Amount
0.1 % Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Participating Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,00,000 10.00
Add : Fresh issue a -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 _1‘00.000 10.00
Add : Fresh issue = %
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,00,000 10.00
10% Non Cummulative, Optionally Redeemable Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each
Balance as at March 31, 2022 6,20,000 62.00
Add : Fresh issue i
Balance as at March 31, 2023 6,20,000 62.00
Add : Fresh issue = 5
Balance as at March 31, 2024 6,20,000 62.00
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33. Preference Share Capital (Contd...)

(i) Rights attached to 10% Non Cummulative, Optionally Redeemable Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares.

a) The preference shares shall be Redeemed at the option of the Company at par in accordance with Section 55 of the Companies Act, 2013 out of profits

available for distribution as dividend or out of fresh issue of shares made for the purpose of redemption.

b) Entitled for 10% dividend on preferential basis.
c) Voting Right only for matters which directly affects the rights attached to Preference shares.

(ii) Rights attached to 0.1 % Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Participating Preference Shares
a) The preference shares shall be redeemable at par upon the expiry of 20 years from date of allotment.
b) Shall have right to dividend with Equity shareholders up to 8% after dividend of 0.1% has been paid to Equity shareholders.

c) Voting Right only for matters which directly affects the rights attached to Preference shares.

(iii) Rights attached to 6% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each

a) The preference shares shall be redeemed at par at the end of 36 months from the date of allotment. Further, Issuer Company shall have an option to

redeem the preference shares at any time after the date of allotment.

b) If Issuer Company exercises its call option, it will pay the amount of the face value of the preference shares.

c) In case Issuer Company exercises the call option, its liability to the preference shareholders shall stand extinguished from the date of dispatch of the

cheques / pay order for the redemption amount, along with dividend, if any.

iv) Details of Preference shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Paiticulsrs No. of shares % of
held holding |
As at March 31, 2024
0.1 % Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Participating Preference Shares 1,00,000 100.00%
Shapoorji Pallonji & Company Pvt Ltd
10% Non Cummulative, Optionally Redeemable Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares. 6,00,000 96.77%
Forbes & Company Limited, the Holding company
6% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each
Forbes Campbell Finance Limited, Fellow Subsidiary 2,60,000 100.00%
As at March 31, 2023
0.1 % Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Participating Preference Shares 1,00,000 100.00%
Shapoorji Pallonji & Company Pvt Ltd
10% Non Cummulative, Optionally Redeemable Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares. 6,00,000 96.77%
Forbes & Company Limited, the Holding company
6% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each
2,60,000 100.00%

Forbes Campbell Finance Limited, Fellow Subsidiary

Page 211 of 244




FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

33. Preference Share Capital (Contd...)

(B) Compound Financial Instruments

The preference shares contain two components: liability and equity. The equity component is presented in equity under the heading

of "Other Equity".

Details of Compound Financial Instruments: (Rs. In lakhs)
As on March 31, As on March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
A. On May 14, 2010, the company issued 1,00,00,000 8% Cumulative Optionally Convertible 10.00 10.00
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each which were converted to 0.1% Cumulative
Non Convertible Redeemable Participating Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each during the year
2014-15. Redemption may occur on May 13, 2030 at Rs. 10 each of which 99,00,000 shares
were cancelled in a scheme of arrangement
B. On March 31, 2023, the company issued 2,60,000 6% Non-cumulative Non-convertible 26.00 26.00
Redeemable Preference Shares (NCRPS) of Rs 10 each under the composite scheme of
arrangement redeemable on or before March 31, 2026 at the option of the company.
Break up of Compound Financial Instrument into Equity and Liability: (Rs. In lakhs)
. As on March 31, As on March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
Issued Preference Share Capital
0.1 % Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Participating Preference Shares 10.00 10.00
6% Non-cumulative Non-convertible Redeemable Preference Shares 26.00 26.00
Total Issued Preference Share Capital 36.00 36.00
Liability component at the date of issue
0.1 % Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Participating Preference Shares 1.06 1.06
6% Non-cumulative Non-convertible Redeemable Preference Shares 18.78 18.78
Total Liability component at the date of issue 19.83 19.83
Equity Component
0.1 % Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Participating Preference Shares 8.94 8.94
6% Non-cumulative Non-convertible Redeemable Preference Shares 7.22 7.22
Total Equity component at the date of issue 16.17 16.17
26.02 23.07

Liability component including interest accrued thereon (included in "Non-current
borrowings" (note 12))

Page 212 of 244




FORBES TECHNOSYS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

34. Mangement note on material uncertainty related to going concern:
a) The Company has incurred a net loss of Rs. 46.32 lakhs for the year March 31, 2024 and a net loss of Rs. 3,384.96 lakhs for the year ended

March 31, 2023. The Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 11,011.01 lakhs as at March 31, 2024. The Company has
accumulated losses of Rs. 18,322.65 lakhs and its net-worth is negative as at March 31, 2024. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast a significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Subsequent to the setback of Covid-19 pandemic, the Company had been confident of repayment of all liabilities, as and when due, from
business operations and/ or financial support from the Parent Company and other shareholders. The Company also received the approval from
the National Company Law Tribunal = Mumbai Bench (‘the NCLT') for the Composite scheme of arrangement during the previous year to

improve the position of the Company.

However, due to continuing losses and withdrawal of support from its operational creditors to provide further credit on outstanding dues and
non-receipt of its dues by its trade receivables, a corporate insolvency resolution process (“CIRP”) under Section 10 of the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 has been initiated by the Company voluntarily vide application filed before the NCLT on February 20, 2024. The hearing
of the said application is awaited. During the pendency of such application before the NCLT, the financial statements for the year ended March

31, 2024 have been prepared on a going concern basis.

b) The Company is in the process of negotiating settlements with and obtaining balance confirmations, from its outstanding trade payables
(other than related parties) of Rs. 1,693.43 lakhs and trade receivables of Rs. 308.22 lakhs as at March 31, 2024 which has not been completed
as on the date of these financial statements and the adjustment of such process, if any, shall be accounted for when such process is complete.
The Company has assessed recoverability of its assets such as trade receivables, inventory, other current assets and loans and advances and
believes that the carrying cost of all its assets (net of provisions) are recoverable.Consequently the management believes that there will not be

any material impact on the recoverability of these assets.

35. Investment and utlisation of funds
No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the Company to/in any intermediary with the understanding that the intermediary shall

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or provide
any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Further, no funds have been received from any person or entity
('Funding parties') with the understanding that the Company shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Funding Party.
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36. Financials ratios
The Company’s operations have significantly reduced and its net worth / capital employed has become negative. Further significant part of

interest on unsecured inter corporate deposit from the holding company and its group companies has been waived off by the respective
companies owing to financial difficulties. Accordingly, financial ratios are not considered relevant for these financial statements of the

Companv.

37. Relationships with struck off companies
The Company did not have any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the companies Act 2013 during the current and

previous financial year.

38. Approval of Financial Statements
Financial statements were approved on May 22, 2024 by the board of directors.

39. Previous year figures
Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's groupings.

For and on behalf Wf Directors
Mr. Rohit Jayakar W,—-—

Managing Director

Mr. Jai Mavani
Director

Mr. Vinod Bhandawat
Director

Mr. Sandeep Kadakia /

Chief Financial Officer : N '

Place : Mumbai
Date :
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Above Axis Bank,

Goregoan (E),

Mumbai - 400 063.
India

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

To the Members of
VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s. Volkart Fleming Shipping & Services
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024 and the Statement of
Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its Loss and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the standards on auditing (SAs)
specified under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of
ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's
Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
_be-materially misstated.

{" ngaluru'_b_ffice: 23, staywell House, 2" Floor, 1** Lane, Muthappa Block, R.T. Nagar, Bangalore, Karnataka- 560080
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position and financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concemn and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Com pany’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error,
as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible.for expressing our opinion on whether the company has

ﬂumb , Offlce 408, Manish Chambers, Sonawala Road, Opp. Hotel Karan Palace, Goregoan (E), Mumbai - 400 063.
Benga! Ofﬁce 23, Staywell House, 2" Floor, 1** Lane, Muthappa Block, R.T. Nagar, Bangalore, Karnataka- 560080
\ ; e E- mail: 1tkgmaheshwari@gmail.com.

Page 217 of 244



s | MS KA &Co.,

Chartered Accouniants

S

adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.
e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
Conciude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, inciuding the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of reasonably knowiedgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the result of our work: and {ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legai and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order’), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
~._knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Aa Oqff'i-c.e:' 408, Manish Chambers, Sonawala Road, Opp. Hotel Karan Palace, Goregeoan (E), Mumbai - 400 063.
I lpru Office: 23, Staywell House, 2" Floor, 15 Lane, Muthappa Block, R.T. Nagar, Bangalore, Karnataka- 560080
i\ ' T = e E- mail: 1kgmaheshwari@gmail.com.
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

{c}) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies [Accounts) Rules,
2014. ;

{e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3 1* March,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s intemal financial controls over financial reporting.

(g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accidence with the
requirements of section 197 [16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, there is no remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year under the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the .'nvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

ForMS KA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 117035W

Krishna Gopal Maheshwari B Lo
Partner

M. No.: 048555

UDIN No.: 2hol€ 855 R KFERq L9 7
Dated: 23/04/2024.

Mumbai Office: 408, Manish Chambers, Sonawala Road, Opp. Hotel Karan Palace, Goregoan (E), Mumbai - 400 063.
Bengaluru Office: 23, Staywell House, 2" Floor, 1°° Lane, Muthappa Block, R.T. Nagar, Bangalore, Karnataka- 560080
e E- mail: 1kgmaheshwarl@gmaal com.
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

As at As at
Note 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Particulars No. Z in thousand ¥ in thousand
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
a Property, Plant and Equipment 4 - -
b Right of use of Asset 318 - 52.39
¢ Investment Property 5 = 2
d Financial Assets:
i} Investments
Other Investments 6 391.45 391.45
391.45 391.45
i) Other financial assets . 9A 15,157.55 15,157.55
15,549.00 15,545.00
d Taxassets
i} Current tax assets (net) 18 11,084.10 10,392.15
11,084.10 10,392.15
e Other non-current assets 11A - -
Total Non-current assets 26,633.10 25,993.54
2 Current assets
a Financial Assets:
i) Trade receivables 7 - =
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,053.29 764.92
iii) Bank balances 108 10,421.08 4,814.10
iv) Other financial assets 9B - -
11,474.37 5579.02
b Other current assets 11 251.97 113.80
Total Current assets 11,726.14 5,692.82
Total Assets 38,359.24 31,686.36
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a Equity share capital 12 5,038.50 5,038.50
b Other equity 13 23,518.64 18,033.26
Total Equity 28,557.14 23,071.76
Liabilities
1 Non-current liabilities
a Financial liabilities:
i} Lease liability 31C - -
ii) Other financial liabilities 14A - -
b Deferred tax liabilities (net) 15 1.10 1.10
Total Non-current liabilities 1.10 1.10
2 Current liabilities
a Financial liabilities:
i) Trade and other payables 17
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises; and = -
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 2,410.22 1,585.19
i} Lease liability 31C 0.00 57.46
iii) Other financial liabilities 14 5,255.59 5,255.59
7,665.81 6,898.24
b Current tax liabilities (net) 18 1,405.49 164.92
¢ Other current liabilities 16 729.70 1,550.34
Total Current Liabilities 9,801.00 8,613.50
Total Liabilities 9,802.10 8,614.60
Total Equity and Liabilities 38,359.24 31,686.36
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date 3
ForMS KA &Co. NIRMAL JAGAWAT Chairperson
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No.- 117035W
RAVINDER PREM A
\ Directors
r
? RUPA KHANNA @%

ishna Gapal‘?\l'laheshwari
Partner
Membership No.: 048555
Mumbai, 2.2 April, 2024
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Year end. Year end.
Note 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Particulars No. Z in thousand ¥ in thousand
I Revenue from operations 19 11,549.44 12,621.24
Il Other income 20 460.85 159.68
Il Total Income (I +11) 12,010.29 12,780.92
IV Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 21 1,188.22 1,617.66
Finance cost 22 2.54 3,244.79
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 52.39 109.33
Other expenses 24A 3,124.75 6,424.44
Total expenses 4,367.91 11,396.23
V Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax (Il - IV) 7,642.38 1,384.69
VI Exceptional iterns 24B - 1.98
Vil Profit / (Loss) before tax (V + Vi) 7,642.38 1,386.67
Vill Tax expense / (credit):
Current tax 25 2,157.00 2,120.00
Income tax of prior year 25 = 1,953.38
Deferred tax ) 25 - -
2,157.00 4,073.38
IX Profit for the year (VI - VIII) 5,485.38 (2,686.70)
X Other Comprehensive Income
Total Other Comprehensive Income - -
Xi Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX + X) 5,485.38 (2,686.70)
Xl Earning per equity share :
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share 27 T 011 & (0.05)
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date &
For MSKA & Co. NIRMAL JAGAWAT Chairperson
Chartered Accountants =
Firm Reg No.- 117035W
RAVINDER PREM p—.
Directors

RUPA KHANNA M

Krishna Gopal Maheshwari
Partner
Mumbai,zs. April, 2024

Mumbai, 0.3 April, 2024
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit / (Loss) before tax

Adjustments for -
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss
Depreciation on fixed assets
Interest Income
Impairment of |

in Fellow Subsidiary

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes

Movements in working capital:
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables and other financial assets
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
Increase / (d }in trade pay
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities

and other financial liabilities

Cash generated from [ (used in) operations
Income taxes paid (net of refunds)
(a) Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale [ surrender for buy-back of long-term investments
Interest received

(b) Net cash generated from [ (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payment of Lease Liabilities
Interest paid
(c) Net cash generated from [ {used in) financing activities
(d) Netincrease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents(a +b +c)

(e} Cashand cash
(f) Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

asatthec

ement of the year

See accompanying notes ing part of the financial statement

Year end.
31st Mar,, 2023
¥ in thousand

Year end.
31st Mar., 2024
¥ in thousand

7,642.38

2.54 3,244.79
52.39 108.33
(424.11) (156.48)
o (1.98)
(369.18)
7,273.20

- 842.75
(137.97) 1,145.60
825.03 (500.48)
(820.64) (52.23)

(133.59)

7,139.61

(1,608.37)

5,531.24

- 188
424.11 156.48
424.11

(57.46) .
(2.54) (3,244.79)
(60.00)
5,895.35

5,579.02
11,474.37

1,386.67

3,195.67
4,582.34

1,435.63
6,017.98
1,342.22
7,360.19

158.46

(3,244.75)

4,273.86

1,305.16
5,573.02

As per our report of even date
For MS KA & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No.- 117035W

A

hna Gopal ﬁaheshwari
Partner
Membership No.: 048555
Mumbai/ 2.3 April, 2024
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024

A. Equity share capital No.of Shares Amount

Z in thousand
Balance at 1st April, 2022 50,385 5,038.50
Changes in equity share capital during
the year ) )
Balance at 31st March, 2023 50,385 5,038.50
Changes in equity share capital during
the year ) 5
Balance at 31st March, 2024 50,385 5,038.50

B. Other Equity

% in thousand

' Total Other
Reserves and surplus .
Equity
General Capital Redemption
Retained earnings P P

reserve Reserve
Balance at 1st April, 2022 7,004.81 10,753.65 2,961.50 20,719.96
Profit/(loss) for the year - (2,686.70) - (2,686.70)
Balance at 31st March, 2023 7,004.81 8,066.95 2,961.50 18,033.26
Profit/(loss) for the year - 5,485.38 - 5,485.38
Balance at 31st March, 2024 7,004.81 13,552.33 2,961.50 23,518.64
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date <

For MSKA & Co. NIRMAL JAGAWAT Chairperson

Chartered Accountants
RAVINDER PREM :‘ ! 12 =

Firm Reg No.- 117035W

Directors
= RUPA KHANNA @fo'j/’ i
Krishna Gopal Maheshwari
Partner
Membership No.: 048555 @GE\
- 3
Mumbai, 2.3, April, 2024 Mumbai, 23 April, 2024 3¢ \_g\
0 _ [Z( Mumeal }E
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Volkart Fleming Shipping & Services Limited was incorporated on 2nd August, 1985 in India having its registered office at Cassinath Building, A.K. Nayak Marg, Fort,
Murmbai 400 001. The Company is a subsidiary of Forbes & Company Limited and is mainly engaged in the real estate business.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i) Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013

[Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015).

ii) Basis of Preparation and Pr ion
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 11l to
the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 maenths for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as
current and non current .

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS reguires the M nent to make esti and ptions idered in the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the
estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable, Future results could differ due to these estimates and the differences
between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the pericds in which the results are known / materialise,

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee(INR).

iii) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises
p price { refundable taxes), borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Freehold land is not to be depreciated.

Subsequent expenditures related to an item of property, plant and equipment are added to its carrying value only when it is probable that the future economic
benefits from the asset will flow to the Company & cost can be reliably measured.
Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013,

The estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are as under:

|S. No. |Class of assets | Estimated useful life
I a Iofﬁce equi t | 5 years

iv) Capital work-in-progress
Projects under which tangible fixed assets are not yet ready for their use are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable

interest.

v) Investment property
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property under construction for such purposes). Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Suk toinitial r ition, ir preperties are measured in accordance with Ind AS
16’s requirements for cost model,
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are

P i from the di: I. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the periad in which the property is derecognised.

vi) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets, being computer software, are to be stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
cost comprises acquisition and implementation cost of software for internal use {including software coding, installation, testing and certain data conversion).

Amortisation is to be recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are to be reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basls

4

Gains or losses arising from the reti or di | of an i ible asset are to be determined as the difference between the disposal preceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

vii) Intangible assets under development
Expenditure on develop it eligible for capitalisation is to be carried as intangible assets under development where such assets are not yet ready for their intended

use.

viii} Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. If such
recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance
sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the ble ist d and the asset s reflected at the
lower of recoverable amount and the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised.

ix) Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its plant and equip tand ir
d as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

assets T ised as of April 1, 2015 (transition date)
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

x)

ii)

xiii)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acguisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets
All recognised financial assets are subsequently d in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting pericd, with any gains ar losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or

loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the fi ial asset. Dividend on fi ial assets at FVTPL is
d when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is blished, it is probable that the ic benefi iated with the dividend will flow to the
entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, loan commitments, trade
bles and other uzl rights to receive cash or other financial asset.

For trade ivables or any ctual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of ind AS 18, the

Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Derecognition of financial assets
The C d ises a fi ial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument,

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a
group entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL,

Foreign exchange gains and losses
For financial liabilities that are to be denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting pericd, the foreign

exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Comy der ises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. A substantial

modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial lizbility. The difference between the carrying amount of the fi ial liability d gnised and
the id ion paid and payable is ised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets :

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used reasonable and supportable
infol ion that is ilable without undue cest or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial instruments were initially recognised in order to
compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Further, the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at the date
of transition to Ind ASs, whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101.

Earnings per share
Basic Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present cbligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is prebable that the Company will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The ised as @ provision is the best esti of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is r d using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if itis
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Conti liability is disclosed for (i) Possible obligations which will be cenfirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company er (i) Present
eobligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle the ebligation or a reliable estimate of the amount
of the obligation cannot be made.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Sale of Services:

Income from services is recognised on accrual basis as and when the services are performed,

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the amortised cost and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been established (provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

xiv)

XV

—_—

xvi)

xvii

=

xviii)

Lease accounting

Operating Leases

Leases, where the lessor retains, substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased assets, are classified as operating lease. Operating lease
expense / income are recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Taxes on Income

Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net profit or loss for the period. Current tax is
measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the separate financial statements and the
caorresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally gnised for all deductibl P y diffi to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those

deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax llabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting peried.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or less, except when they relate to items that are gnised in other comprek ive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, cheques, drafts on hand, balances in current accounts with banks, other bank deposits
with original maturities of three months or less.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs tbat. are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capltahsed A gualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a
substantial penod of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which ﬂ'bev are incurred.

Segment neparﬁng
An t is a comp of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue and incur expenses, whose operating
results are regularlv reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decision maker in order to effectively allocate the Company's resources and assess performance.

3. RECENT AMENDMENTS TO INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS:

i}

i)

iv)

vi)

On 24 July 2020, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) had issued amendments to certain Ind AS as follows:

Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations:

The definition of the term "business” has been revised. An optional test has been introduced to identify concentration of fair value to permit a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. Additional guidance with el of busi and on ing whether an acquired process is
substantive. An entity is required to apply the amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after the 1 April 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period. There was no impact on the
financial statements of the Company on adoption of the above amendments for the year.

Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures:
Additional disclosures have been introduced for uncertainties arising from interest rate benchmark reforms cc q | to the hedge accounting related
amendments in the Ind AS 109 = Financial Instruments. The Company did not have any transactions during the year to which these were licabl

Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments:

Temporary exceptions from applying specific hedge ing requir have been i juced for all hedging relationships directly affected by ‘interest rate
benchmark reform’. (i.e. the market-wide reform of an interest rate benchmark, including the replacement of an interest rate benchmark with an alternative
benchmark rate). This amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020. The Company did not have any transactions during the

year to which these Were apy

Ind AS 116 - Leases:

A Practical expedient has been allowed to permit lessees to exclude COVID-19 related rent concessions to be treated as a lease modification. This amendment is
applicable to the Company from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020. There were no rent concessions during the year and accordingly, there
was no impact on the financial statements of the Company on adoption of the above amendments for the year.

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8 -Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (and consequential amendments
to other Ind AS):
The definition of the term “material” has been revised and is applicable prospectively fer annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020. Consequent to the
revised definition of “material”, certain amendments were also natified in the Ind AS 10 - Events after the Reporting Period, Ind AS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting
and Ind AS 37 -Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
There was no impact on the financial statements of the Company on adoption of this amendment for the year.

Standards issued but not yet effective:
As on the date of approval of these financial statements, there were no new standards or amendments which have been notified but not yet adopted by the
Company and expected to have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company.
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- VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

4. Property, Plant and Equipment

Z in thousand

As at As at
31st Mar., 2024 | 31st Mar., 2023
Office equipment
Cost or Deemed cost
Balance at Beginning of the year 388.16 388.16
Additions g z
Disposal - -
Balance at End of the period 388.16 388.16
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance at Beginning of the year 388.16 331.22
Eliminated on disposals of assets - =
Depreciation expense - 56.94
Balance at End of the period 388.16 388.16
Carrying Amount
Balance at Beginning of the year - 56.94
Addition 3 =
Disposal - -
Depreciation expense - 56.94
Balance at End of the period - -

o
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

5. Investment property
Z in thousand

As at As at
31st Mar., 2024 | 31st Mar., 2023
Completed investment properties " 2
Total - =

As at As at
31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Balance at beginning of year 3.11 3.11
Additions '
Disposals
Other transfers
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences
Other changes
Property reclassified as held for sale
Balance at end of period 3.11 3.11

Cost or Deemed Cost

As at As at
31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Balance at beginning of year 3.11 ; 3.11
Additions
Disposals
Other transfers
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences
Other changes
Property reclassified as held for sale
Balance at end of period 3.11 3.11

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

5.1 Fair value measurement of the Company's investment properties

The fair value of the Company’s investment properties as at 31st March, 2024 and 31st March,
2023 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out as on the respective dates by
V.5.Modi @, independent valuers not related to the Company. V.S. Modi is registered with the
authority which governs the valuers in India, and they have appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The fair value was determined
based on the market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar
properties as well as other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. In estimating the
fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use. Thus,
the significant unobservable inputs are recent transaction price, taking into account the
differences in location, and individual factors, such as frontage and size, between the comparables
and the properties. Details of the Company's investment properties and information about the
fair value hierarchy as at 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023 are as follows:

Z in thousand
As at 31st Mar., 2024

Particulars Level 3

New Delhi - Building 91,350
Karnataka - Building 19,000
Maharashtra - Building 1,59,112
Total 2,69,462

As at 31st Mar., 2023

Particulars Level 3

New Delhi - Building 87,150
Karnataka - Building 17,000
Maharashtra - Building 1,51,703
Total 2,55,853

SHPRII
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

6. Other investments

Other Non Current Investments

% in thousand

As at 31st Mar., 2024 As at 31st Mar., 2023
Particulars Qty Amount Qty Amount
Unquoted Investments (all fully paid) (other than trade investments)
(i) Investments in Carmel Properties Pvt. Ltd. held at Cost ( since it is towards
investment property refer note no. 1 below] :-
(a) Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 1,125 2.50 1,125 2.50
{b) Irredeemable debentures of ¥ 100 each 3,089 388.95 3,089 388.95
Total (i) 4,214 391.45 4,214 391.45
(ii) Investments in Forbes Technosys Limited at _cost (Fellow subsidiary)
(a) 10% Optionally Redeemable compulsory Convertible, Non Cumulative Preference
Shares of ¥ 10 each in Forbes Technosys Limited 20,00,000 200.00 20,00,000 200.00
Total (il) 20,00,000 200.00 20,00,000 200.00
TOTAL AGGREGATE UNQUOTED INVESTMENTS (A) 20,04,214 591.45 20,04,214 581.45
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 20,04,214 591.45 20,04,214 591.45
Less : Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments (B) - 200.00 200.00
TOTAL INVESTMENTS CARRYING VALUE (A) - (B) 391.45 391.45
Aggregate market value of quoted investments -
Note 1:-
(Carmel property is a residential flat at Mumbai, market value as at 31.03.2024 is ¥ 1,05,092.50 thousand and as at 31.03.2023 is ¥ 1,01,782.50/- as per valuation report issued by

V.5.Modi Associates, Chartered Engineer, Govt. Approved Valuers, Mumbai )

6.1 Category-wise other investments — as per Ind AS 109 classification
¥ in Thousand

As at As at

Particulars 31st Mar., 2024  31st Mar., 2023
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Equity Instruments 2.50 2.50
Preference Instruments = -
Debentures 388.95 388.95
Sub Total 391.45 391.45
Total 391.45 391.45
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

7. Trade receivables
¥ in thousand
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023

- Unsecured, considered good - -

Total -
8. Loans
Z in thousand
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Loans (Inter-Corporate Deposit) to related parties
- Unsecured, considered good - -
- Doubtful 15,300.00 15,300.00
Less : Allowance for bad and doubtful loans 15,300.00 15,300.00

Total - -

9. Other financial assets

9A.  Other financial assets - Non current
Z in thousand

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
a) Security deposits
- Unsecured, considered good 15,157.55 15,157.55
- Doubtful 271.48 307.88
Less : Allowance for bad and doubtful loans 271.48 307.88
sub total (a) 15,157.55 15,157.55
b) Balance held as Deposits with banks with
remaining maturity period of more than 12 months B -
c) Interest Accrued on Deposits with Banks - -
Total (a+b+¢c) 15,157.55 15,157.55

9B. Other financial assets - Current
Z in thousand

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
a) Accruals:
- Interest accrued on Loan given to related parties - -
- Interest Accrued on Deposits with Banks - -
- Interest accrued on Loan given to related parties- Doubtful 2,403.69 2,403.69
Less : Allowance for doubtful interest 2,403.69 2,403.69

sub total (a) - -

b) Other curent receivables
- Unsecured, considered good % ]
- Doubtful = 2
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts " s
sub total (b) 5 -

Total (a+b) - -
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

10.

11.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of

cash flows can be reconciled to the related items in the balance sheet as follows:
Z in thousand

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
10A. Balances with Banks
a) In current accounts 1,053.29 764.92
b) Deposits accounts (with original maturity upto 3 months) - -
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 1,053.29 764.92
10B. Other Bank balances
a) In deposit accounts with original maturity of more than 3 months but less
than 12 months 9,721.46 4,150.43
b) Balances held as margin money / under lien with remaining maturity of less
than 12 months ) 699.63 663.67
10,421.08 4,814.10

Z in thousand
Other assets - Current As at As at
31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023

a) Adwvances for supply of goods and services
- Unsecured, considered good - -

b) Prepaid expenses 8.86 -
¢} Balances with statutory / government authorities
- Unsecured, considered good 242.91 113.80
Total 251.77 113.80
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

12. Equity Share Capital
% in thousand

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Equity shares of T 100 each 5,038.50 5,038.50
Total 5,038.50 5,038.50
Authorised Share capital :
1,00,000 fully paid equity shares of ¥ 100 each 10,000.00 10,000.00
Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
50,385 fully paid equity shares of ¥ 100 each 5,038.50 5,038.50
5,038.50 5,038.50
12.1 Fully paid equity shares
Number of Shares Share capital
Particulars In thousand % in thousand
Balance at April 1, 2022 50,385 5,038.50
Movements - -
Balance at March 31, 2023 50,385 5,038.50
Movements - -
Balance at January 31, 2024 . . 50,385 5,038.50

Fully paid equity shares, which have a par value of T 100, carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends.

12.2 Details of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate controlling party, their subsidiaries and associates

Fully paid ordinary shares
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Balance at the beginning of the period 50,385.00 50,385.00
The holding company - -
Total 50,385.00 50,385.00

12.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

As at 31st Mar., 2024 As at 31st Mar,, 2023
Number of shares % holding in the | Number of shares % holding in the
Particulars held class of shares held class of shares
Fully paid equity shares
Forbes & Company Limited 50,385 100 50,385 100
Total 50,385 100 50,385 100
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

13. Other equity

# in thousand

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
a) General reserve 7,004.81 7,004.81
b) Retained earnings 13,552.33 8,066.95
c) Capital redemption reserve 2,961.50 2,961.50
Total 23,518.64 18,033.26
" ¥ in thousand
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
13.1 General reserve (Refer Note 1)
Balance at beginning of the year 7,004.81 7,004.81
Movements = -
Balance at end of the year 7,004.81 7,004.81
13.2 Retained earnings
Balance at beginning of year 8,066.95 10,753.65
Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners of the Company 5,485.38 (2,686.70)
Balance at end of the year 13,552.33 8,066.95
13.3 Capital redemption reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 2,961.50 2,961.50
Movements - -
Balance at end of the year 2,961.50 2,961.50
Total 23,518.64 18,033.26

Note 1: The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general
reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in

the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

14. Other financial liabilities
Z in thousand

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
a) Others:-
i) Security deposits 5,255.59 5,255.59
Total 5,255.59 5,255.59

15. Deferred tax balances

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) presented in the balance sheet:

Z in thousand

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Deferred tax assets - -
Deferred tax liabilities 1.10 1.10
Net (1.10) (1.10)
Current Year { 2023-24) Z in thousand
Particulars Opening balance Utilisation Closing balance
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:
a) Property, plant and equipment (1.10) - (1.10)
Total (A) ... (1.10) . (1.10)
b)  Others (MAT Credit) - - -
Total (B) ... = JE =
Total (A+B) ... (1.10) - (1.10)
Previous Year ( 2022-23) Z in thousand
Particulars Opening balance Utilisation Closing balance
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:
a)  Property, plant and equipment (1.10) - (1.10)
Total (A) ... (1.10) - (1.10)
b)  Others (MAT Credit) = - -
Total (B) ... - . =
Total (A+B) ... (1.10) - (1.10)

Q'.'(‘-\_II.P-P?,Q, .
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

16. Other current liabilities

Particulars

Z in thousand
As at As at
31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023

a)  Advances from Customers
b)  Statutory remittances
c) Others

Total

17. Trade payables

Particulars

590.21 1,410.73
139.49 139.61
729.70 1,550.34

Z in thousand
As at As at
31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023

Micro and small enterprises
Others
Total

2,410.22 1,585.19
2,410.22 1,585.19

Payable to Micro and small enterprises represents the principal amount. There is no interest due / accrued / paid /

payable during the year.

The Company ensures that all payables are paid within the agreed terms.

18. Current tax assets and liabilities

Particulars

Z in thousand
As at As at
31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023

Current tax assets
Tax refund receivable

Current tax liabilities
Income tax payable

Current Tax Assets (current portion)
Current Tax Assets (non-current portion)

11,084.10 10,392.15
11,084.10 10,392.15
1,405.49 164.92
1,405.49 164.92
11,084.10 10,392.15
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

19. Revenue from operations

2 in thousand

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024  31st Mar,, 2023
a)  Other operating revenues
i) Rent and amenities 11,549.44 12,621.24
Total 11,549.44 12,621.24
20. Other Income
a) Interest Income
Z in thousand
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024  31st Mar., 2023
i) Income Tax refund - 51.33
i) Long Term Investments 3.09 3.09
-iii) Bank deposits 421.02 102.06
Total (a) 424.11 156.48
b) Other Non-Operating Income
Credit balances / excess provision written back 0.35 -
Miscellaneous income 36.39 3.20
Total (b) 36.73 3.20
Total (a+h) 460.85 159.68
21. Employee benefits expense
¥ in thousand
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024  31st Mar., 2023
i) Salaries and Wages 1,188.00 1,617.66
ii) Staff Welfare Expenses 0.22 -
Total 1,188.22 1,617.66
22. Finance costs
Z in thousand
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024  31st Mar., 2023
(a) Interest costs :-
i)  Interest expenses on lease liabilities 2.54 7.77
i) Otherinterest expense - 3,237.03
Total (a) 2.54 3,244.79
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

23. Depreciation and amortisation expense

24,

Z in thousand

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024  31st Mar., 2023
i) Depreciation of Property Plant & Equipment - 56.94
ii) Amortisation of ROU Assets- Lease 52.39 52.39
Total 52.39 109.33
A. Other expenses
¥ in thousand
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024  31st Mar., 2023
a) Power and fuel 13.22 (7.19)
b) Rent and hire charges 9.49 12.16
c) Repairs to :
i)  Buildings B867.88 3,995.81
ii) Others - 22.40
867.88 4,018.21
d) Insurance 24.30 =
e) Rates and taxes (excluding taxes on income) 1,448.24 1,295.52
f) Brokerage, commission, discount and other selling expenses - 416.44
g) Communication - 2.83
h) Legal and professional charges 552.00 147.47
i) Travelling and conveyance 41.05 44.23
i) Housekeeping Charges 90.00 90.00
k) Security Charges - 42.39
m) Provision for Doubtful Deposits - 307.88
1) Miscellaneous expenses 8.07 9.50
Total (i) 3,054.75 6,379.44
m) To Statutory auditors
i) For audit 40.00 40.00
ii)  For tax audit 25.00 -
ii) For other services 5.00 5.00
iii)y For reimbursement of expenses - -
70.00 45.00
To cost auditors for cost audit = =
Total (ii) 70.00 45.00
Total (A = (i) + (ii} ) 3,124.75 6,424.44
B. Exceptional items
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024  31st Mar., 2023
a) Provision for doubtful loans and advances to related parties - -
b) Prov for doubtful Interest on Loan to related parties - -
c) Income on Reduction in Capital -investments in fellow subsidiary - 1.98
- 1.98
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

25. Income taxes relating to continuing operations

25.1 Income tax recognised in profit or loss

2 in thousand

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Current tax
In respect of the current year 2,157.00 2,120.00
In respect of prior years . 1,953.38
2,157.00 4,073.38
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year & *
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year relating to continuing
Operations 2,157.00 4,073.38
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
% in thousand
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024  31st Mar., 2023
Profit before tax from continuing cperations 7,642.38 1,386.67
Income tax expense calculated at 26% (2021-2022: 26%) 1,987.02 360.53
Effect of income that is exempt from taxation -
Effect of expense that is non deductible in determining taxable profit (1.57) 1,204.95
Effect of tax incentives and concession (576.23) -
Effect of business losses not allowed to be set off 747.37 554.17
Income tax expenses in respect of earlier years - 1,953.38
Rounding off of tax provision 0.41 0.35
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of prior
years
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (relating to continuing operations)
2,157.00 4,073.38

The tax rate used for the 2023-2024 and 2022-2023 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 26% payable by corporate

entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law.
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

26.

27.

27.1.

232

Contingent liabilities

% in thousand

As at As at

Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Income Tax Matters 604.98 604.98
Earnings per share

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023

T pershare < pershare
Basic earnings per share 0.11 (0.05)
Diluted earnings per share 0.11 (0.05)

Basic Earnings per share

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows.

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company (A) (T in
thousand) 5,485.38 (2,686.70)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic
earnings per share (B) (Number of shares) 50,385.00 50,385.00
Basic Earnings per share (A/B) T 0.11 (0.05)
Diluted earnings per share
There is no dilution of equity shares. ‘ “:\j: _::}';v& N
T NG \
-E" f 3 ",pg\
/
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

28. Financial instruments

28.1. Capital management
The company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the company mainly consists of equity of the Company (comprising issued capital, general reserves, retained earnings and capital
redemption reserve as detailed in Notes 12 to 13).

The company is not exposed to currency risk as there are no forex transactions and also no exposure to interest rate risks since no variable rate instruments.

As at 31.03.2023 there are no borrowings and currently Company does not intend to borrow and there is no line of credit. with bank, hence no gearing ratio.

28.2 Categories of financial instruments
% in thousand

As at As at

Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Financial assets
Measured at Amortised Cost
Cash and bank balances 1,053.29 764.92
Trade Receivable ' - -
Bank balances 10,421.08 4,814.10
Other Financial Assets 15,157.55 15,157.55
Investments in Equity Instruments 250 2.50
|Investments in Debentures 388.95 388.95

27,023.37 21,128.02
Financial liabilities
Measured at Amortised Cost
Trade and Other payables 2,410.22 1,585.19
Other Financial Liabilities 5,255.59 5,255.59

7,665.81 6,840.78

28.3 Financial risk management objectives
The company monitors and manages the financial risks to the operations of the company . These risks include credit risk and liquidity risk.

23.9 Credit risk management

Based on the Company's monitoring of customer credit risk, the company believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade receivables
that are not past due or past due but not more than one year.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity Risk Manag 1t implies maintenance of sufficient cash and bank balance to meet obligations when due. The company manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate funds, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

¥ in thousand

Maturities of Financial Liabilities 31st Mar., 2024
Upto 1 year 1to 3 years 3 to 5 years 5 years & above
Trade Payables 13,01,974.00 9,000.00 10,488.00 -
Other Financial Liabilities e 2,955.75 . 2,299.84
13,01,974.00 11,955.75 10,488.00 2,299.84

Z in thousand

Maturities of Financiol Liabilities 31st Mar., 2023
Upto 1 year 1to 3 years 3 to 5 yeors 5 years & above
Trade Payables 13,01,974.00 8,000.00 10,488.00 -
Other Financial Liabilities * 2,855.75 - 2,299.84
13,01,974.00 11,855.75 10,488.00 2,299.84
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued

29. Related Party Disclosures
Current Year

(a) Name of the Related Parties and Description of Relationship:

Nature of Relationship Name of Entity Abbreviation used
Ultimate Holding Company Shapooriji Pallonji and Company Private Limited i SP&CPL -

Holding Company Forbes & Company Limited F&CL

Fellow Subsidiaries Forbes Technosys Limited FTL

(where there are transactions) Campbell Properties & Hospitality Services Ltd. CP&HSL

Previous Year

{a) Name of the Related Parties and Description of Relationship:

Nature of Relationship Name of Entity Abbreviation used
Ultimate Holding Company Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited SP&CPL

Holding Company Forbes & Company Limited F&CL

Fellow Subsidiaries Forbes Technosys Limited FTL

(where there are transactions) Campbell Properties & Hospitality Services Ltd. CP&HSL
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 - Continued
31. Leases

(a) Operating Lease: Company as lessor
(i} The company has given certain office / residential premises on operating lease basis, the details of which are as

follows:
Z in thousand
As at As at
Class of Asset 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Gross carrying Amount 3.11 3.11
Accumulated Depreciation 3.11 3.11
Depreciation for the year - -

(b)  Operating Lease: Company as lessee

Information in respect of leases for which right- of use of assets and corresponding lease liabilities have been recognised

are as follows:
Z in thousand

As at As at

Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Cost or Deemed Cost
Balance as on 01.04.2023 / 01.04.2022 157.18 157.18
Additions to Rights-of-use of assets during the year (Commercial
premises) N &
Deletion to Rights-of-use of assets during the year (Commercial

remises) - -
Balance as at 31.03.2024 / 31.03.2023 157.18 157.18
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as on 01.04.2023 / 01.04.2022 104.78 52.39
Depreciation of right-of-use of assets during the year 52.39 52.39
Deletion to right-of-use of assets during the year - -
Balance as at 31.03.2024 / 31.03.2023 157.18 104.78
Carrying Amount
Balance as at 31.03.2024 / 31.03.2023 - 52.39
Interest Expenses (unwinding of discount) on lease liabilities 2.54 Tk s
Total Cash outflows in respect of leases (including short term leases) 60.00 60.00

(€}  Lease Liability recognised
Z in thousand

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar., 2024 31st Mar., 2023
Non Current Lease Liability -
Current Lease Liability 0.00 57.46

32. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
On the basis of responses received against enquiries made by the Company, there is an amount of Rs, Nil outstanding in respect
of Micro and Small Enterprises covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as at the
Balance Sheet date. The Company has not defaulted in payment of dues to such entities during the year.

33. Segment reporting
The Company is only engaged in Real Estate business and there are no reportable segments as per IND AS 108 'Operating
Segments.

34, Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date <

ForMS KA & Co. NIRMAL JAGAWAT Chairperson
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No.- 117035W
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Krishna Gopal Maheshwari
Partner

Membership No.: 048555
Mumbai, 2.2, April, 2024 Mumbai, 23 April, 2024
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